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NO BROKER, DEALER, SALESMAN OR OTHER PERSON HAS BEEN
AUTHORIZED BY THE ISSUER OR THE UNDERWRITER TO GIVE ANY
INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS OTHER THAN THOSE
CONTAINED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, AND IF GIVEN OR MADE, SUCH
OTHER INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATIONS MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS
HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY ANY OF THE FOREGOING. THIS OFFICIAL
STATEMENT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO SELL OR THE SOLICITATION
OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE BONDS AND THERE SHALL BE NO OFFER,
SOLICITATION, OR SALE OF THE BONDS BY ANY PERSON IN ANY JURISDICTION
IN WHICH IT IS UNLAWFUL FOR SUCH PERSON TO MAKE SUCH OFFER,
SOLICITATION, OR SALE.

THE INFORMATION SET FORTH HEREIN HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM
PUBLIC DOCUMENTS, RECORDS AND OTHER SOURCES WHICH ARE BELIEVED TO
BE RELIABLE, BUT IT IS NOT GUARANTEED AS TO ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS BY AND IS NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A REPRESENTATION OF
THE UNDERWRITER. THE INFORMATION AND EXPRESSIONS OF OPINION HEREIN
CONTAINED ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE AND NEITHER THE
DELIVERY OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR ANY SALE MADE HEREUNDER
SHALL UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE
HAS BEEN NO CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE ISSUER OR THE BORROWER SINCE
THE DATE HEREOF.

CERTAIN OF THE INFORMATION HEREIN REGARDING THE BORROWER IS
BEYOND THE KNOWLEDGE OF THE ISSUER. WHILE THE ISSUER HAS NO REASON
TO BELIEVE THAT SUCH INFORMATION IS INCOMPLETE OR INACCURATE, THE
ISSUER HAS NOT INDEPENDENTLY INVESTIGATED OR CONFIRMED THE
ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS THEREOF AND HAS INCLUDED SUCH
INFORMATION IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN RELIANCE UPON THE
REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTY OF THE BORROWER THAT SUCH
INFORMATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE STATEMENT OF A MATERIAL
FACT AND DOES NOT OMIT TO STATE ANY MATERIAL FACT NECESSARY IN
ORDER TO MAKE THE STATEMENTS MADE HEREIN, IN THE LIGHT OF THE
CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH THEY ARE MADE, NOT MISLEADING.

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933 NOR HAS THE INDENTURE BEEN QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE
ACT OF 1939, IN RELIANCE UPON EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS. THE
REGISTRATION OR QUALIFICATION OF THE BONDS UNDER THE SECURITIES
LAWS OF THE JURISDICTIONS IN WHICH THEY HAVE BEEN REGISTERED OR
QUALIFIED, IF ANY, SHALL NOT BE REGARDED AS A RECOMMENDATION
THEREOF. NEITHER THESE JURISDICTIONS NOR ANY OF THEIR AGENCIES HAVE
PASSED UPON THE MERITS OF THE BONDS OR THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT.



THE UNDERWRITER HAS PROVIDED THE FOLLOWING SENTENCE FOR
INCLUSION IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT. THE UNDERWRITER HAS REVIEWED
THE INFORMATION IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH, AND
AS PART OF, ITS RESPONSIBILITIES TO INVESTORS UNDER THE FEDERAL
SECURITIES LAWS AS APPLIED TO THE FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS
TRANSACTION, BUT THE UNDERWRITER DOES NOT GUARANTY THE ACCURACY
OR COMPLETENESS OF SUCH INFORMATION.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
Relating to

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL

$4,320,000 REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2011B-1
(Village of Pinecrest Series)
$1,505,000 REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011B-2
(Village of Pinecrest Series)

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this Official Statement, including the cover page and the Appendices
hereto, is to furnish certain information with respect to the original issuance and sale of the
Florida Municipal Loan Council's Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B-1 and Revenue
Bonds, Series 2011B-2 (the "Bonds") to be issued by the Florida Municipal Loan Council (the
"Issuer").

This Introduction is only a brief description of the matters described in this Official
Statement, and a full review of this Official Statement should be undertaken by potential
investors in the Bonds. This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information
contained herein is subject to change.

The Issuer is a separate legal entity under the laws of the State of Florida. The Issuer was
created by an Interlocal Agreement (the "Interlocal Agreement"), dated as of December 1, 1998,
initially among the City of Stuart, the City of Deland and the City of Rockledge, each of which is
a Florida municipality. Subsequent to that date, other municipalities and counties have joined in
the Interlocal Agreement, including Gadsden County, Florida, Jackson County, Florida and Leon
County, Florida.

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Constitution of the State of Florida, Chapter
163, Florida Statutes, and other applicable provisions of law (collectively, the "Act"), authorizing
resolutions adopted by the Issuer on December 17, 1998, March 25, 2010 and September 23,
2010, and a Trust Indenture (the "Indenture"), dated as of March 1, 2011, between the Issuer and
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee (the "Trustee").

The Bonds are being issued to provide funds to make loans to three municipalities of the
State of Florida further described herein. The proceeds to be received by the Issuer from the sale
of the Bonds will be loaned to the Village of Pinecrest, Florida (the "Borrower") pursuant to a
Loan Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2011, between the Issuer and the Borrower (the "Loan
Agreement"). The Borrower will use proceeds of the loan made to it by the Issuer (the "Loan")
to, with respect to the Series 2011B-1 Bond proceeds, refund a prior loan made from proceeds of
the Issuer's Series 1999 Bonds (the "Prior Bonds"), thereby refunding a portion of such prior
bonds (the "Refunded Bonds"), and to fund, in the case of the Series 2011B-2 Bond proceeds,
certain capital improvements, and to pay a proportionate share of the costs of issuance of the



Bonds. The Borrower's project previously financed with proceeds of the Refunded Bonds is
briefly described herein under the caption "PURPOSE OF THE BONDS."

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Borrower agrees to make payments (the "Basic
Payments") in such amounts and at such times as shall be sufficient to pay the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on the Loan to the Borrower when due. The Basic Payments
correlate to the debt service on the principal amount of the Bonds, which is equal to the principal
amount of the Loan. The Basic Payments for the Borrower are set forth herein under the caption
"DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS."

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Borrower also agrees to make certain other
payments (the "Additional Payments"), including, but not limited to, the fees and expenses of the
Issuer, the Program Administrator and the Trustee, and any fees, including any rebate obligation
with respect to the Bonds, related to the Loan.

The Basic Payments and the Additional Payments are jointly referred to as the "Loan
Repayments."

The Borrower has agreed to appropriate in its annual budget, by amendment, if required,
and to pay when due under the Loan Agreement, as promptly as money becomes available,
amounts of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues (hereinafter defined) of the Borrower sufficient to satisfy
the Loan Repayment obligations of the Borrower.

Pursuant to the Indenture, the Issuer has assigned and pledged to the Trustee all of the
Issuer's right, title and interest (with certain exceptions specified therein) in and to the Loan
Agreement, including the Issuer's right to receive Loan Repayments.

The Bonds are not a general debt, liability or obligation of the Issuer, but are
limited obligations of the Issuer, payable solely from (i) the payments to be made by the
Borrower pursuant to the Loan Agreement (as defined herein) (ii) all amounts in certain
funds and accounts created pursuant to the Indenture, and (iii) all Revenues, any and all
other property, rights and interest of every kind and nature from time to time hereafter by
delivery or by writing of any kind subjected to the Indenture, as and for additional security
for the Bonds, by the Issuer or by any other person on its behalf or with its written consent
(collectively, the "Trust Estate'), as more fully described herein. The obligations of the
Borrower pursuant to the Loan Agreement are not a general debt, liability or obligation of
the Borrower, but are limited obligations of the Borrower payable from the sources
described herein. The Bonds are not a debt, liability or obligation of the State of Florida or
any political subdivision or entity thereof other than the Issuer.

There follows in this Official Statement descriptions of the Bonds, the Issuer, the
Borrower and certain other matters. The descriptions and information contained herein do not
purport to be complete, comprehensive, or definitive, and all references herein to documents or
reports are qualified in their entirety by reference to the complete text of such documents or
reports. Copies of documents and reports referred to herein that are not included in their entirety
herein may be obtained from the Managing Underwriter at 2363 Gulf-to-Bay Boulevard, Suite



200, Clearwater, Florida 33765 prior to delivery of the Bonds and thereafter from the Trustee
upon payment of any required fee. Unless otherwise defined herein, terms used in capitalized
form in this Official Statement shall have the same meanings as in the Indenture. See
Appendices C and D for definitions of certain terms used in this Official Statement.

THE BONDS
General Description

The Bonds are being issued as fully registered bonds without coupons in principal
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (the "Authorized Denominations").
The Bonds will be dated as of the date of their initial issuance and delivery, will bear interest
from that date at the rates per annum and will mature on the dates and in the amounts set forth on
the inside cover page of this Official Statement. The Bonds will be subject to the redemption
provisions set forth below. Interest on the Bonds will be computed on the basis of a 360-day
year consisting of twelve 30-day months and will be payable semiannually on each April 1 and
October 1 (each, an "Interest Payment Date,"), commencing October 1, 2011.

The principal and premium of the Bonds shall be payable when due by check or draft,
upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds at the Designated Office of the Trustee, and
interest will be payable by check or draft mailed by the Trustee on each Interest Payment Date to
the holders of the Bonds registered as such as of the Record Date; provided, however, that at the
expense of and upon the written request of a holder of $1,000,000 or more (or of all Bonds if less
than $1,000,000 shall be outstanding) interest will be paid by wire transfer to an account in the
United States. The Record Date with respect to any Interest Payment Date is the fifteenth day of
the calendar month preceding such Interest Payment Date. For so long as the book-entry only
system of ownership of the Bonds is in effect, payments of principal, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds will be made as described below under the caption "Book-Entry Only
System."

All payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable
in any coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal
tender for the payment of public and private debts.

Redemption Provisions

Optional Redemption. The Series 2011B-1 Bonds are not subject to optional redemption
prior to maturity.

The Series 2011B-2 Bonds maturing on or before October 1, 2020 are not subject to
optional redemption prior to maturity. The Series 2011B-2 Bonds maturing after October 1,
2021 are subject to redemption at the option of the Issuer on or after October 1, 2021 as a whole
or in part at any time, in any manner as determined by the Trustee in its discretion taking into
consideration the maturity of the Loan, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the
Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the redemption date.



Scheduled Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2011B-2 Bonds maturing on October 1,
2030 are subject to mandatory redemption, in part, by lot, at redemption prices equal to 100% of
the principal amount thereof plus interest accrued to the redemption date, beginning on October
1, 2020 and on each October 1 thereafter, in the following principal amounts in the following
years:

Year Principal Amount
2020 $70,000
2021 70,000
2022 75,000
2023 80,000
2024 85,000
2025 90,000
2026 95,000
2027 100,000
2028 105,000
2029 110,000
2030* 115,000

*Maturity, not a redemption.

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds are also subject to extraordinary
mandatory redemption as a result of acceleration of the Loan pursuant to the Loan Agreement, at
any time, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium, from all Liquidation Proceeds
received by the Trustee as a result of an acceleration of such Loan. "Liquidation Proceeds"
means amounts received by the Trustee or the Issuer in connection with the enforcement of any
of the remedies under the Loan Agreement after the occurrence of an "event of default" under the
Loan Agreement which has not been waived or cured.

Whenever any Event of Default shall have occurred with respect to the Loan Agreement,
the Issuer or the Trustee have the right to accelerate the Loan, under certain circumstances,
pursuant to the Loan Agreement. Such Events of Default include, but are not limited to, failure
by the Borrower to timely pay any Loan Repayment, a failure by the Borrower to observe and
perform any covenant, condition or agreement contained in the Loan Agreement, subject to
certain provisions regarding notice, an opportunity to cure, bankruptcy of the Borrower and other
events. See "APPENDIX C - Form of the Indenture" and "APPENDIX D - Form of the Loan
Agreement," for a further description of the events which might trigger an acceleration.

Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed. The Bonds may be redeemed only in Authorized
Denominations. The Bonds or portions of the Bonds to be redeemed shall, except as otherwise
described above or as specified in the Indenture, be selected by the Registrar by lot or in such
other manner as the Trustee in its discretion may deem appropriate.

Notice of Redemption. In the case of every redemption, the Trustee shall cause notice of
such redemption to be given to the registered Owner of any series of Bonds designated for




redemption in whole or in part, at such Owner's address as the same shall last appear on the Bond
registration books, by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first class mail at least thirty
days prior to the redemption date. The failure of the Registrar to give notice to a Bondholder or
any defect in such notice shall not affect the validity of the redemption of any other Bonds.

Each notice of redemption shall specify the date fixed for redemption, the redemption
price to be paid, the place or places of payment, that payment will be made upon presentation
and surrender of the Bonds to be redeemed, that interest, if any, accrued to the date fixed for
redemption will be paid as specified in said notice, and that on and after said date interest thereon
will cease to accrue. If less than all of the outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the notice of
redemption shall specify the numbers of the Bonds or portions thereof, including CUSIP
identification numbers to be redeemed.

Notice of redemption is also required to be sent by registered or certified mail or
overnight delivery service to certain securities depositories, provided, however, that such mailing
is not a condition precedent to any redemption and a failure to mail any such notice shall not
affect the validity of any proceedings for the redemption of Bonds.

In the case of an optional redemption, any notice of redemption may state that (1) it is
conditioned upon the deposit of moneys, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect
the redemption, with the Registrar, Paying Agent or a fiduciary institution acting as escrow agent
no later than the redemption date or (2) the Issuer retains the right to rescind such notice on or
prior to the scheduled redemption date (in either case, a "Conditional Redemption"), and such
notice and optional redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys are not so deposited or if the
notice is rescinded as described in this section. Any such notice of Conditional Redemption shall
be captioned "Conditional Notice of Redemption." Any Conditional Redemption may be
rescinded at any time prior to the redemption date if the Program Administrator delivers a
written direction to the Registrar directing the Registrar to rescind the redemption notice. The
Registrar shall give prompt notice of such rescission to the affected Bondholders. Any Bonds
subject to Conditional Redemption where redemption has been rescinded shall remain
Outstanding, and neither the rescission nor the failure by the Issuer to make such funds available
shall constitute an Event of Default under the Indenture. The Registrar shall give immediate
notice to the securities information repositories and the affected Bondholders that the redemption
did not occur and that the affected Bonds called for redemption and not so paid remain
Outstanding.

Effect of Calling for Redemption. On the redemption date, the principal amount of each
Bond to be redeemed, together with the accrued interest thereon to such date, shall become due
and payable; and from and after such date, notice (if required) having been given and moneys
available for such redemption being on deposit with the Trustee in accordance with the
provisions of the Indenture, then notwithstanding that any Bonds called for redemption shall not
have been surrendered, no further interest shall accrue on any of such Bonds or portions thereof
to be redeemed. From and after such date of redemption (such notice having been given and
moneys available solely for such redemption being on deposit with the Trustee), the Bonds or
portions thereof to be redeemed shall not be deemed to be Outstanding under the Indenture and
the Issuer shall be under no further liability in respect thereof.



Book-Entry Only System

The information provided immediately below concerning DTC and the Book-Entry Only
System has been obtained from DTC and is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by,
and is not to be construed as a representation by, the Underwriter, the Issuer, the Trustee or the
Borrower.

Unless the book-entry system described herein is terminated, DTC will act as securities
depository for the Bonds. Each series of Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities
registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One or more fully-registered bond
certificates will be issued for each series of Bonds, and will be deposited with the Trustee on
behalf of DTC. Individual purchases of beneficial interests in the Bonds will be made in
increments of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof.

DTC and its Participants. DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-
purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization"
within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a
"clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a
"clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million
issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money
market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants")
deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of
sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need
for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-
U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain
other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing
Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing
Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing
agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system
is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks,
trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has Standard
& Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Direct and Indirect Participants
are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be
found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org. The contents of such websites do not constitute a part
of this Official Statement.

Purchases. Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through
Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership
interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on
the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written
confirmation from DTC of their purchases. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive
written confirmations providing details of the transactions, as well as periodic statements of their



holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participants through which the Beneficial Owner entered
into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by
entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in
the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

Transfers. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants
with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other
name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of the Bonds
with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not
effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial
Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct
and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf
of their customers.

Notices. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct
Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and
Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them,
subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to
them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders,
defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of
Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to
obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may
wish to provide their names and addresses to the Trustee and request that copies of notices be
provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are
being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct
Participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with
respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's
procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the issuer as soon as
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date
(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

NONE OF THE ISSUER, THE BORROWER OR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO SUCH PARTICIPANTS OR THE PERSONS FOR
WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE
PROVIDING OF NOTICE FOR THE DTC PARTICIPANTS, THE INDIRECT
PARTICIPANTS OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE BONDS. NEITHER THE
ISSUER NOR THE BORROWER CAN PROVIDE ANY ASSURANCE THAT DTC, DIRECT
PARTICIPANTS OR OTHERS WILL DISTRIBUTE PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL OF,



PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS PAID TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE,
AS THE REGISTERED OWNER, OR ANY NOTICES TO THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OR
THAT THEY WILL DO SO ON A TIMELY BASIS, OR THAT DTC WILL ACT IN THE
MANNER DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

Payments. Payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from
the Trustee on the relevant payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on
DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing
instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of
customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such
Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee or the Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment to Cede & Co. (or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the
Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC,
and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct
and Indirect Participants.

Discontinuance of Book-Entry-Only System. DTC may discontinue providing its
services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the
Issuer or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not
obtained, certificated Bonds are required to be printed and delivered to the holders of record.

The Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers
through DTC (or a successor securities depository) with respect to the Bonds. Under current
industry practices, however, DTC would notify its Direct or Indirect Participants of the Issuer's
decision but will only withdraw beneficial interests from a Bond at the request of any Direct or
Indirect Participant. In that event, certificates for the Bonds will be printed and delivered.

No Assurance Regarding DTC Practices

The foregoing information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system
has been obtained from sources that the Issuer believes to be reliable, but the Issuer, the
Borrower, the Underwriter, and the Trustee take no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds as nominee of DTC,
references herein to the holders or registered owners of the Bonds will mean Cede & Co. and
will not mean the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

None of the Issuer, the Trustee or the Underwriter will have any responsibility or
obligation to the Participants, DTC or the persons for whom they act with respect to (i) the
accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or by any Direct or Indirect Participant of DTC, (ii)
payments or the providing of notice to the Direct Participants, the Indirect Participants or the
Beneficial Owners, (ii1) the selection by DTC or by any Direct or Indirect Participant of any



Beneficial Owner to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Bonds or (iv)
any other action taken by DTC or its partnership nominee as owner of the Bonds.

THE ISSUER

The Issuer was created pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969,
Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, as amended, through an Interlocal Agreement dated as of
December 1, 1998 (the "Interlocal Agreement"), initially by and among the City of Stuart,
Florida, the City of Deland, Florida and the City of Rockledge, Florida. Subsequent to that date,
other municipalities and counties have joined in the Interlocal Agreement, including Gadsden
County, Florida, Jackson County, Florida and Leon County, Florida.

The Issuer is a separate legal entity created for the purpose of enabling participating
municipalities and counties or other participating governmental entities to finance or refinance
(including reimbursement of prior expenditures) undertakings on a cooperative and cost effective
basis and to benefit from the economies of scale associated with larger scale financings which
might otherwise be unrealized if separate financings were undertaken. The Bonds are being
issued in furtherance of the Issuer's program (the "Program") of making loans to participating
governmental units. Pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement, the Issuer has the power to issue,
from time to time, in various series, bonds, notes or other obligations to finance and re-finance
loans to participating governmental entities.

Membership in the Issuer consists of those governmental entities which from time to time
have been admitted to membership by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the board of directors
of the Issuer and which have joined in the Interlocal Agreement. While membership in the
Issuer is open to other governmental entities, membership in the Issuer is not a pre-condition to
becoming a borrower under the Program.

The Issuer is governed by a board of directors which consists of not less than one or more
than seven elected public officials, each of which shall be appointed by the President of the
Florida League of Cities, Inc. There is no limitation upon the term of office of a director, and
directors serve until the expiration of their term in elected office, their resignation or their
removal. A director may be removed upon the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the
members of the Issuer.

The duration of the Issuer shall continue so long as any obligation of the Issuer or any
obligation of any participating governmental entity issued under the Program remains

outstanding.

The Bonds constitute the twentieth series of bonds to be issued by the Issuer.



The current Board of Directors of the Issuer consists of the following elected officials

Chairman Isaac Salver, Councilman, Town of Bay Harbor Islands
Vice-Chair Lawrence I. Ady, Council Vice-Chair, City of Belle Isle
Frank C. Ortis, Mayor, City of Pembroke Pines
Carmine Priore, Vice-Mayor, Village of Wellington
Julio Robaina, Mayor, City of Hialeah
Heyward Strong, Jr., Mayor Pro Tem, City of Valparaiso
Bill Arrowsmith, Vice-Mayor, City of Apopka

THE ADMINISTRATOR AND THE ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT
The Administrator

The Administrator of the Issuer's Program is the Florida League of Cities, Inc., a Florida
non-profit corporation established in 1922. The mission of the Administrator, as outlined in its
charter, is primarily to provide assistance to Florida municipalities on matters of common
interest. The Administrator will provide loan origination and administration services under the
Indenture pursuant to the Program Administration Agreement (hereinafter described).

The Administrator is a Florida corporation not-for-profit. The Administrator is organized
on a non-stock membership basis. The members of the Administrator consist of over 400 Florida
cities and counties. The Administrator is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of 54
members. Directors are elected by the members of the Administrator.

In addition to the Issuer's nineteen outstanding bond issues, the Administrator has also
provided loan origination and administration services in connection with other prior loan pools
established by entities other than the Issuer and, in that capacity, has participated in the
origination of numerous loans to Florida municipalities and counties.

In addition to loan pool origination and administration services, the Administrator
provides services to its members in the areas of pool insurance and advice on current and
emerging constitutional, legislative, and regulatory issues. The Administrator has 180 full-time
employees and an annual operating budget of approximately $27.0 million.

The Bonds are not obligations of the Administrator. The Administrator is neither
obligated nor expected to advance its own funds to pay principal of or interest on the Bonds or to
perform the other obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture.

The Administration Agreement

The Issuer and the Administrator have entered into an ongoing Administration
Agreement (the "Administration Agreement"). Under the terms of the Administration
Agreement, the Administrator agrees to receive and review applications of municipalities and
counties to participate in the Program and to forward the same to any institutions as may be
providing credit support for the Program. The Administrator agrees to meet with representatives
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of applicants and to aid applicants in determining whether to participate in the Program. The
Administrator agrees to abide by the terms of the Indenture and to use its best efforts to ensure
that the Loan comply with the terms of the Indenture. Under the terms of the Administration
Agreement, the Administrator is to be paid a semi-annual fee based upon the principal balance of
all Loans outstanding. The annual amount of the fee does not exceed 1/10 of one percent of the
par amount of the Loan outstanding, and based upon the original par amount at issuance for each
individual Loan, the fee decreases as a percentage as the par amount increases above certain
levels.

THE BORROWER

CERTAIN OF THE INFORMATION HEREIN REGARDING THE BORROWER IS
BEYOND THE KNOWLEDGE OF THE ISSUER. WHILE THE ISSUER HAS NO REASON
TO BELIEVE THAT SUCH INFORMATION IS INCOMPLETE OR INACCURATE, THE
ISSUER HAS NOT INDEPENDENTLY INVESTIGATED OR CONFIRMED THE
ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS THEREOF AND HAS INCLUDED SUCH
INFORMATION IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN RELIANCE UPON THE
REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTY OF THE BORROWER THAT SUCH
INFORMATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE STATEMENT OF A MATERIAL
FACT AND DOES NOT OMIT TO STATE ANY MATERIAL FACT NECESSARY IN
ORDER TO MAKE THE STATEMENTS MADE HEREIN, IN THE LIGHT OF THE
CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH THEY ARE MADE, NOT MISLEADING.

The Borrower is the Village of Pinecrest, Florida. The Village of Pinecrest is located in
Miami-Dade County, Florida. It was incorporated in 1996 and has an estimated population of
19,454. Financial information with respect to the Village of Pinecrest is contained in Appendix
F hereof.

PURPOSE OF THE BONDS
General

The proceeds to be received by the Issuer from the sale of the Bonds will be used by the
Issuer to make the Loan to the Borrower for the purpose of providing funds to (i) in the case of
the Series 2011B-1 Bonds, finance or refund a loan made from proceeds of the Issuer's Refunded
Bonds, thereby permitting refunding of the Refunded Bonds, (ii) fund, in the case of the Series
2011B-2 Bonds, certain capital improvements, and (iii) pay costs and expenses related to the
issuance of the Bonds.

Under the terms of the Indenture, an amount sufficient to pay the costs of issuance of the
Bonds will be deposited into a Costs of Issuance Fund and the balance of the proceeds of (i) the
Series 2011B-1 Bonds will be deposited into an escrow fund for the purposes of retiring the
Refunded Bonds, and (ii) the Series 2011B-2 Bonds will be deposited into the Project Loan Fund
established under the Indenture and used to finance the Borrower's proposed capital
improvements.
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The Borrower is borrowing the proceeds of the Series 2011B-1 Bonds for the purposes of
repaying its loan under the Issuer's 1999 Program. Proceeds of such refunded loan were
originally used to provide for the acquisition of a municipal park and government office
building. The Borrower is borrowing the proceeds of the Series 2011B-2 Bonds for the purpose
of financing the cost of certain additional capital improvements in and for the Village of
Pinecrest. The Loan is expected to be repaid over a period of 20 years. See "APPENDIX F —
Financial Information Regarding the Village of Pinecrest," for certain financial information with
respect to the Borrower.

Plan of Refunding

Upon issuance of the Bonds, the Issuer will deposit with Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas, as escrow agent (the “Escrow Holder”), an amount necessary to either (i) purchase
federal securities (the “Federal Securities”), the principal and interest on which shall be
sufficient, or (ii) to deposit an amount in cash, in either case in an amount necessary to pay
principal of and interest on such Refunded Bonds to the earliest redemption date, and to call such
Refunded Bonds in full on such redemption date. Based upon such deposit, the pro rata portion
of the Refunded Bonds (and underlying Loan Agreement associated therewith) will as of the
issuance of the Bonds no longer be outstanding under the indentures creating the same. See
"VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL ACCURACY" herein for a discussion of the
verification report issued in connection with such escrow.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES

The following table sets forth the estimated sources and uses of funds in connection with
the Bonds:

SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Par AINOUNT <. et e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeseaaeaeens $5,825,000.00
Net Original Issue DIiSCOUNt..........cocuiiriiiiiiiiieiieeieeee e (52,097.85)
TOTAL SOURCES ..ottt $5,772,902.15
USES OF FUNDS:
Deposit to Project Loan Fund ..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee $1,435,000.00
ESCTOW DEPOSIE.....vieivieiiiiicieceiecit ettt $4,220,260.55
COSES OF ISSUANCE! ..ot $ 117,641.60
TOTAL USES ... ettt sttt eneas $5,772,902.15

) This includes legal fees, underwriters discount, costs of printing and other incidental
expenses.
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SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT
Limited Obligations; Trust Estate

The Bonds are not a general debt, liability or obligation of the Issuer, but are
limited obligations of the Issuer, payable solely from (i) the payments to be made by the
Borrower pursuant to the Loan Agreement, (ii) all amounts in certain funds and accounts
created pursuant to the Indenture, and (iii) all Revenues, any and all other property, rights
and interest of every kind and nature from time to time hereafter by delivery or by writing
of any kind subjected to the Indenture, as and for additional security for the Bonds, by the
Issuer or by any other person on its behalf or with its written consent (collectively, the
"Trust Estate'), as more fully described herein. The obligations of the Borrower pursuant
to the Loan Agreement are not a general debt, liability or obligation of the Borrower, but
are limited obligations of the Borrower payable from the sources described herein. The
Bonds are not a debt, liability or obligation of the State of Florida or any political
subdivision or entity thereof other than the Issuer.

The proceeds to be received by the Issuer from the sale of the Bonds will be loaned by
the Issuer to the Borrower pursuant to the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement provides that
the Borrower will make payments to the Trustee (the "Basic Payments") in such amounts and at
such times so as to provide sufficient funds to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest
on the Loan. The aggregate principal and interest payments included in the Basic Payments
scheduled to be made by the Borrower equal the scheduled debt service on the Bonds as a whole.

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Borrower has agreed to appropriate in its annual
budget, by amendment, if required, and to pay when due under the Loan Agreement, as promptly
as money becomes available, amounts of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues (hereinafter defined) of the
Borrower sufficient to satisfy the Loan Repayment obligations of the Borrower. "Non-Ad
Valorem Revenues" means all revenues and taxes of the Borrower derived from any source
whatever, other than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property, which are legally
available for Loan Repayments.

Pursuant to the Indenture, the Issuer has assigned and pledged to the Trustee all of the
Issuer's right, title and interest (with certain exceptions specified therein) in and to the Loan
Agreement, including the Issuer's right to receive Loan Repayments, as the source of payment of
and security for the Bonds.

Anti-Dilution Covenant
The Borrower has covenanted (such covenant being referred to as the "Anti-Dilution
Covenant") that as soon as practicable upon the issuance of debt which is secured by its Non-Ad

Valorem Revenues, it will deliver to the Issuer a certificate setting forth the calculations of the
financial ratios described below and certifying that it is in compliance with such covenants:
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(1) Non-Ad Valorem Revenues (average of actual receipts over the prior two
years) must cover projected maximum annual debt service on debt secured by and/or payable
solely from such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues by at least 150%; and

(i1) projected maximum annual debt service requirements for all debt secured
by and/or payable solely from such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues will not exceed 20% of
Governmental Fund Revenues (defined as General Fund, Special Fund, Debt Service Fund and
Capital Projects Fund), exclusive of (x) ad valorem revenues restricted to payment of debt
service on any debt and (y) any debt proceeds, based on the Borrower's audited financial
statements (average of actual receipts over the prior two years).

For purposes of the foregoing, "maximum annual debt service" means the lesser of the
actual maximum annual debt service on all debt or 15% of the original par amount of the debt, in
each case, secured by the Borrower's Non-Ad Valorem Revenues.

Additional Bonds: Permitted Parity Indebtedness

No additional Bonds or debt of the Issuer may be issued pursuant to the Indenture.
However, the Issuer may issue additional indebtedness, including future series of bonds, for any
other purposes of the Issuer (including in order to make a loan to Borrower), provided that such
indebtedness may not be payable from the Trust Estate pledged to the repayment of the Bonds.
There is no limitation on the issuance of additional debt by the Borrower except as may result
from compliance with the obligations described above under the caption "Anti-Dilution
Covenant."

The Covenants to Budget and Appropriate

In the Loan Agreement, the Borrower covenants and agrees to appropriate (such covenant
being referred to as the "Covenant to Budget and Appropriate") in its annual budget, by
amendment if required, and to pay when due under the Loan Agreement, as promptly as money
becomes available, amounts of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of the Borrower to satisfy its Loan
Repayment obligations. Such covenant is subject in all respects to the payment of obligations
secured by a pledge of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues heretofore or hereinafter entered into. The
Borrower does not covenant to maintain any services or programs which generate Non-Ad
Valorem Revenues or to maintain the charges it collects as of the date of this Official Statement
for any such services or programs.

"Non-Ad Valorem Revenues" means all revenues and taxes of the Borrower derived from
any source whatever, other than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property, and which
are legally available for Loan Repayments.

In Florida, the revenues received by municipalities may be classified based upon whether
such revenues are derived from ad valorem taxation. Ad valorem taxes are taxes levied by
municipalities upon taxable real and tangible personal property located within the geographic
jurisdiction of the municipality. Ad valorem taxes are levied based upon the assessed value of
taxable property, and are imposed at a uniform rate per thousand dollars of assessed value. This
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rate is referred to as the "millage rate," with one mill representing one dollar of ad valorem taxes
per thousand dollars of assessed valuation. Exclusive of millage levied pursuant to the approval
of the qualified electors of a municipality, municipalities may not levy ad valorem taxes at a rate
in excess of ten mills annually.

Revenues received by a municipality other than from ad valorem taxation are referred to
as "Non-Ad Valorem Revenues." Florida municipalities collect Non-Ad Valorem Revenues
from a variety of sources. Certain Non-Ad Valorem Revenues are not lawfully available to be
used by municipalities to satisfy their Loan Repayments. The primary sources of Non-Ad
Valorem Revenues generally consist of half-cent sales tax revenues distributed to the
municipality from the State, state revenue sharing monies, utility and communication tax
revenues, franchise fees, license and permit fees.

Under the terms of the Loan Agreement, the Borrower may pledge its Non-Ad Valorem
Revenues to obligations that it issues in the future. In the event of any such pledge, such Non-
Ad Valorem Revenues would be required to be applied to said obligations prior to being used to
repay a loan.

The amount and availability of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of the Borrower are subject to
change, including reduction or elimination by change of state law or changes in the facts and
circumstances according to which certain of the Non-Ad Valorem Revenues are collected. The
amount of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues collected by the Borrower 1is, in certain circumstances,
beyond the control of the Borrower.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Outstanding Borrower Covenant-to-Budget Indebtedness; Calculations of Anti-Dilution
Test Compliance; Historical Pro Forma Debt Service Coverage

Set forth below is a brief description of other covenant to budget-secured indebtedness of
the Borrower, a calculation of the Borrower's compliance with the anti-dilution test described
above as of September 30, 2009, and historical pro forma debt service coverage for fiscal years
2005-20009.

At the time of issuance of the Bonds, the Borrower will also have outstanding loans
related to the Issuer's Series 1999, Series 2002A Bonds and Series 2004A-1 Bonds secured by a
covenant to budget and appropriate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues in addition to the Loan relating
to the Bonds. Set forth below is the schedule of debt service on the combined obligations
secured by a covenant to budget and appropriate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)
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Village of Pinecrest Combined Debt Service

Fiscal FMLC FLMC FMLC FMLC

Year 1999 2002A 2004A-1 2011B Total

2011 $424,337.50 $625,875.00 $239,987.50 $256,437.64 $1,546,637.64
2012 626,850.00 239,787.50 719,050.00 1,585,687.50
2013 624,100.00 239,387.50 718,700.00 1,582,187.50
2014 623,750.00 238,787.50 722,900.00 1,585,437.50
2015 627,300.00 237,806.26 716,550.00 1,581,656.26
2016 624,475.00 236,431.26 717,175.00 1,578,081.26
2017 625,550.00 239,650.00 715,950.00 1,581,150.00
2018 625,250.00 237,225.00 722,800.00 1,585,275.00
2019 628,575.00 239,575.00 717,325.00 1,585,475.00
2020 625,250.00 236,250.00 119,750.00 981,250.00
2021 628,250.00 237,000.00 116,250.00 981,500.00
2022 624,750.00 237,250.00 117,750.00 979,750.00
2023 237,000.00 119,000.00 356,000.00
2024 236,250.00 120,000.00 356,250.00
2025 120,750.00 120,750.00
2026 121,250.00 121,250.00
2027 121,500.00 121,500.00
2028 121,500.00 121,500.00
2029 121,250.00 121,250.00
2030 120,750.00 120,750.00
Total $424,337.50 $7,509,975.00 $3,332,387.52  $7,326,637.64 $18,593,337.66

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK)
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Set forth below is the calculation of anti-dilution test compliance with respect to the
Village of Pinecrest as of September 30, 2009 (but taking into account the issuance of the Series
2011B Bonds):

Village of Pinecrest Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Anti-Dilution Test

Village of Pinecrest Non-Ad Valorem Revenue
Anti-Dilution Test

Revenues
Prior Two-
FY 2008 FY 2009 Year Average
Total Governmental Funds $19,627,789 $24,910,730 $22,269,260
Less: Ad Valorem Revenues (7,368,609) (7,483,478) (7,426,044)
Total Governmental Non-Ad Valorem Revenues 12,259,180 17,427,252 14,843,216
Less: Restricted Funds
Transportation Fund (1,081,081) (934,390) (1,007,736)
Capital Projects Fund (1,208,557) (6,967,049) (4,087,803)
CITT Public Transit Fund (59,614) - (29,807)
Other Governmental Funds (102,852) (226,573) (164,713)
Adjusted Non-Ad Valorem Revenues $9,807,076 $9,299,240 $9,553,158
Expenditures
Essential Expenditures
Public Safety $6,464,736 $6,786,106 $6,625,421
General Government 2,638,139 2,812,996 2,725,568
Total Essential Expenditures 9,102,875 9,599,102 9,350,989
Less: Ad-Valorem Revenues Available to
pay Essential Expenditures (7,368,609) (7,483,478) (7,426,044)
Adjusted Essential Expenditures 1,734,266 2,115,624 1,924,945
Net Non-Ad Valorem Revenues available for
Debt Service $8,072,810 $7,183,616 $7,628,213
Ad Valorem Revenues Restricted For Debt
Service - _ ;
Debt Proceeds - - -

Test 1 - Prior Two Year Avg of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues covers projected MADS by 150%

2008-2009
Net Non-Ad Valorem Revenues available for Debt Service $7,628,213
Maximum Annual Non-Ad Valorem Debt Service 1,585,688
Coverage 481.1%

Test 2 - Projected MADS does not exceed 20% of prior two-year average of Governmental Fund
Revenues, less ad valorem revenues restricted for debt service and debt proceeds

2008-2009
Two -Year Average Net Total Governmental Funds $22,269,260
Maximum Annual Non-Ad Valorem Debt Service 1,585,688
Percentage 7.12%

Source: Village of Pinecrest Finance Department.

17



Set forth below is a table showing historical pro forma debt service coverage of the
Village of Pinecrest's Loan relating to the Issuer's Series 2002A Bonds, Series 2004A-1 Bonds
and the Series 2011B Bonds.

Village of Pinecrest Historical Non-Ad Valorem Revenues

FY 2005 through FY 2009
Revenues
FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009
Total Governmental Funds $16,855,808 $19,065,538 $20,083,522 $19,627,789  $24,910,730
Less: Ad valorem Revenues (6,295,419) (7,117,029) (8,132,032) (7,368,609) (7,483,478)

Total Governmental Non-Ad Valorem Revenues 10,560,389 11,948,509 11,951,490 12,259,180 17,427,252
Less:  Restricted Funds

Transportation Fund (1,151,703) (1,303,565) (1,459,692) (1,081,081) (934,390)

Capital Projects Fund (278,360) (228,757) (226,663) (1,208,557) (6,967,049)

CITT Public Transit Fund - - - (59,614) -

Other Governmental Funds (7,098) (134,910) (170,651) (102,852) (226,573)
Adjusted Non-Ad Valorem Revenues $9,122.728  $10,281,277  $10,094,484 $9,807,076 $9,299.240
Expenditures

FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009

Essential Expenditures

Public Safety $6,328,189 $6,586,827 $6,610,386 $6,464,736 $6,786,106

General Government 1,045,502 2,128,999 2,810,851 2,638,139 2,812,996
Total Essential Expenditures 7,373,691 8,715,826 9,421,237 9,102,875 9,599,102
Less:  Ad-Valorem Revenues Available to pay

Essential Expenditures (6,295,419) (7,117,029) (8,132,032) (7,368,609) (7,483,478)
Adjusted Essential Expenditures 1,078,272 1,598,797 1,289,205 1,734,266 2,115,624
Net Non-Ad Valorem Revenues available for
Debt Service $8,044,456 $8,682,480 $8,805,279 $8,072,810 $7,183,616

Scenario 1 - Existing Coverage

FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009
Less: Maximum Annual Debt Service on
Existing Government Fund Debt (1,492,994) (1,492,994) (1,492,994) (1,492,994) (1,492,994)
Legally Available Non-Ad Valorem Revenues
after MADS 6,551,462 7,189,486 7,312,285 6,579,816 5,690,622
Existing Coverage 5.39 5.82 5.90 5.41 4.81
Scenario 2 - Coverage After 2011 Financing
FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009
Less: Maximum Annual Debt Service on
Existing Government Fund Debt
including 2011 Issue (1,585,688) (1,585,688) (1,585,688) (1,585,688) (1,585,688)
Legally Available Non-Ad Valorem Revenues
after MADS 6,458,769 7,096,793 7,219,592 6,487,123 5,597,929
Existing Coverage after 2011 Bonds 5.07 5.48 5.55 5.09 4.53

Source: Village of Pinecrest Finance Department, derived from audited financial statements for fiscal years 2005 through 2009.
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Financial Information Regarding the Borrower

Appendix F includes financial information about the Borrower.

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

The following table sets forth the total annual scheduled debt service requirements for the Bonds.

Series 2011B-1

Series 2011B-2

Aggregate Series 2011B

Year
Ending

October 1 Total Debt Total Annual Total Annual
(Inclusive)  Principal Interest Service Principal Interest Debt Service Principal Interest Debt Service
2011 $115,000 $74,811.84 $189.111.84 $ 30,000 $ 74,811.84 $ 189,811.84 § 145000 $ 11,437.64 $ 256,437.64
2012 475,000 126,562.50 601,562.50 55,000 126,562.50 601,562.50 530,000 189,050.00 719,050.00
2013 490,000 112,312.50 602,312.50 55,000 112,312.50 602,312.50 545,000 173,700.00 718,700.00
2014 505,000 97,612.50 602,612.50 60,000 97,612.50 602,612.50 565,000 157,900.00 722,900.00
2015 515,000 82,462.50 597,462.50 60,000 82,462.50 597,462.50 575,000 141,550.00 716,550.00
2016 530,000 69,587.50 599,587.50 60,000 69,587.50 599,587.50 590,000 127,175.00 717,175.00
2017 545,000 55,012.50 600,012.50 60,000 55,012.50 600,012.50 605,000 110,950.00 715,950.00
2018 565,000 38,662.50 603,662.50 65,000 38,662.50 603,662.50 630,000 92,800.00 722,800.00
2019 580,000 20,300.00 600,300.00 65,000 20,300.00 600,300.00 645,000 72,325.00 717,325.00
2020 70,000 49,750.00 119,750.00 70,000 49,750.00 119,750.00
2021 70,000 46,250.00 116,250.00 70,000 46,250.00 116,250.00
2022 75,000 42,750.00 117,750.00 75,000 42,750.00 117,750.00
2023 80,000 39,000.00 119,000.00 80,000 39,000.00 119,000.00
2024 85,000 35,000.00 120,000.00 85,000 35,000.00 120,000.00
2025 90,000 30,750.00 120,750.00 90,000 30,750.00 120,750.00
2026 95,000 26,250.00 121,250.00 95,000 26,250.00 121,250.00
2027 100,000 21,500.00 121,500.00 100,000 21,500.00 121,500.00
2028 105,000 16,500.00 121,500.00 105,000 16,500.00 121,500.00
2029 110,000 11,250.00 121,250.00 110,000 11,250.00 121,250.00
2030 115.000 5.750.00 120.750.00 115,000 5.750.00 120.750.00
$4,320,000 $677,324.34 $4,997,324.34 $1,505,000 $824,313.30 $2,329,313.30 $5,825,000 $1,501,637.64 $7,326,637.64

VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL ACCURACY

The arithmetical accuracy of (i) the mathematical computations supporting the adequacy
of the maturing principal amounts of, and interest accrued on the Federal Securities, together
with moneys, if any, deposited with the Escrow Holder to pay when due, pursuant to stated
maturity or call for redemption, the principal, redemption premium and interest on the Refunded
Bonds, to be defeased as described herein, and (ii) the computation of the actuarial yield, used by
Bond Counsel to support the opinion that interest on the Refunded Bonds is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes, have been verified by Causey Demgen & Moore, Inc.,
independent certified public accountants, as a condition of the delivery of the Bonds.
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TAX MATTERS

General

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") establishes certain
requirements which must be met subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest on
the Bonds be and remain excluded from gross income for purposes of Federal income taxation.
Non-compliance may cause interest on the Bonds to be included in Federal gross income
retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds, regardless of the date on which such non-
compliance occurs or is ascertained. These requirements include, but are not limited to,
provisions which prescribe yield and other limits within which the proceeds of the Bonds and the
other amounts are to be invested and require that certain investment earnings on the foregoing
must be rebated on a periodic basis to the Treasury Department of the United States. The Issuer
has covenanted in the Indenture and the Borrower have covenanted in their Loan Agreement to
comply with such requirements in order to maintain the exclusion from Federal gross income of
the interest on the Bonds.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, assuming compliance with certain covenants, under
existing laws, regulations, judicial decisions and rulings, interest on the Bonds is excluded from
gross income for purposes of Federal income taxation. Interest on the Bonds is not an item of
tax preference for purposes of the Federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals or
corporations; however, interest on the Bonds may be subject to the Federal alternative minimum
tax when any Bond is held by a corporation. The Federal alternative minimum taxable income
of a corporation must be increased by 75% of the excess of such corporation's adjusted current
earnings over its alternative minimum taxable income (before this adjustment and the alternative
tax net operating loss deduction). "Adjusted Current Earnings" may include a portion of the
interest on the Bonds for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax on corporations.
Prospective bondholders should consult with their tax specialists for information and advice with
respect to adjusted current earnings.

Except as described above, Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding the Federal
income tax consequences resulting from the ownership of, receipt or accrual of interest on, or
disposition of Bonds. Prospective purchasers of Bonds should be aware that the ownership of
Bonds may result in collateral Federal income tax consequences, including (i) the denial of a
deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry Bonds, (ii) the
reduction of the loss reserve deduction for property and casualty insurance companies by 15% of
certain items, including interest on the Bonds, (ii1) the inclusion of interest on the Bonds in
earnings of certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States for purposes of a
branch profits tax, (iv) the inclusion of interest on Bonds in passive income subject to Federal
income taxation of certain Subchapter S corporations with Subchapter C earnings and profits at
the close of the taxable year, and (v) the inclusion of interest on the Bonds in "modified adjusted
gross income" by recipients of certain Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits for
purposes of determining whether such benefits are included in gross income for Federal income
tax purposes.

As to questions of fact material to the opinion of Bond Counsel, Bond Counsel will rely
upon representations and covenants made on behalf of the Issuer and the Borrower, certificates
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of appropriate officers and certificates of public officials (including certifications as to the use of
proceeds of the Bonds), without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.
PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP, SALE OR DISPOSITION OF THE BONDS AND THE RECEIPT
OR ACCRUAL OF THE INTEREST THEREON MAY HAVE ADVERSE FEDERAL TAX
CONSEQUENCES FOR CERTAIN INDIVIDUAL AND CORPORATE BONDHOLDERS,
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE CONSEQUENCES DESCRIBED ABOVE.
PROSPECTIVE BONDHOLDERS SHOULD CONSULT WITH THEIR TAX SPECIALISTS
FOR INFORMATION IN THAT REGARD.

Other Tax Matters. Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to the
income tax status of interest on the Bonds in their particular state or local jurisdiction. During
recent years, legislative proposals have been introduced in Congress, and in some cases enacted,
that altered certain federal tax consequences resulting from the ownership of obligations that are
similar to the Bonds. In some cases these proposals have contained provisions that altered these
consequences on a retroactive basis. Such alteration of federal tax consequences may have
affected the market value of obligations similar to the Bonds. From time to time, legislative
proposals are pending which could have an effect on both the federal tax consequences resulting
from ownership of the Bonds and their market value. No assurance can be given that legislative
proposals will not be enacted that would apply to, or have an adverse effect upon, the Bonds.

Tax Treatment of Original Issue Discount. Under the Code, the difference between the
maturity amount of the Series 2011B-1 Bonds maturing on October 1, 2015 through October 1,
2019, and the Series 2011B-2 Bonds maturing on October 1, 2014 through October 1, 2019, and
on October 1, 2030 (collectively, the "Discount Bonds"), and the initial offering price to the
public, excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity
of underwriters or wholesalers, at which price a substantial amount of the Discount Bonds of the
same maturity was sold is "original issue discount." Original issue discount will accrue over the
term of the Discount Bonds at a constant interest rate compounded periodically. A purchaser
who acquires the Discount Bonds in the initial offering at a price equal to the initial offering
price thereof to the public will be treated as receiving an amount of interest excludable from
gross income for federal income tax purposes equal to the original issue discount accruing during
the period he or she holds the Discount Bonds, and will increase his adjusted basis in the
Discount Bonds by the amount of such accruing discount for purposes of determining taxable
gain or loss on the sale or other disposition of the Discount Bonds. The federal income tax
consequences of the purchase, ownership and redemption, sale or other disposition of the
Discount Bonds which are not purchased in the initial offering at the initial offering price may be
determined according to rules which differ from those above. Bondholders of the Discount
Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the precise determination for federal
income tax purposes of interest accrued upon sale, redemption or other disposition of the
Discount Bonds and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning and
disposing of the Discount Bonds.

Tax Treatment of Bond Premium The difference between the principal amount of the
Bonds other than the Discount Bonds (the "Premium Bonds") and the initial offering price to the
public (excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity
of underwriters or wholesalers) at which price a substantial amount of such Premium Bonds of
the same maturity was sold constitutes to an initial purchaser amortizable bond premium which
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is not deductible from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The amount of amortizable
bond premium for a taxable year is determined actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over
the term of each of the Premium Bonds, which ends on the earlier of the maturity or call date for
each of the Premium Bonds which minimizes the yield on such Premium Bonds to the purchaser.
For purposes of determining gain or loss on the sale or other disposition of a Premium Bond, an
initial purchaser who acquires such obligation in the initial offering price is required to decrease
such purchaser's adjusted basis in such Premium Bond annually by the amount of amortizable
bond premium for the taxable year. The amortization of bond premium may be taken into
account as a reduction in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various
other tax consequences of owning such Premium Bonds. Bondholders of the Premium Bonds
are advised that they should consult with their own advisors with respect to the state and local
tax consequences of owning such Premium Bonds.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. Interest paid on tax-exempt bonds such
as the Bonds is subject to information reporting to the Internal Revenue Service in a manner
similar to interest paid on taxable obligations. This reporting requirement does not affect the
excludability of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes.
However, in conjunction with that information reporting requirement, the Code subjects certain
non-corporate owners of Bonds, under certain circumstances, to "backup withholding" at (i) the
fourth lowest rate of tax applicable under Section 1(c) of the Code (i.e., a rate applicable to
unmarried individuals) for taxable years beginning on or before December 31, 2010; and (ii) the
rate of 31% for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2010, with respect to payments on
the Bonds and proceeds from the sale of Bonds. Any amount so withheld would be refunded or
allowed as a credit against the federal income tax of such owner of Bonds. This withholding
generally applies if the owner of Bonds (i) fails to furnish the payor such owner's social security
number or other taxpayer identification number ("TIN"), (i1) furnished the payor an incorrect
TIN, (ii1) fails to properly report interest, dividends, or other "reportable payments" as defined in
the Code, or (iv) under certain circumstances, fails to provide the payor or such owner's
securities broker with a certified statement, signed under penalty of perjury, that the TIN
provided is correct and that such owner is not subject to backup withholding. Prospective
purchasers of the Bonds may also wish to consult with their tax advisors with respect to the need
to furnish certain taxpayer information in order to avoid backup withholding.

LITIGATION

On the date of delivery of the Bonds, the Borrower will certify that there is no action,
suit, proceeding or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, public board or body,
pending, or to the best of the Borrower's knowledge, threatened, against or affecting the
Borrower wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially and adversely
affect the Borrower, its financial condition or its ability to comply with its obligations under the
Loan Agreement or the validity or enforceability of the Loan Agreement.

On the date of delivery of the Bonds, the Issuer will certify that there is no action, suit,

proceeding or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, public board or body,
pending, or to the best knowledge of the Issuer, threatened, against or affecting the Issuer,
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wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially and adversely affect the
validity of the Bonds, the Indenture or the Loan Agreement.

VALIDATION

On February 13, 2003, the Circuit Court of the Second Judicial Circuit of Florida in and
for Leon County, Florida, entered an order validating the Bonds. The time for filing an appeal
from such judgment expired with no appeal having been filed.

SEC ORDER; VOLUNTARY CLOSING AGREEMENT

On July 19, 2010, the Issuer and the City of South Miami ("South Miami") initiated with
the Internal Revenue Service the process for requesting a voluntary closing agreement to resolve
several issues which came to the attention of the Issuer and could affect the tax-exempt status of
certain prior bonds issued by the Issuer. Specifically, South Miami was a borrower of a portion
of the proceeds of the Issuer's Series 2002A and Series 2006 Bonds. South Miami has made the
Issuer aware of an issue with regard to the use of the proceeds of such bonds and a long-term
lease of a parking facility. On July 19, 2010, the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission issued an Order Directing Private Investigation and Designating Officers to Take
Testimony, alleging that in the underwriting, offering, sale and purchase of such bonds that there
may have been made false statements of a material fact or a failure to disclose material facts
concerning, among other things, the tax-exempt status of such bonds. The Issuer intends to
cooperate fully with the IRS and SEC in evaluating the matter. However, no action in
connection with such issues is expected to have any impact on the Bonds or the tax-exempt
status thereof.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale by the Issuer of the
Bonds are subject to the approving opinion of Bryant Miller Olive P.A., bond counsel. Bond
counsel has not undertaken to independently verify, and therefore expresses no opinion as to the
accuracy, completeness or fairness of any of the statements in this Official Statement or in the
Appendices hereto, except as to the correctness of the information in the sections hereof
captioned "THE BONDS" (except for the information contained in the subheading thereunder
captioned "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM" as to which no opinion will be expressed),
"SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT" and "TAX MATTERS." A form of the
approving opinion of bond counsel is included herein as Appendix E. Certain legal matters will
be passed upon for the Issuer by Kraig A. Conn, Esquire, counsel to the Issuer, as assistant
general counsel to the Florida League of Cities, Inc. and for the Underwriter by their counsel,
Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Borrower by
their respective counsel.

Bond Counsel and counsel to the Underwriter will receive fees for services rendered in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds, which fees are contingent upon the issuance and sale
of the Bonds.
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RATINGS

Standard and Poor's Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies and
Fitch, Inc. have assigned ratings of "AA+" and "AA", respectively, to the Bonds. The ratings
reflect only the views of the rating agencies and an explanation of the significance of the ratings
may be obtained only from the rating agencies. The ratings are not a recommendation to buy,
sell or hold the Bonds and there is no assurance that such ratings will remain in effect for any
given period of time or that they will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely if, in the
judgment of either or both of the rating agencies, circumstances so warrant. Any downward
revision or withdrawal of such ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the
Bonds. Neither the Underwriter nor the Issuer have undertaken responsibility to bring to the
attention of the holders of the Bonds any proposed revision or withdrawal of the ratings of the
Bonds, or to oppose any proposed revision or withdrawal.

UNDERWRITING

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, the Underwriter, has agreed, subject to certain
customary conditions precedent, to purchase the Bonds at a price of $5,731,275.90 (which
includes net original issue discount of $52,097.85 and underwriters discount of $41,626.25), and
to reoffer the Bonds at the prices shown on the inside cover hereof. If obligated to purchase any
of the Bonds, the Underwriter will be obligated to purchase all of the Bonds. The initial public
offering prices may be changed from time to time by the Underwriter.

There can be no assurance that there will be a secondary market for purchase or sale of
the Bonds. Depending upon prevailing market conditions, including the financial condition or
market positions of firms which may make the secondary market, evaluation of the Borrower'
capabilities and the financial condition and results of their operations, there may not be a
secondary market for the Bonds from time to time, and investors in the Bonds may be unable to
divest themselves of their interests therein.

Wells Fargo Securities is the trade name for certain capital markets and investment
banking services of Wells Fargo & Company and its subsidiaries, including Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association.

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, sole underwriter of the Bonds, has entered into
an agreement (the "Distribution Agreement") with Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC ("WFA") for the
retail distribution of certain municipal securities offerings, including the Bonds. Pursuant to the
Distribution Agreement, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association will share a portion of its
underwriting compensation with respect to the Bonds with WFA. Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association and WFA are both subsidiaries of Wells Fargo & Company.
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FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUER

The Issuer has retained Waters and Company, LLC, Birmingham, Alabama, as Financial
Advisor in connection with the Bonds. The Financial Advisor is not obligated to undertake and
has not undertaken to make, an independent verification or to assume responsibility for the
accuracy, completeness or fairness of the information contained in this Official Statement.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In compliance with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c¢2-12 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (17 CFR Part 240, 240.15c2-12) (the "Rule"), the
Issuer and the Borrower have entered into a covenant (each, a "Continuing Disclosure
Covenant") that constitutes the written undertaking for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds
required by Section (b)(5)(i) of the Rule. The form of the Continuing Disclosure Covenants for
the Issuer and the Borrower are contained in Appendices A and B hereof.

As noted elsewhere in this Official Statement, the Bonds constitute the twentieth series of
bonds issued by the Issuer. The Issuer's prior bond issues funded loans to various Borrowers (the
"Prior Borrowers") in a fashion similar to that described herein with respect to the Bonds. In
connection with its prior bond issues, the Issuer and each of the Prior Borrowers entered into
continuing disclosure agreements (the "Prior Undertakings") pursuant to the Rule. Pursuant to
the Prior Undertakings, the Issuer and each Prior Borrower agreed to provide certain annual
financial information on or before the date 270 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Issuer
and the respective Prior Borrowers. The Issuer has complied with its Prior Undertakings.
Likewise, the Borrower has complied with prior undertakings applicable to it.

ENFORCEABILITY OF REMEDIES

The remedies available to the owners of the Bonds upon an event of default under the
Indenture and any policy of insurance referred to herein are in many respects dependent upon
judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and delay. Under existing constitutional
and statutory law and judicial decisions, the remedies specified by the federal bankruptcy code,
the Indenture, the Bonds and any policy of insurance referred to herein may not be readily
available or may be limited. The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the
delivery of the Bonds (including Bond Counsel's approving opinion) will be qualified, as to the
enforceability of the remedies provided in the various legal instruments, by limitations imposed
by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors
enacted before or after such delivery.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)
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MISCELLANEOUS

The summaries of and references to all documents, statutes, reports and other instruments
referred to herein do not purport to be complete, comprehensive or definitive, and each such
reference or summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to each such document, statute,
report or other instrument. So far as any statements made in this Official Statement involve
matters of opinion or are estimates, whether or not expressly stated, they are set forth as such and
not as representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of the estimates will be
realized.

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL

By /s/ Isaac Salver
Its: Chairman
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APPENDIX A

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT dated as of March 1, 2011 (the
"Continuing Disclosure Agreement") is executed and delivered by the Village of Pinecrest,
Florida, a Florida municipal corporation ("Borrower"), and by Florida League of Cities, Inc., a
Florida corporation not-for-profit, as Dissemination Agent (the "Dissemination Agent")
hereunder. Additional capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in
Section 2 hereof.

SECTION 1. Nature of Undertaking. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement
constitutes an undertaking by the Borrower under paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule to provide
Financial Information and notice of the occurrence of certain events with respect to the Bonds, as
provided in paragraph (b)(5)(1)(C) of the Rule, and otherwise to assist the Participating
Underwriter in complying with paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule with respect to the Offering of the
Bonds. Among other things, the Borrower is hereby undertaking (i) to disseminate an Annual
Report not later than 270 days after the end of each Fiscal Year of the Borrower in accordance
with Section 4 hereof, which contains Financial Information with respect to the Borrower, (ii) if
an Annual Report does not contain the Audited Financial Statements, to disseminate the Audited
Financial Statements in accordance with Section 4 hereof as soon as practicable after they shall
have been approved by the Governing Body, (ii1) to provide notice in a timely manner, in
accordance with Section 6 hereof, of the occurrence of any of the Listed Events related to the
Borrower and (iv) to provide notice in a timely manner, in accordance with Section 4(e) hereof,
of any failure to disseminate an Annual Report in accordance with the preceding clause (i) of this
sentence.

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth above and in the
herein-defined Indenture, which shall apply to any capitalized terms used herein, the following
capitalized terms shall have the following meanings, unless otherwise defined therein:

"Annual Report" means a document or set of documents which (a) identifies the
Borrower; (b) contains (or includes by reference to documents which were filed with the SEC or
EMMA prior to the date that the Annual Report containing such reference is provided to the
Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 4 hereof): (i) Financial Information and
Operating Data for the Borrower; (i1) Audited Financial Statements if such Audited Financial
Statements shall have been approved by the Governing Body at the time the Annual Report is
required to be provided to the Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 4 hereof; and (iii)
Unaudited Financial Statements if the Audited Financial Statements shall not have been
approved by the Governing Body at the time the Annual Report is required to be provided to the
Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 4 hereof; (c) in the event that the Borrower
delivers a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5(b)
hereof, contains (in the case of the Annual Report disseminated on or immediately after the date
such Continuing Disclosure Certificate is so delivered) a narrative explanation of the reasons for
the changes in Financial Information and/or Operating Data set forth in such Continuing



Disclosure Certificate and the effect of the changes on the types of Financial Information and/or
Operating Data being provided in such Annual Report; and (d) in the event that the Borrower
authorizes a change in the accounting principles by which its Audited Financial Statements are
prepared, contains (in the case of the Annual Report disseminated on or immediately after the
date of such change) (1) a comparison between the Financial Information prepared on the basis
of the new accounting principles which is contained in such Annual Report and the Financial
Information prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles which was contained in the
previous Annual Report disseminated immediately prior to such Annual Report and (2) a
discussion of the differences between such accounting principles and the effect of such change
on the presentation of the Financial Information being provided in such Annual Report.

"Annual Report Certificate" means an Annual Report Certificate in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

"Annual Report Date" means the date which is 270 days after the end of a Fiscal Year.

"Audited Financial Statements' means the financial statements of the Borrower which
have been examined by independent certified public accountants in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards.

"Bondholder" means (i) the registered owner of a Bond and (ii) the beneficial owner of
a Bond, as the term "beneficial owner" is used in any agreement with a securities depository for
the Bonds and as the term may be modified by an interpretation by the SEC of paragraph (b)(5)
of the Rule.

"Bonds" means the $4,320,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2011B-1 and $1,505,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series
2011B-2.

"Continuing Disclosure Agreement'" means this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as
the same may be supplemented and amended pursuant to Section 8 hereof.

"Continuing Disclosure Certificate'" means a Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit B delivered by the Borrower to the Dissemination Agent
pursuant to Section 5 hereof.

"Dissemination Agent" means Florida League of Cities, Inc., acting in its capacity as
Dissemination Agent hereunder, or any successor Dissemination Agent which is appointed
pursuant to Section 3 hereof or to which the responsibilities of Dissemination Agent under this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall have been assigned in accordance with Section 9 hereof.

"EMMA" means the Electronic Municipal Market Access System as described in
Securities and Exchange Commission Release No. 34-59062 and maintained by the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board for purposes of the Rule as further described in Sections 4 and 6
hereof.



"Event Notice'" means notice of the occurrence of a Listed Event.

"Final Official Statement'" means the Final Official Statement prepared in connection
with the Offering of the Bonds.

"Financial Information" means financial information related to the Borrower of the
types identified in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate most recently delivered by the Borrower
to the Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 5 hereof. The Financial Information (i)
shall be prepared for the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the date of the Annual Report
containing such Financial Information, and (ii) shall be prepared on the basis of the Audited
Financial Statements to be provided to the Dissemination Agent concurrently with the Annual
Report, provided that, if the Audited Financial Statements are to be provided to the
Dissemination Agent subsequent to the date that the Annual Report is provided to the
Dissemination Agent, such Financial Information may be prepared on the basis of the Unaudited
Financial Statements.

"Governing Body" shall mean the governing body of the Borrower which shall approve
the Audited Financial Statements.

"Indenture'" means the Trust Indenture dated of even date herewith by and between
Florida Municipal Loan Council, as Issuer, and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as

Trustee.

"Loan Agreement" means the Loan Agreement dated of even date herewith, between
the Issuer and the Borrower.

"Listed Events' means any of the events which are set forth in Section 6 hereof.
"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

"Offering" means the primary offering of the Bonds for sale by the Participating
Underwriter.

"Operating Data" means operating data of the types identified in the Continuing
Disclosure Certificate most recently delivered by the Borrower to the Dissemination Agent in
accordance with Section 5 hereof. The Operating Data shall be prepared for the Fiscal Year
immediately preceding the date of the Annual Report containing such Operating Data.

"Participating Underwriter' means Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.
"Rating Agencies" means Fitch, Inc. and Standard & Poor's Ratings Services.
"Rule" means Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934, as amended, as the Rule may be amended from time to time, or any successor provision
thereto.



"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"SID" means any state information depository that is established within the State of
Florida and with which the Borrower is legally required to file the information set forth herein.

"Trustee" means Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee under the
Indenture.

"Unaudited Financial Statements'" means unaudited financial statements of the
Borrower for any Fiscal Year which have been prepared on a basis substantially consistent with
the Audited Financial Statements to be subsequently prepared for such Fiscal Year. The
Unaudited Financial Statements for any Fiscal Year shall be prepared on a comparative basis
with the Audited Financial Statements prepared for the preceding Fiscal Year.

SECTION 3. Appointment of Dissemination Agent: Obligations of Borrower
Respecting Undertaking. (a) The Borrower hereby appoints Florida League of Cities, Inc. to
act as the initial Dissemination Agent hereunder. Florida League of Cities, Inc. hereby accepts
such appointment. The Borrower may, from time to time, appoint a successor Dissemination
Agent or discharge any then acting Dissemination Agent, with or without cause. If at any time
there shall be no Dissemination Agent appointed and acting hereunder or the then appointed and
acting Dissemination Agent shall fail to perform its obligations hereunder, the Borrower shall
discharge such obligations until such time as the Borrower shall appoint a successor
Dissemination Agent or the then appointed and acting Dissemination Agent shall resume the
performance of such obligations.

(b) The Borrower hereby acknowledges that the Borrower is obligated to
comply with this Continuing Disclosure Agreement and that the appointment of the
Dissemination Agent as agent of the Borrower for the purposes herein provided does not relieve
the Borrower of its obligations with respect to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

SECTION 4. Annual Financial Information. (a) The Financial Information shall be
contained in the Annual Reports and, if provided separately in accordance with Section 5(b)
hereof, the Audited Financial Statements which the Borrower is required to deliver to the
Dissemination Agent for dissemination in accordance with this Section 4.

(b) The Dissemination Agent shall notify the Borrower of each Annual
Report Date and of the Borrower's obligation hereunder not more than 60 and not less than 30
days prior to each Annual Report Date. The Borrower shall provide an Annual Report to the
Dissemination Agent, together with an Annual Report Certificate, not later than each Annual
Report Date, provided that, if the Annual Report does not include the Audited Financial
Statements, the Borrower shall provide the Audited Financial Statements to the Dissemination
Agent as soon as practicable after they shall have been approved by the Governing Body.

(©) The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Annual Report and, if received
separately in accordance with Section 4(b) hereof, the Annual Financial Statements, to EMMA,



the Trustee, the Issuer and the Rating Agencies within five (5) Business Days after receipt
thereof from the Borrower.

(d)  The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Issuer, the Borrower and the
Trustee written confirmation that the Annual Report and, if received separately in accordance
with Section 4(b) hereof, the Annual Financial Statements, were provided to EMMA in
accordance with Section 4(c) hereof.

(e)  If the Dissemination Agent shall not have filed the Annual Report by the
Annual Report Date, the Dissemination Agent shall so notify the Borrower, EMMA and the
Trustee within five (5) Business Days of the Annual Report Date.

SECTION 5. Continuing Disclosure Certificates. (a) The Borrower shall prepare a
Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B in connection with the
Offering of the Bonds and shall deliver the same to the Dissemination Agent for dissemination to
the Participating Underwriter, Issuer and Trustee.

(b)  Prior to the deletion or substitution of any Financial Information and
Operating Data from the information listed in Exhibit B hereto, the Borrower will obtain an
opinion of nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside counsel to the
Borrower) addressed to the Issuer, the Participating Underwriter, the Trustee and the
Dissemination Agent, to the effect that the Financial and Operating Data to be provided will
comply with the Rule, as in effect on the date of the Offering of the Bonds and taking into
account any amendment or interpretation of the Rule by the SEC or any adjudication of the Rule
by a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction which may have occurred subsequent to
the execution and delivery of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent
is entitled to rely on such opinion without further investigation.

(c)  Notwithstanding Section 5(b) hereof, the Borrower shall not be required to
comply with Section 5(b) hereof if such Section shall no longer be deemed to be required in
order for this Continuing Disclosure Agreement to comply with the Rule as a result of the
adoption, rendering or delivery of (i) an amendment or interpretation of the Rule by the SEC, (ii)
an adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction or (iii) an
opinion of nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside counsel to the
Borrower), in each case, to that effect.

(d) Any delivery of a Continuing Disclosure Certificate pursuant to Section
5(b) hereof shall not be deemed to be an amendment to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement
and shall not be subject to the provisions of Section 8 hereof.

SECTION 6. Reporting of Listed Events. (a) This Section 6 governs the provision of
Event Notices relating to Listed Events with respect to the Bonds. The Borrower shall provide to
the MSRB and to the SID, if any, on a timely basis not in excess of ten (10) business days after
the occurrence of the event, notice of any of the following events, if such event is material with
respect to the Bonds or the Borrower’s ability to satisfy its payment obligations with respect to
the Loan. The following events are "Listed Events":




(1)
(i)
(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

principal and interest payment deficiencies;
non-payment related defaults;

unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to
perform;

adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service
of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of
Proposed Issue or other material notices or determinations with
respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events
affecting the tax status of the Bonds;

modifications to the rights of the holders of the Bonds;
optional, contingent or unscheduled redemption calls;
tender offers with respect to the Bonds;

defeasances;

release, satisfaction or sale of property securing repayment of the
Bonds;

rating changes;

bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the
Borrower (this event is considered to occur when any of the
following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or
similar officer for the Borrower in a proceeding under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal
law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the
Borrower, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the
existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of
reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of the Borrower);
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(xiv) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition
involving the Borrower or the sale of all or substantially all of the
assets of the Borrower other than in the ordinary course of
business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an
action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any
such actions, other than pursuant to its terms; and

(xv) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of
name of a trustee.

provided that each of the Listed Events shall be interpreted in accordance with any interpretation
of the Rule by the SEC or adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent
jurisdiction which may occur subsequent to the date of the original execution and delivery
hereof.

(b)  Whenever the Borrower obtains actual knowledge of the occurrence of any
of the Listed Events with respect to or caused by the Borrower, the Borrower shall, on a timely
basis and in any event within ten (10) Business Days, determine whether the occurrence of such
event is material to any of the Bondholders, provided, that any event under Sections 6(1), (iii),
(iv), (v), (vi), (ix), (x), (xii) and (xiii) above will always be deemed to be material.

() If the Borrower determines that the occurrence of any of the Listed Events
is material to any of the Bondholders, the Borrower shall promptly notify the Dissemination
Agent of such determination in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent to provide an Event
Notice in accordance with Section 6(e) hereof.

(d) If the Borrower determines that the occurrence of the Listed Event
described in such notice is not material, the Borrower shall notify the Dissemination Agent of
such determination, and no Event Notice shall be provided pursuant to Section 6(e) hereof. The
determination of the Borrower under this paragraph (d) shall be conclusive and binding on all
parties hereto.

(e) If the Borrower instructs the Dissemination Agent to provide an Event
Notice pursuant to Section 6(c) hereof, the Dissemination Agent shall, within three (3) Business
Days thereafter, file an Event Notice with EMMA, the Trustee, the Rating Agencies and the
Issuer. The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Borrower, the Issuer and the Trustee written
confirmation that such Event Notice was provided to EMMA in accordance with this Section
6(e).

) Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Event Notice with respect to a Listed
Event described in Section 6(a)(viii) or (ix) shall not be given under this Section 6 any earlier
than the notice (if any) of such event is given to the affected Bondholders pursuant to the
Indenture, as confirmed to the Dissemination Agent by the Trustee. The Dissemination Agent
shall have no liability for failure of notice given to Bondholders if it does not receive the
necessary confirmation from the Trustee after written request.
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(g)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, whenever the Borrower authorizes a
change in either its Fiscal Year or the accounting principles by which its Audited Financial
Statements are prepared, the Borrower shall provide the Dissemination Agent with written notice
of such change and instruct the Dissemination Agent to file a copy of such notice with EMMA,
the Issuer, the Rating Agencies and the Trustee, and the Dissemination Agent shall, within three
(3) Business Days thereafter, file a copy of such notice with EMMA, the Issuer, the Rating
Agencies and the Trustee. The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Borrower written
confirmation that such notice was provided to EMMA in accordance with this Section 6(g).

SECTION 7. Additional Information. Nothing in this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement shall be deemed to prevent (i) the Borrower from disseminating any information or
notice of the occurrence of any event using the means of dissemination specified in this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement or other means or (ii) the Borrower from including in an
Annual Report any information which shall be in addition to the Financial Information,
Operating Data and Audited or Unaudited Financial Statements required by Section 4 hereof to
be included in such Annual Report, provided that this Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall
not be deemed to require the Borrower to include or update any such additional information in
any subsequently prepared Annual Report.

SECTION 8. Amendments: Waivers. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be
amended, and any provision hereof may be waived, by the parties hereto if prior to the effective
date of any such amendment or waiver, the Borrower delivers to the Dissemination Agent, the
Issuer and the Trustee an opinion of nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also
act as outside counsel to the Borrower), to the effect that this Continuing Disclosure Agreement
(taking into account such amendment or waiver) complies with the Rule, as in effect on the date
of the Offering of Bonds or after the execution and delivery of this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, taking into account any amendment or interpretation of the Rule by the SEC or any
adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction which may have
occurred subsequent to the execution and delivery of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The
Dissemination Agent shall notify EMMA of any such amendment and shall provide EMMA with
a copy of any such amendment.

SECTION 9. Assignment. The Borrower may not assign its obligations under this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent may assign its rights and
responsibilities hereunder to a third party with the consent of the Borrower, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

SECTION 10. Compensation of the Dissemination Agent. As compensation to the
Dissemination Agent for its services pursuant to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the
Borrower agrees to pay all fees and all expenses of the Dissemination Agent including, without
limitation, all reasonable expenses, charges, costs and other disbursements in the administration
and performance of its duties hereunder, and shall to the extent permitted by law indemnify and
save the Dissemination Agent and its officers, directors, attorneys, agents and employees
harmless from and against any costs, expenses, damages or other liabilities (including attorneys
fees) which it (or they) may incur in the exercise of its (or their) powers and duties hereunder,
except with respect to its (or their) willful misconduct or gross negligence. Nothing contained
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herein is intended to be nor shall it be construed as a waiver of any immunity from or limitation
of liability that the Borrower may be entitled to pursuant to the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity
or Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein,
the obligations of the Borrower hereunder shall be limited obligations payable solely from the
sources provided under Section 2.02(a) of the Loan Agreement.

SECTION 11. Concerning the Dissemination Agent and the Borrower. (a) The
Dissemination Agent is not answerable for the exercise of any discretion or power under this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement or for anything whatever in connection herewith, except only
its own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Dissemination Agent shall have no liability
to the Bondholders or any other person with respect to the undertakings described in Section 1
hereof except as expressly set forth in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement regarding its own
willful misconduct or gross negligence.

(b)  The Dissemination Agent has no responsibility or liability hereunder for
determining compliance for any information submitted hereunder with any law, rule or
regulation or the terms of this agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall have no responsibility
for disseminating information not delivered to it or giving notice of non-delivery except as
specifically required hereunder.

(c)  The parties to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement acknowledge and
agree that the Borrower assumes no obligations hereunder other than those specifically assumed
by the Borrower herein.

SECTION 12. Termination of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement. This
Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall terminate at such time as the Loan Agreement
terminates.

SECTION 13. Beneficiaries. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely
to the benefit of the Borrower, the Dissemination Agent, the Trustee, the Issuer, the Participating
Underwriter and the Bondholders. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed
to inure to the benefit of or grant any rights to any party other than the parties specified in the
preceding sentence.

SECTION 14. Counterparts. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be executed
in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute one
and the same instrument.

SECTION 15. Governing Law. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Florida.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower and the Dissemination Agent have caused this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement to be executed and delivered as of the date first written above.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA, as
Borrower

By:
Its: Mayor

FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC,, as
Dissemination Agent

By:

Its:




EXHIBIT A

Form of Annual Report Certificate

The undersigned duly appointed and acting of the Village of Pinecrest,
Florida, a Florida municipal corporation, as Borrower under the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement (hereinafter described) (the "Borrower"), hereby certifies on behalf of the Borrower
pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Agreement dated as of March 1, 2011 (the "Continuing
Disclosure Agreement") executed and delivered by the Borrower and accepted by Florida
League of Cities, Inc., as Dissemination Agent (the "Dissemination Agent"), as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed thereto in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

2. Annual Report. Accompanying this Annual Report Certificate is the Annual Report for
the Fiscal Year ended .

3. Compliance with Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Annual Report is being
delivered to the Dissemination Agent herewith not later than 270 days after the end of the Fiscal
Year to which the Annual Report relates. The Annual Report contains, or includes by reference,
Financial Information and Operating Data of the types identified in the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate most recently delivered to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5 of the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement. To the extent any such Financial Information or Operating
Data is included in the Annual Report by reference, any document so referred to has been
previously provided to EMMA or filed with the SEC.

Such Financial Information and Operating Data have been prepared on the basis of the
[Audited/Unaudited] Financial Statements. [Such Audited Financial Statements are included as
part of the Annual Report.] [Because the Audited Financial Statements have not been approved
by the Governing Body as of the date hereof, the Unaudited Financial Statements have been
included as part of the Annual Report. The Unaudited Financial Statements have been prepared
on a basis substantially consistent with such Audited Financial Statements. The Borrower shall
deliver such Audited Financial Statements to the Dissemination Agent as soon as practicable
after they have been approved by the Governing Body.]



IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the undersigned has executed and delivered this Annual
Report Certificate to the Dissemination Agent, which has received such certificate and the
Annual Report, all as of the day of the  day of ,

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA,
Borrower

By:

Its:

Acknowledgment of Receipt:

FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC,, as
Dissemination Agent

By:

Its:




EXHIBIT B

Form of Section 5(a) Continuing Disclosure Certificate

Florida League of Cities, Inc.
301 Bronough Street
Tallahassee, Florida 33401

The undersigned duly authorized signatory of the Village of Pinecrest, Florida (the
"Borrower") hereby certifies on behalf of the Borrower pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement dated as of March 1, 2011 (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement") executed and
delivered by the Borrower and accepted by Florida League of Cities, Inc., as Dissemination
Agent (the "Dissemination Agent"), as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed thereto in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

2. Purpose. The Borrower is delivering this Continuing Disclosure Certificate to the
Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

3. Financial. Information and Operating Data Included in Final Official Statement. The
following types of Financial Information and Operating Data were included in the Final Official
Statement for the Bonds and are to be included in the Annual Report:

(a)  Financial Information — Anti-dilution test results, historical non-ad
valorem revenues, combined statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balance/equity relating to the General Fund

(b)  Operating Data - None

4. Annual Report. Until such time as the Borrower delivers a revised Continuing
Disclosure Certificate and an opinion of disclosure counsel to the Dissemination Agent pursuant
to Section 5 of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Financial Information and Operating
Data of the types identified in paragraph 3 of this certificate shall be included in the Annual
Reports delivered by the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 4 of the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement.




IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the undersigned has executed and delivered this Continuing
Disclosure Certificate to the Dissemination Agent, which has received the same, all as of the
day of ,

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA,
Borrower

By:

Its:

Acknowledgment of Receipt:

FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC,, as
Dissemination Agent

By:

Its:




APPENDIX B

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT dated as of March 1, 2011 (the
"Continuing Disclosure Agreement") is executed and delivered by Florida Municipal Loan
Council ("Issuer"), and by Florida League of Cities, Inc., a Florida corporation not-for-profit, as
Dissemination Agent (the "Dissemination Agent") hereunder. Additional capitalized terms used
herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 2 hereof.

SECTION 1. Nature of Undertaking. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement
constitutes an undertaking by the Issuer under paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule to provide Annual
Financial Information and notice of the occurrence of certain events with respect to the Bonds, as
provided in paragraph (b)(5)(1)(C) of the Rule, and otherwise to assist the Participating
Underwriter in complying with paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule with respect to the Offering of the
Bonds. Among other things, the Issuer is hereby undertaking (i) to disseminate an Annual
Report not later than 270 days after the end of each Fiscal Year of the Issuer in accordance with
paragraph (b)(5)(i)(A) of the Rule and Section 4 hereof, which contains Annual Financial
Information with respect to the Issuer, (ii) if an Annual Report does not contain the Audited
Financial Statements, to disseminate the Audited Financial Statements in accordance with
paragraph (b)(5)(1)(B) of the Rule and Section 4 hereof as soon as practicable after they shall
have been approved by the Governing Body, (iii) to provide notice in a timely manner, in
accordance with paragraph (b)(5)(1)(C) of the Rule and Section 6 hereof, of the occurrence of
any of the Listed Events related to the Issuer and (iv) to provide notice in a timely manner, in
accordance with paragraph (b)(5)(i)(D) of the Rule and Section 4(e) hereof, of any failure to
disseminate an Annual Report in accordance with the preceding clause (i) of this sentence.

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth above and in the herein-
defined Indenture, which shall apply to any capitalized terms used herein, the following
capitalized terms shall have the following meanings, unless otherwise defined therein:

"Annual Financial Information" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph
(H)(9) of the Rule.

"Annual Report" means a document or set of documents which (a) identifies the Issuer;
(b) contains (or includes by reference to documents which were filed with the SEC or with
EMMA prior to the date that the Annual Report containing such reference is provided to the
Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 4 hereof): (i) Financial Information and
Operating Data for the Issuer; (ii) Audited Financial Statements if such Audited Financial
Statements shall have been approved by the Governing Body at the time the Annual Report is
required to be provided to the Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 4 hereof; and (ii1)
Unaudited Financial Statements if the Audited Financial Statements shall not have been
approved by the Governing Body at the time the Annual Report is required to be provided to the
Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 4 hereof; (c) in the event that the Issuer delivers
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a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5(b) hereof,
contains (in the case of the Annual Report disseminated on or immediately after the date such
Continuing Disclosure Certificate is so delivered) a narrative explanation of the reasons for the
changes in Financial Information and/or Operating Data set forth in such Continuing Disclosure
Certificate and the effect of the changes on the types of Financial Information and/or Operating
Data being provided in such Annual Report; and (d) in the event that the Issuer authorizes a
change in the accounting principles by which its Audited Financial Statements are prepared,
contains (in the case of the Annual Report disseminated on or immediately after the date of such
change) (1) a comparison between the Financial Information prepared on the basis of the new
accounting principles which is contained in such Annual Report and the Financial Information
prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles which was contained in the previous
Annual Report disseminated immediately prior to such Annual Report and (2) a discussion of the
differences between such accounting principles and the effect of such change on the presentation
of the Financial Information being provided in such Annual Report.

"Annual Report Certificate" means an Annual Report Certificate in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

"Annual Report Date" means the date which is 270 days after the end of a Fiscal Year.

"Audited Financial Statements'" means the financial statements of the Issuer which
have been examined by independent certified public accountants in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards.

"Bondholder" means (i) the registered owner of a Bond and (ii) the beneficial owner of
a Bond, as the term "beneficial owner" is used in any agreement with a securities depository for
the Bonds and as the term may be modified by an interpretation by the SEC of paragraph (b)(5)
of the Rule.

"Bonds" means the $5,825,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2011B-1 and Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B-2.

"Continuing Disclosure Agreement' means this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as
the same may be supplemented and amended pursuant to Section 8 hereof.

"Continuing Disclosure Certificate'" means a Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit B delivered by the Issuer to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to
Section 5 hereof.

"Dissemination Agent" means Florida League of Cities, Inc., acting in its capacity as
Dissemination Agent hereunder, or any successor Dissemination Agent which is appointed
pursuant to Section 3 hereof or to which the responsibilities of Dissemination Agent under this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall have been assigned in accordance with Section 9 hereof.
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"EMMA" means the Electronic Municipal Market Access System as described in
Securities and Exchange Commission Release No. 34-59062 and maintained by the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board for purposes of the Rule as further described in Sections 4 and 6
hereof.

"Event Notice" means notice of the occurrence of a Listed Event.

"Final Official Statement' means the Final Official Statement (as defined in paragraph
(H)(3) of the Rule) prepared in connection with the Offering of the Bonds.

"Financial Information" means financial information related to the Issuer of the types
identified in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate most recently delivered by the Issuer to the
Dissemination Agent in accordance with Section 5 hereof. The Financial Information (i) shall be
prepared for the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the date of the Annual Report containing
such Financial Information, and (i1) shall be prepared on the basis of the Audited Financial
Statements to be provided to the Dissemination Agent concurrently with the Annual Report,
provided that, if the Audited Financial Statements are to be provided to the Dissemination Agent
subsequent to the date that the Annual Report is provided to the Dissemination Agent, such
Financial Information may be prepared on the basis of the Unaudited Financial Statements.

"Governing Body" shall mean the governing body of the Issuer which shall approve the
Audited Financial Statements.

"Indenture'" means the Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2011, by and between the
Issuer and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Trustee.

"Issuer" means Florida Municipal Loan Council.
p

"Listed Events" means any of the events which are listed in paragraph (b)(5)(1)(C) of
the Rule as in effect on the date hereof and which are set forth in Section 6 hereof.

"MSRB'" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

"Offering' shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph (a) of the Rule.

"Operating Data'" means operating data of the types identified in the Continuing
Disclosure Certificate most recently delivered by the Issuer to the Dissemination Agent in
accordance with Section 5 hereof. The Operating Data shall be prepared for the Fiscal Year
immediately preceding the date of the Annual Report containing such Operating Data.

"Participating Underwriter' means Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.

"Rating Agencies" means Fitch, Inc. and Standard & Poor's Ratings Services.



"Rule" means Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, as the Rule may be amended from time to time, or any successor provision
thereto.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"SID" means any state information depository that is established within the State of
Florida and with which the Borrower is legally required to file the information set forth herein.

"Trustee'" means Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee under the
Indenture.

"Unaudited Financial Statements" means unaudited financial statements of the Issuer
for any Fiscal Year which have been prepared on a basis substantially consistent with the
Audited Financial Statements to be subsequently prepared for such Fiscal Year. The Unaudited
Financial Statements for any Fiscal Year shall be prepared on a comparative basis with the
Audited Financial Statements prepared for the preceding Fiscal Year.

SECTION 3. Appointment of Dissemination Agent: Obligations of Issuer
Respecting Undertaking. (a) The Issuer hereby appoints Florida League of Cities, Inc. to act as
the initial Dissemination Agent hereunder. Florida League of Cities, Inc. hereby accepts such
appointment. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint a successor Dissemination Agent or
discharge any then acting Dissemination Agent, with or without cause. If at any time there shall
be no Dissemination Agent appointed and acting hereunder or the then appointed and acting
Dissemination Agent shall fail to perform its obligations hereunder, the Issuer shall discharge
such obligations until such time as the Issuer shall appoint a successor Dissemination Agent or
the then appointed and acting Dissemination Agent shall resume the performance of such
obligations.

(b) The Issuer hereby acknowledges that the Issuer is obligated to comply
with paragraph (5)(i) of the Rule in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and that the
appointment of the Dissemination Agent as agent of the Issuer for the purposes herein provided
does not relieve the Issuer of its obligations with respect to paragraph (5)(i) of the Rule.

SECTION 4. Annual Financial Information. (a) The Annual Financial Information
shall be contained in the Annual Reports and, if provided separately in accordance with Section
5(b) hereof, the Audited Financial Statements which the Issuer is required to deliver to the
Dissemination Agent for dissemination in accordance with this Section 4.

(b) The Dissemination Agent shall notify the Issuer of each Annual Report
Date and of the Issuer's obligation hereunder not more than 60 and not less than 30 days prior to
each Annual Report Date. The Issuer shall provide an Annual Report to the Dissemination
Agent, together with an Annual Report Certificate, not later than each Annual Report Date,
provided that, if the Annual Report does not include the Audited Financial Statements, the Issuer



shall provide the Audited Financial Statements to the Dissemination Agent as soon as practicable
after they shall have been approved by the Governing Body.

(©) The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Annual Report and, if
received separately in accordance with Section 4(b) hereof, the Annual Financial Statements, to
EMMA, the Trustee and the Rating Agencies within five (5) Business Days after receipt thereof
from the Issuer.

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall provide the Issuer and the Trustee written
confirmation that the Annual Report and, if received separately in accordance with Section 4(b)
hereof, the Annual Financial Statements, were provided to EMMA in accordance with Section
4(c) hereof.

(e) If the Dissemination Agent shall not have filed the Annual Report by the
Annual Report Date, the Dissemination Agent shall so notify EMMA and the Trustee within five
(5) Business Days of the Annual Report Date.

SECTION 5. Continuing Disclosure Certificates. (a) The Issuer shall prepare a
Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B in connection with the
Offering of the Bonds and shall deliver the same to the Dissemination Agent for dissemination to
the Participating Underwriter and Trustee.

(b) Prior to the deletion or substitution of any Financial Information and
Operating Data from the information listed in Exhibit B hereto, the Issuer will obtain an opinion
of nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside counsel to the Issuer)
addressed to the Issuer, the Participating Underwriter, the Trustee and the Dissemination Agent,
to the effect that the Financial Information and Operating Data to be provided will comply with
the Rule, as in effect on the date of the Offering of the Bonds and taking into account any
amendment or interpretation of the Rule by the SEC or any adjudication of the Rule by a final
decision of a court of competent jurisdiction which may have occurred subsequent to the
execution and delivery of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent is
entitled to rely on such opinion without further investigation.

() Notwithstanding Section 5(b) hereof, the Issuer shall not be required to
comply with Section 5(b) hereof if such Section shall no longer be deemed to be required in
order for this Continuing Disclosure Agreement to comply with the Rule as a result of the
adoption, rendering or delivery of (i) an amendment or interpretation of the Rule by the SEC, (ii)
an adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction or (iii) an
opinion of nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside counsel to the
Issuer), in each case, to that effect.

(d) Any delivery of a Continuing Disclosure Certificate pursuant to Section
5(b) hereof shall not be deemed to be an amendment to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement
and shall not be subject to the provisions of Section 8 hereof.



SECTION 6. Reporting of Listed Events. (a) This Section 6 governs the provision of

Event Notices relating to Listed Events with respect to the Bonds. The Issuer shall provide to the
MSRB and to the SID, if any, on a timely basis not in excess of ten (10) business days after the
occurrence of the event, notice of any of the following events, if such event is material with
respect to the Bonds or the Issuer’s ability to satisfy its payment obligations with respect to the
Bonds. The following events are "Listed Events":

(1)
(i)
(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

principal and interest payment deficiencies;
non-payment related defaults;

unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to
perform;

adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service
of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of
Proposed Issue or other material notices or determinations with
respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events
affecting the tax status of the Bonds;

modifications to the rights of the holders of the Bonds;
optional, contingent or unscheduled redemption calls;
tender offers with respect to the Bonds;

defeasances;

release, satisfaction or sale of property securing repayment of the
Bonds;

rating changes;

bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer
(this event is considered to occur when any of the following occur:
the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the
Issuer in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any
other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or
governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially
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all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials
or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders
of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order
confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by
a court or governmental authority having supervision or
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the
Issuer);

(xiv) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition
involving the Issuer or the sale of all or substantially all of the
assets of the Issuer other than in the ordinary course of business,
the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or
the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such
actions, other than pursuant to its terms; and

(xv) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of
name of a trustee.

provided that each of the Listed Events shall be interpreted in accordance with any interpretation
of the Rule by the SEC or adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent
jurisdiction which may occur subsequent to the date of the original execution and delivery
hereof.

(b) Whenever the Issuer obtains actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of
the Listed Events, the Issuer shall, on a timely basis and in any event within ten (10) Business
Days, determine whether the occurrence of such event is material to any of the Bondholders,
provided, that any event under Sections 6(i), (iii), (iv), (v), (vi), (ix), (x), (xii) and (xii1) above
will always be deemed to be material.

() If the Issuer determines that the occurrence of any of the Listed Events is
material to any of the Bondholders, the Issuer shall promptly notify the Dissemination Agent of
such determination in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent to provide Event Notice in
accordance with Section 6(e) hereof.

(d) If the Issuer determines that the occurrence of the Listed Event described
in such notice is not material, the Issuer shall notify the Dissemination Agent of such
determination, and no Event Notice shall be provided pursuant to Section 6(e) hereof. The
determination of the Issuer under this paragraph (d) shall be conclusive and binding on all parties
hereto.

(e) If the Issuer instructs the Dissemination Agent to provide an Event Notice

pursuant to Section 6(c) hereof, the Dissemination Agent shall, within three (3) Business Days
thereafter, file an Event Notice with EMMA, the Trustee and the Rating Agencies. The
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Dissemination Agent shall provide the Issuer and the Trustee written confirmation that such
Event Notice was provided to EMMA in accordance with this Section 6(e).

) Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Event Notice with respect to a Listed
Event described in Section 6(a)(viii) or (ix) shall not be given under this Section 6 any earlier
than the notice (if any) of such event is given to the affected Bondholders pursuant to the
Indenture, as confirmed to the Dissemination Agent by the Trustee. The Dissemination Agent
shall have no liability for failure of notice given to Bondholders if it does not receive the
necessary confirmation from the Trustee after written request.

(2) Notwithstanding the foregoing, whenever the Issuer authorizes a change in
either its Fiscal Year or the accounting principles by which its Audited Financial Statements are
prepared, the Issuer shall provide the Dissemination Agent with written notice of such change
and instruct the Dissemination Agent to file a copy of such notice with EMMA, the Rating
Agencies and the Trustee, and the Dissemination Agent shall, within three (3) Business Days
thereafter, file a copy of such notice with EMMA, the Rating Agencies and the Trustee. The
Dissemination Agent shall provide the Issuer written confirmation that such notice was provided
to EMMA in accordance with this Section 6(g).

SECTION 7. Additional Information. Nothing in this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement shall be deemed to prevent (i) the Issuer from disseminating any information or
notice of the occurrence of any event using the means of dissemination specified in this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement or other means or (ii) the Issuer from including in an Annual
Report any information which shall be in addition to the Financial Information, Operating Data
and Audited or Unaudited Financial Statements required by Section 4 hereof to be included in
such Annual Report, provided that this Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed to
require the Issuer to include or update any such additional information in any subsequently
prepared Annual Report.

SECTION 8. Amendments: Waivers. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be
amended, and any provision hereof may be waived, by the parties hereto if prior to the effective
date of any such amendment or waiver, the Issuer delivers to the Dissemination Agent and the
Trustee an opinion of nationally recognized disclosure counsel (which may also act as outside
counsel to one or more members of the Issuer), to the effect that this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement (taking into account such amendment or waiver) complies with the Rule, as in effect
on the date of the Offering of Bonds or after the execution and delivery of this Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, taking into account any amendment or interpretation of the Rule by the
SEC or any adjudication of the Rule by a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction
which may have occurred subsequent to the execution and delivery of this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall notify EMMA of any such amendment and shall
provide EMMA with a copy of any such amendment.

SECTION 9. Assignment. The Issuer may not assign its obligations under this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent may assign its rights and
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responsibilities hereunder to a third party with the consent of the Issuer, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

SECTION 10. Compensation of the Dissemination Agent. As compensation to the
Dissemination Agent for its services pursuant to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the
Issuer agrees to pay all fees and all expenses of the Dissemination Agent including, without
limitation, all reasonable expenses, charges, costs and other disbursements in the administration
and performance of its duties hereunder, and shall to the extent permitted by law indemnify and
save the Dissemination Agent and its officers, directors, attorneys, agents and employees
harmless from and against any costs, expenses, damages or other liabilities (including attorneys
fees) which it (or they) may incur in the exercise of its (or their) powers and duties hereunder,
except with respect to its (or their) willful misconduct or gross negligence.

SECTION 11. Concerning the Dissemination Agent and the Issuer. (a) The
Dissemination Agent is not answerable for the exercise of any discretion or power under this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement or for anything whatever in connection herewith, except only
its own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Dissemination Agent shall have no liability
to the Bondholders or any other person with respect to the undertakings described in Section 1
hereof except as expressly set forth in this Continuing Disclosure Agreement regarding its own
willful misconduct or gross negligence.

(b) The Dissemination Agent has no responsibility or liability hereunder for
determining compliance for any information submitted hereunder with any law, rule or
regulation or the terms of this agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall have no responsibility
for disseminating information not delivered to it or giving notice of non-delivery except as
specifically required hereunder; and

(c) The parties to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement acknowledge and
agree that the Issuer assumes no obligations hereunder other than those specifically assumed by
the Issuer herein.

SECTION 12. Termination of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement. This
Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall terminate at such time as the Bonds are no longer
outstanding.

SECTION 13. Beneficiaries. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely
to the benefit of the Dissemination Agent, the Trustee, the Issuer, the Participating Underwriter
and the Bondholders. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed to inure to the
benefit of or grant any rights to any party other than the parties specified in the preceding
sentence.

SECTION 14. Counterparts. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be executed

in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute one
and the same instrument.
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SECTION 15. Governing Law. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Florida.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Dissemination Agent have caused this
Continuing Disclosure Agreement to be executed and delivered as of the date first written above.

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL,
as Issuer

By:

Its: Chairman

FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC,, as
Dissemination Agent

By:

Its: Executive Director



EXHIBIT A

Form of Annual Report Certificate

The undersigned duly appointed and acting of Florida Municipal Loan
Council, as Issuer under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement (hereinafter described) (the
"Issuer"), hereby certifies on behalf of the Issuer pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement dated as of March 1, 2011 (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement") executed and
delivered by the Issuer and accepted by Florida League of Cities, Inc., as Dissemination Agent
(the "Dissemination Agent"), as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed thereto in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

2. Annual Report. Accompanying this Annual Report Certificate is the Annual Report for
the Fiscal Year ended.

3. Compliance with Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Annual Report is being
delivered to the Dissemination Agent herewith not later than 270 days after the end of the Fiscal
Year to which the Annual Report relates. The Annual Report contains, or includes by reference,
Financial Information and Operating Data of the types identified in the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate most recently delivered to the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5 of the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement. To the extent any such Financial Information or Operating
Data is included in the Annual Report by reference, any document so referred to has been
previously provided to EMMA or filed with the SEC.

Such Financial Information and Operating Data have been prepared on the basis of the
[Audited/Unaudited] Financial Statements. [Such Audited Financial Statements are included as
part of the Annual Report.] [Because the Audited Financial Statements have not been approved
by the Issuer as of the date hereof the Unaudited Financial Statements have been included as part
of the Annual Report. The Unaudited Financial Statements have been prepared on a basis
substantially consistent with such Audited Financial Statements. The Issuer shall deliver such
Audited Financial Statements to the Dissemination Agent as soon as practicable after they have
been approved by the Governing Body.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed and delivered this Annual
Report Certificate to the Dissemination Agent, which has received such certificate and the
Annual Report, all as of the day of the day of ,

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL, as
[ssuer

By:

Its:

Acknowledgment of Receipt:

FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC,, as
Dissemination Agent

By:

Its:




EXHIBIT B
Form of Section 5(a) Continuing Disclosure Certificate

Florida League of Cities, Inc.
Tallahassee, Florida

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas
New York, New York

Florida Municipal Loan Council
Tallahassee, Florida

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
Clearwater, Florida

The undersigned duly appointed and acting Chairman of Florida Municipal Loan Council
(the "Issuer") hereby certifies on behalf of the Issuer pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement dated as of March 1, 2011 (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement") executed and
delivered by the Issuer and accepted by Florida League of Cities, Inc., as Dissemination Agent
(the "Dissemination Agent"), as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed thereto in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

2. Purpose. The Issuer is delivering this Continuing Disclosure Certificate to the
Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

3. Written Undertaking. On behalf of the Issuer, the Issuer hereby designates the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement to be the written undertaking under paragraph (b)(5) of the
Rule with respect to the $5,825,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2011B-1 and Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B-2.

4. Financial Information and Operating Data Included in Final Official Statement.
The following types of Financial Information and Operating Data were included in the Final
Official Statement for the Bonds and are to be included in the Annual Report:

(a) Financial Information None
(b) Operating Data None

5. Annual Report. Until such time as the Issuer delivers a revised Continuing
Disclosure Certificate and an opinion of disclosure counsel to the Dissemination Agent pursuant
to Section 5 of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Financial Information and Operating
Data of the types identified in paragraph 4 of this certificate shall be included in the Annual
Reports delivered by the Dissemination Agent pursuant to Section 4 of the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement.




IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the undersigned has executed and delivered this Continuing
Disclosure Certificate to the Dissemination Agent, which has received the same, all as of the 1*
day of ,

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL,
as Issuer

By:

Its: Chairman
Acknowledgment of Receipt:
FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC., as

Dissemination Agent

By:

Its: Executive Director
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FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL,

Issuer

and

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS,

Trustee

TRUST INDENTURE

$4,320,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B-1 (Village

of Pinecrest Series)

$1,505,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B-2 (Village of Pinecrest

Series)

Dated as of March 1, 2011

This instrument also constitutes a security agreement under the laws of the State of Florida.

This Instrument Prepared by:

JoLinda Herring, Esq.
Bryant Miller Olive P.A.
One Biscayne Tower

2 S. Biscayne Boulevard, Suite 1480

Miami, Florida 33131
and
Grace E. Dunlap, Esq.

Bryant Miller Olive P.A.
One Tampa City Center

201 North Franklin Street, Suite 2700

Tampa, Florida 33602
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TRUST INDENTURE

THIS TRUST INDENTURE is made and entered into as of March 1, 2011, by and
between FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL, a legal entity and public body corporate
and politic duly created and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida (the
"Council"), and DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS, a New York State banking
corporation, duly organized, existing and authorized to accept and execute trusts of the
character herein set out, as Trustee (the "Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, all capitalized undefined terms used herein shall have the meanings set
forth in Article I hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Council is duly created and existing pursuant to the Constitution and
laws of the State of Florida, including particularly Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, as
amended (the "Interlocal Act"), and initially certain resolutions of the City of Stuart, Florida, the
City of Deland, Florida and the City of Rockledge, Florida; and

WHEREAS, the Council, pursuant to the authority of the Interlocal Act and other
applicable provisions of law, is authorized, among other things, to issue revenue bonds on
behalf of and for the benefit of the Borrower in the State in order to finance, refinance or
reimburse the cost of qualified Projects of Borrower, such bonds to be secured by instruments
evidencing and securing loans to said Borrower and to be payable solely out of the payments
made by such Borrower pursuant to the Loan Agreement entered into between the Borrower
and the Council or from other moneys designated as available therefor and not otherwise
pledged or used as security, and to enter into a trust indenture providing for the issuance of
such bonds and for their payment and security; and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that the public interest will be best served and
that the purposes of the Interlocal Act can be more advantageously obtained by the Council’s
issuance of revenue bonds in order to provide funds to loan to the participating Borrower to
finance, refinance or reimburse the cost of qualifying Projects pursuant to the Loan Agreement
between the respective Borrower and the Council; and

WHEREAS, the Council has previously by a resolution adopted on October 23, 2002 (the
"Resolution"), authorized the issuance of its Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, in
various series in an additional aggregate principal amount of not exceeding $750,000,000,
pursuant to certain trust indentures, to provide funds to finance, refinance or reimburse the cost
of qualified Projects of the participating Borrower; and

GRANTING CLAUSE SECOND

All moneys and securities from time to time held by the Trustee under the terms of this
Indenture (except for moneys and securities held in the Rebate Fund); and

GRANTING CLAUSE THIRD

All Revenues, any and all other property, rights and interests of every kind and nature
from time to time hereafter by delivery or by writing of any kind granted, bargained, sold,
alienated, demised, released, conveyed, assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or
otherwise subjected hereto, as and for additional security herewith, by the Council or any other
person on its behalf or with its written consent, and the Trustee is hereby authorized to receive
any and all such property at any and all times and to hold and apply the same subject to the
terms hereof;

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and singular the Trust Estate, whether now owned or
hereafter acquired, to the Trustee and its respective successors in trust and assigns forever;

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, upon the terms and trusts herein set forth for the equal
and proportionate benefit, security and protection of all present and future owners of the Bonds
issued under and secured by this Indenture without privilege, priority or distinction as to the
lien or otherwise of any of the Bonds over any of the other Bonds;

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that the holders of the Bonds shall be entitled to payment only
from the Loan Agreement more fully described in Granting Clause First hereof pledged for the
payment of such Bonds, the Funds and Accounts set forth in Granting Clause Second hereof
established for such Bonds and the Revenues and other property, rights and interests described
in Granting Clause Third pledged for the payment of such Bonds;

AND FURTHER PROVIDED, that if the Council, its successors or assigns, shall well and
truly pay, or cause to be paid, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds due
or to become due thereon, at the times and in the manner mentioned in the Bonds and as
provided in Article II hereof according to the true intent and meaning thereof, and shall cause
the payments to be made as required under Article II hereof, or shall provide, as permitted
hereby, for the payment thereof in accordance with Article VIII hereof, and shall well and truly
keep, perform and observe all the covenants and conditions pursuant to the terms of this
Indenture to be kept, performed and observed by it, and shall pay or cause to be paid to the
Trustee and any Paying Agent all sums of money due or to become due in accordance with the
terms and provisions hereof, then upon such final payments or deposits as provided in Article
VIII hereof, this Indenture and the rights hereby granted shall cease, terminate and be void and
the Trustee shall thereupon cancel and discharge this Indenture and execute and deliver to the
Council such instruments in writing as shall be requisite to evidence the discharge hereof.

WHEREAS, the Council has now determined to issue its $4,320,000 Florida Municipal
Loan Council Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B-1 (City of Pinecrest Series) and its
$1,505,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B-2 (Village of Pinecrest
Series) at this time pursuant to this Trust Indenture for the purposes more fully described
herein; and

WHEREAS, in order to secure the payment when due of the principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds, the Borrower, which for the Series 2011B-1 Bonds and Series
2011B-2 Bonds is the Village of Pinecrest, has covenanted or pledged in its Loan Agreement to
budget and appropriate legally available non-ad valorem funds sufficient for that purpose; and

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS TRUST INDENTURE
WITNESSETH:
GRANTING CLAUSES

The Council, in consideration of the premises and the acceptance by the Trustee of the
trusts hereby created and of the purchase and acceptance of the Bonds by the owners thereof,
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, in
order to secure the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds
according to their tenor and effect and to secure the performance and observance by the Council
of all the covenants expressed or implied herein and in the Bonds, does hereby grant, bargain,
sell, convey, mortgage, assign, pledge and grant, without recourse, a security interest in the
Trust Estate to the Trustee, and its successors in trust and assigns forever, for the securing of the
performance of the obligations of the Council hereinafter set forth:

GRANTING CLAUSE FIRST

All right, title and interest of the Council under the Loan Agreement (excluding fees and
expenses payable to the Council and rights of the Council to indemnity and notices thereunder
and excluding any payments made by the Borrower to comply with the rebate provisions of
Section 148(f) of the Code) if, as and when entered into by the Borrower and any documents
securing payment thereunder, including all extensions and renewals of any of the terms of the
Loan Agreement and any documents securing payment thereunder, if any, and without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, the present and continuing right to make claim for, collect,
receive and receipt for any income, issues and profits and other sums of money payable to or
receivable by the Council to bring actions or proceedings under the Loan Agreement, any
documents securing payment thereunder or for the enforcement thereof, and to do any and all
things which the Council is or may become entitled to do under or due to its ownership of the
interests hereby granted in the Loan Agreement; and

THIS TRUST INDENTURE FURTHER WITNESSETH, and it is expressly declared, that
all Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be issued, authenticated and delivered and all of
the Trust Estate is to be dealt with and disposed of, under, upon and subject to the terms,
conditions, stipulations, covenants, agreements, trusts, uses and purposes hereinafter
expressed, and the Council has agreed and covenanted, and does hereby agree and covenant,
with the Trustee and with the respective owners, from time to time, of the Bonds, or any part
thereof, as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION

SECTION 1.01. Definitions.

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this Section shall, for all
purposes of this Indenture and of any Supplemental Indenture, have the meanings herein
specified.

"Accountant” or "Accountants” means an independent certified public accountant or a
firm of independent certified public accountants.

"Accounts” means the accounts created pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof.

"Act" means collectively, Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, Chapter 166, Part II,
Florida Statutes, and Chapter 125, Part I, as amended, and all other applicable provisions of law.

"Additional Payments" means payments required by Section 5.03 of the Loan
Agreement.

"Amortization Installment" with respect to any Term Bonds, shall mean an amount so
designated for mandatory principal installments (for mandatory call or otherwise) payable on
any Terms Bonds issued under the provisions of this Indenture.

"Arbitrage Regulations” means the income tax regulations promulgated, proposed or
applicable pursuant to Section 148 of the Code, as the same may be amended or supplemented
or proposed to be amended or supplemented from time to time.

"Authorized Denominations” means $5,000 and integral multiples thereof.

"Authorized Representative" means, when used pertaining to the Council, the Chairman
of the Council and such other designated members, agents or representatives as may hereafter
be selected by Council resolution and, when used with reference to a Borrower which is a
municipality, means the person performing the functions of the Mayor or Deputy or Vice
Mayor thereof and, when used with reference to a Borrower which is a County means the



person performing the functions of the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of County
Commissioners of such Borrower, and, when used with reference to an act or document, also
means any other person authorized by resolution to perform such act or sign such document.

"Average Debt Service Requirement’ means the total amount of Debt Service
Requirement on the series of Bonds to become due on all Bonds of such series divided by the
total number of years for which such series of Bonds are deemed to be Outstanding.

"Basic Payments" means the payments denominated as such in Section 5.01 of the Loan
Agreement.

"Board" means the governing body of the Borrower.

"Bond Counsel" means Bryant Miller Olive P.A., Tampa, Florida, or any other nationally
recognized bond counsel which is selected by the Council and acceptable to the Trustee.

"Bondholder" or "Holder" or "holder of Bonds" or "Owner" or "owner of Bonds",
whenever used herein with respect to a Bond, means the person in whose name such Bond is
registered.

"Bonds" means collectively, the $4,320,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B-1 (Village of Pinecrest Series) and the $1,505,000 Florida
Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B-2 (Village of Pinecrest Series) issued
hereunder.

"Bond Year" means a 12-month period beginning on October 2, ending on and including
the following October 1, except for the first period which begins on March 2, 2011 and ends on
October 1, 2011.

"Borrower" means a governmental unit which has entered into a Loan Agreement and
which is borrowing and using the Loan proceeds to finance, refinance and/or be reimbursed for,
all or a portion of the costs of one or more Projects. The Borrower for the Bonds hereunder is
the Village of Pinecrest.

"Business Day" means a day of the year which is not a Saturday or Sunday or a day on
which the Trustee is lawfully closed or on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed.

"Certificate," "Statement,” "Request," "Requisition” and "Order" of the Council mean,
respectively, a written certificate, statement, request, requisition or order signed in the name of
the Council by its Chairman, Executive Director or such other person as may be designated and
authorized to sign for the Council. Any such instrument and supporting opinions or
representations, if any, may, but need not, be combined in a single instrument with any other

"Executive Director" means the Executive Director of the Program Administrator and his
successor.

"Financial Newspaper" or "Journal” means The Wall Street Journal or The Bond Buyer or
any other newspaper or journal containing financial news, printed in the English language,
customarily published on each Business Day and circulated in New York, New York, and
selected by the Trustee, whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Borrower.

"Fitch" means Fitch, Inc. d/b/a Fitch Ratings, a corporation organized and existing under
the laws of the State of Delaware, its successors and assigns and if such corporation shall be
dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency,
"Fitch" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency
designated by the Council by notice to the Trustee.

"Funds" means the funds created pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof.

"Governmental Obligations” means (a) direct and general obligations of the United
States of America, or those which are unconditionally guaranteed as to principal and interest by
the same, and (b) pre-refunded municipal obligations meeting the following criteria:

(i) the municipal obligations must be rated AAA by S&P and AAA by Fitch
and may not be callable prior to maturity or, alternatively, the trustee has received
irrevocable instructions concerning their calling and redemption;

(i) the municipal obligations are secured by cash or securities described in
clause (a) above (the "Defeasance Obligations"), which cash or Defeasance Obligations
may be applied only to interest, principal, and premium payments of such municipal
obligations;

(iti)  the principal and interest of the Defeasance Obligations (plus any cash in
the fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the municipal obligations;

(iv)  the Defeasance Obligations serving as security for the municipal
obligations must be held by an escrow agent or a trustee; and

) the Defeasance Obligations are not available to satisfy any other claims,
including those against the Trustee or escrow agent.

Additionally, evidences of ownership of proportionate interests in future interest and
principal payments of Defeasance Obligations are permissible. Investments in these
proportionate interests are limited to circumstances wherein (a) a bank or trust company acts as
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instrument, opinion or representation, and the two or more so combined shall be read and
construed as a single instrument.

"Closing" means the closing of a Loan pursuant to this Indenture and a Loan Agreement.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations
promulgated, proposed, or applicable thereunder.

"Commencement Date" means the date when the term of a Loan Agreement begins and
the obligation of the Borrower thereunder to make Loan Repayments accrues.

"Council” means the Florida Municipal Loan Council.
"Cost" means "Cost" as defined in the Act.
"Cost of Issuance Fund" means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 hereof.

"Counsel" means an attorney duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of
any state and, without limitation, may include legal counsel for either the Council or the
Borrower.

"Debt Service Requirement" means for any Bond year, at any time, the amount required
to be deposited in such Bond Year into the Revenue Fund, as provided herein.

"Default” means an event or condition the occurrence of which would, with the lapse of
time or the giving of notice or both, become an Event of Default.

"Depository" means the securities depository acting as Depository under this Indenture,
which may be the Council.

"Designated Member" means any designated person selected by the Council.

"Designated Office” means, with respect to the Trustee, the office set forth in or pursuant
to Section 14.05 hereof.

"DTC" means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors
and assigns.

"Escrow Deposit Agreement" means the Escrow Deposit Agreement, dated as of March
1, 2011, between the Council and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as escrow agent.

"Event of Default" means any occurrence or event specified in Section 9.01 hereof.

custodian and holds the underlying obligations; (b) the owner of the investment is the real party
in interest and has the right to proceed directly and individually against the obligor of the
underlying obligations; and (c) the underlying obligations are held in a special account separate
and apart from the custodian’s general assets, and are not available to satisfy any claim of the
custodian, any person claiming through the custodian, or any person to whom the custodian
may be obligated.

"Indenture” means this Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2011 between the Council
and the Trustee, including any indentures supplemental thereto, pursuant to which (i) the
Bonds are authorized to be issued and (ii) the Council’s interest in the Trust Estate is pledged as
security for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.

"Interest Payment Date" means April 1 and October 1 of each year, beginning October 1,
2011.

"Interest Period"” means the period commencing on an Interest Payment Date and ending
on the day preceding the next Interest Payment Date, provided that the initial Interest Period
shall commence on the dated date of the Bonds.

"Interlocal Act" means Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes.

"Interlocal Agreement" means that certain Interlocal Agreement originally dated as of
December 1, 1998, among the various governmental entities executing it from time to time,
(until the withdrawal of such members) the original parties to which are the City of Stuart, the
City of Deland and the City of Rockledge.

"Investment Securities" means any securities lawful for investment under the laws of the
State of Florida.

"Liquidation Proceeds" means amounts received by the Trustee or the Council in
connection with the enforcement of any of the remedies under a Loan Agreement after the
occurrence of an "event of default' under a Loan Agreement which has not been waived or
cured.

"Loan" means a loan to a Borrower from proceeds of the Bonds to finance, refinance or
reimburse a Project or Projects pursuant to a Loan Agreement in the amount specified in Section
3.01 of the Loan Agreement.

"Loan Agreement” means the Loan Agreement between the Council and the Borrower
participating in the Program with respect to the Bonds, and any amendments and supplements
thereto which are executed for the purpose of securing repayment of the Loan made by the
Council to such participating Borrower from proceeds of a Series of Bonds and establishing the
terms and conditions upon which such Loan is to be made.



"Loan Repayment Date" means September 20, 2011 and thereafter each March 20th and
September 20th or if such day is not a Business Day, the next preceding Business Day.

"Loan Repayments" means the payments of principal and interest and other payments
payable by the Borrower pursuant to the provisions of the Loan Agreement.

"Loan Term" means the term provided for in Article IV of the Loan Agreement.
"Loans" means all loans made by the Council under this Indenture to the Borrower.

"Non-Ad Valorem Revenues" means, with respect to the Borrower, all revenues and
taxes of such Borrower derived from any source whatsoever other than ad valorem taxation on
real and personal property, which are legally available for Loan Repayments.

"Opinion of Bond Counsel” means an opinion by a nationally recognized bond counsel
firm experienced in matters relating to the exclusion from gross income of interest payable on
obligations of states and their instrumentalities and political subdivisions, and which is selected
by the Council and acceptable to the Trustee.

"Opinion of Counsel" means an opinion in writing of a legal counsel, who may, but need
not be, counsel to the Council, a Borrower or the Trustee.

"Outstanding" or "Bonds Outstanding” means all Bonds which have been authenticated
and delivered by the Trustee under this Indenture, except:

(a) Bonds canceled after purchase in the open market or because of payment
at maturity or redemption prior to maturity;

(b) Bonds deemed paid under Article VIII hereof; and

(c) Bonds in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated under
Section 2.06, 2.07 or 2.09 hereof.

"Paying Agent" means the Trustee.

"Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, association, trust or any other
entity or organization including a government or political subdivision or an agency or
instrumentality thereof.

"Principal Payment Date" means the maturity date or mandatory redemption date of any
Bond.

"Program" means the Council’s program of making Loans under the Act and pursuant to
this Indenture.

"Program Administrator" means the Florida League of Cities, Inc., a non profit Florida
corporation.

"Series 2011B-2 Principal Fund" means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02
hereof.

"Special Record Date" means the date established pursuant to Section 9.05 as a record
date for the payment of defaulted interest on the Bonds.

"State" means the State of Florida.

"Supplemental Indenture” means any indenture hereafter duly authorized and entered
into between the Council and the Trustee, supplementing, modifying or amending this
Indenture, but only if and to the extent that such Supplemental Indenture is specifically
authorized hereunder.

"Taxable Bonds" means any Bond that the interest income thereof is includable in the
gross income of the Bondholder thereof for federal income tax purposes or that such interest is
subject to federal income taxation.

"Term Bonds" mean the Bonds which are subject to Amortization Installments, and are
designated as Term Bonds.

"Trustee” means Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Trustee, or any successor
thereto under this Indenture.

"Trust Estate" means the property, rights, Revenues and other assets pledged and
assigned to the Trustee pursuant to the Granting Clauses hereof.

SECTION 1.02. Rules of Interpretation. For all purposes of this Indenture, except as
otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) "This Indenture” means this instrument as originally executed and as it
may from time to time be supplemented, modified or amended by any Supplemental
Indenture.

(b) All reference in this instrument to designated "Articles”, "Sections" and

other subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this
instrument as originally executed. The words "herein”, "hereof", "hereunder" and
"herewith", and other words of similar import, refer to this Indenture as a whole and not
to any particular Article, Section or other subdivision.

(0 The terms defined in this Article have the meanings assigned to them in
this Article and include the plural as well as the singular.

(d) All accounting terms not otherwise defined herein have the meanings
assigned to them in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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"Project” or "Projects" means a governmental undertaking approved by the governing
body of a Borrower for a public purpose, including the refinancing of any indebtedness and
shall specifically be the Project as described in the Borrower's Loan Agreement.

"Project Loan Fund" means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 hereof.

"Purchase Price" means the purchase price of one or more items of a Project negotiated
by a Borrower with the seller of such items.

"Rating Category" means one of the generic rating categories of either Fitch or S&P,
without regard of any refinement or graduation of such rating category by a numerical modifier
or otherwise.

"Rebate Fund" means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 hereof.

"Record Date" means, with respect to any Interest Payment Date, the fifteenth day of the
calendar month preceding such Interest Payment Date.

"Redemption Price" means, with respect to any Bond (or portion thereof), the principal
amount of such Bond (or portion) plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon
redemption pursuant to the provisions of such Bond and this Indenture.

"Refunded Bonds" means the pro rata portion of the Issuer's Revenue Bonds (Series 1999)
and relating to the Borrower's loan therefrom.

"Registrar” means the Trustee.
"Representation Letter" shall mean the Representation Letter from the Council to DTC.

"Revenue Fund" means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02 hereof and all
accounts therein.

"Revenues" means all Loan Repayments paid to the Trustee for the respective Accounts
of the Borrower for deposit in the respective Revenue Fund and the respective Principal Fund to
pay principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the corresponding series of Bonds when due,
and all receipts of the Trustee credited to the Borrower under the provisions of the related Loan
Agreement.

"S&P" means Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, its successors and
assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the
functions of a securities rating agency, "S&P" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally
recognized securities rating agency designated by the Council, by notice to the Trustee.

"Series 2011B-1 Principal Fund" means the fund by that name created by Section 4.02
hereof.
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(e) The terms defined elsewhere in this Indenture shall have the meanings
therein prescribed for them.
(f) Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include

correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders.
(8) The headings or captions used in this Indenture are for convenience of
reference only and shall not define or limit or describe any of the provisions hereof or the

scope or intent hereof.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)



ARTICLE I
THE BONDS
SECTION 2.01. Authorization; Book-Entry System.

(a) Authorization, Issuance and Execution of Bonds. Bonds may be issued in one or
more series hereunder in order to obtain moneys to carry out the purposes of the Program for
the benefit of the Council and the Borrower. The Bonds shall be designated as "Florida
Municipal Loan Council Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B-1 (Village of Pinecrest Series)"
and "Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B-2 (Village of Pinecrest
Series)." At any time after the execution of this Indenture, the Council may execute and the
Trustee shall authenticate and, upon request of the Council, deliver the Bonds in the aggregate
principal amounts set forth in the definition of "Bonds." This Indenture constitutes a continuing
agreement with the Owners from time to time of the Bonds appertaining thereto to secure the
full payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all such Bonds subject to the
covenants, provisions and conditions herein contained.

The Bonds shall be issuable as fully registered bonds without coupons and shall be
executed in the name and on behalf of the Council with the manual or facsimile signature of its
Chairman, under its seal attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Executive Director
or Designated Member. Such seal may be in the form of a facsimile of the Council’s seal and
may be reproduced, imprinted or impressed on the Bonds. The Bonds shall then be delivered to
the Registrar, as hereinafter defined, for authentication by it. In case any of the officers who
shall have signed or attested any of the Bonds shall cease to be such officer or officers of the
Council before the Bonds so signed and attested shall have been authenticated or delivered by
the Registrar or issued by the Council, such Bonds may nevertheless be authenticated, delivered
and issued and, upon such authentication, delivery and issue, shall be as binding upon the
Council as though those who signed and attested the same had continued to be such officers of
the Council, and also any Bond may be signed and attested on behalf of the Council by such
persons as at the actual date of execution of such Bond shall be the proper officers of the
Council although at the nominal date of such Bond any such person shall not have been such
officer of the Council.

Only such of the Bonds as shall bear thereon a certificate of authentication substantially
in the form hereinafter recited, manually executed by the Registrar as hereinafter defined, shall
be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled to the benefits of this Indenture, and such
certificate of the Registrar shall be conclusive evidence that the Bonds so authenticated have
been duly executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder and are entitled to the benefits of
this Indenture.

(b)  The Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate single certificated
fully registered Bond for each of the maturities of the Series. Upon initial issuance, the
ownership of each such Bond shall be registered in the registration books kept by the Registrar
in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. Except as provided in this Section, all of the
outstanding Bonds shall be registered in the registration books kept by the Registrar in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

authenticated on an Interest Payment Date, in which case it shall bear interest from such
Interest Payment Date, or unless authenticated prior to the first payment date, in which case it
shall bear interest from its date.

The Series 2011B-1 Bonds shall bear interest and shall mature at the rates, in the amounts
and on the dates set forth below:

$4,320,000 Serial Bonds
Maturity Principal
(October 1) Amount Interest Rate
2011 $115,000 2.00%
2012 475,000 3.00
2013 490,000 3.00
2014 505,000 3.00
2015 515,000 250
2016 530,000 275
2017 545,000 3.00
2018 565,000 3.25
2019 580,000 3.50

The Series 2011B-2 Bonds shall bear interest and shall mature at the rates, in the amounts
and on the dates set forth below:

$510,000 Serial Bonds
Maturity Principal
(October 1) Amount Interest Rate
2011 $30,000 2.00%
2012 55,000 2.00
2013 55,000 2.00
2014 60,000 2.00
2015 60,000 2.50
2016 60,000 2.75
2017 60,000 3.00
2018 65,000 3.25
2019 65,000 3.50

Term Bond Due October 1, 2030 - $995,000 - 5.00%

With respect to Bonds registered in the registration books kept by the Registrar in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the Council, the Registrar and the Paying Agent shall
have no responsibility or obligation to any such Participant or to any indirect participant.
Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the Council, the Registrar and the Paying
Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of
DTC, Cede & Co. or any Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the
delivery to any Participant or any other person other than a Bondholder, as shown in the
registration books kept by the Registrar, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any
notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any Participant or any other person, other than a
Bondholder, as shown in the registration books kept by the Registrar, of any amount with
respect to principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds. The Council, the Registrar
and the Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in whose name each Bond is registered
in the registration books kept by the Registrar as the holder and absolute owner of such Bond
for the purpose of payment of principal, premium and interest with respect to such Bond, for
the purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for
the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes
whatsoever. The Paying Agent shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the
Bonds only to or upon the order of the respective Holders, as shown in the registration books
kept by the Registrar, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, as provided
herein and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the
Council’s obligations with respect to payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on
the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than a Holder, as shown in
the registration books kept by the Registrar, shall receive a certificated Bond evidencing the
obligation of the Council to make payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest pursuant
to the provisions hereof. Upon delivery by DTC to the Council of written notice to the effect
that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the
provisions herein with respect to Record Dates, the words "Cede & Co." in this Indenture shall
refer to such new nominee of DTC; and upon receipt of such a notice the Council shall promptly
deliver a copy of the same to the Registrar and the Paying Agent.

Upon receipt by the Council of written notice from DTC (i) to the effect that DTC has
received written notice from the Council to the effect that a continuation of the requirement that
all of the outstanding Bonds be registered in the registration books kept by the Registrar in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, is not in the best interest of the beneficial owners of
the Bonds or (ii) to the effect that DTC is unable or unwilling to discharge its responsibilities
and no substitute depository willing to undertake the functions of DTC hereunder can be found
which is willing and able to undertake such functions upon reasonable and customary terms,
the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the registration books kept by the
Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in whatever
name or names Holders transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with
the provision hereof.

SECTION 2.02. Maturity and Interest Rate Provisions. The Bonds shall be dated
March 2, 2011. They shall be numbered consecutively from R-1 upward. They shall be in the
denomination of $5,000 each, or integral multiples thereof. Each Bond shall bear interest from
the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date on which it is authenticated, unless
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SECTION 2.03. Payment Provisions. The principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America
which on the respective dates of payment thereof is legal tender for the payment of public and
private debts. Principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable at the designated
corporate trust office of the Trustee, or any successor paying agent and registrar appointed
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 10.12 and 10.13 hereof (the "Paying Agent" or "Registrar”),
and payment of the interest on each Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent on each Interest
Payment Date to the person appearing as the registered owner thereof on the bond registration
books maintained by the Registrar as of the close of business on the Record Date preceding the
Interest Payment Date (or, if interest on the Bonds is in default, a Special Record Date
established pursuant to Section 9.05), by check mailed on the Interest Payment Date to such
registered owner at his address as it appears on such registration books or at the prior written
request and expense of an owner of $1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Bonds, by bank
wire transfer to a domestic bank account, notwithstanding the cancellation of any such Bonds
upon any exchange or transfer thereof subsequent to the Record Date or Special Record Date
and prior to such Interest Payment Date. Payment of the principal (or redemption price), of the
Bonds shall be made upon the presentation and surrender of such Bonds as the same shall
become due and payable.

SECTION 2.04. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds; Bonds Not
Delivered for Redemption. If any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Council shall
execute and the Registrar shall authenticate a new Bond of the same date, maturity and
denomination as that mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed; provided that in the case of any
mutilated Bond, such mutilated Bond shall first be surrendered to the Registrar, and in the case
of any lost, stolen or destroyed Bond, there shall be first furnished to the Council and the
Registrar evidence of such loss, theft or destruction satisfactory to the Council and the Registrar,
together with an indemnity satisfactory to them. In the event any such Bond shall have
matured or been called for redemption, instead of issuing a duplicate Bond, the Paying Agent
may pay the same. The Council and the Registrar may charge the Owner of such Bond with
their reasonable fees and expenses in connection with replacing any Bond mutilated, lost, stolen
or destroyed.

SECTION 2.05. Transfer and Exchange of Bonds; Persons Treated as Owners.
The Council shall cause books for the registration and transfer of the Bonds, as provided in this
Indenture, to be kept by the Registrar. Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the
Designated Office of the Registrar, accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the
registered Owner or his attorney-in-fact duly authorized in writing, the Council shall execute
and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a
new Bond or Bonds for a like aggregate principal amount.

Bonds of the same type may be exchanged at the Designated Office of the Registrar for a
like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other Authorized Denominations. The Council
shall execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds which the Bondholder
making the exchange is entitled to receive, bearing numbers not contemporaneously
outstanding.



The Registrar shall not be required to (i) transfer or exchange any Bonds during the ten
(10) days next preceding any day upon which notice of redemption of Bonds is to be mailed or
(ii) transfer or exchange any Bonds selected, called or being called for redemption in whole or in
part.

The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded
by the Trustee, the Registrar, the Paying Agent and the Council as the absolute Owner thereof
for all purposes, and payment of or on account of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest
on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the written order of the registered Owner thereof or
his legal representative, subject to Section 2.03 hereof, and neither the Council nor the Trustee,
the Paying Agent nor the Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but such
registration may be changed as hereinabove provided. All such payments shall be valid and
effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums
paid.

A reasonable transfer charge may be made for any exchange or transfer of any Bond and
the Registrar shall require the payment by any Bondholder requesting exchange or transfer of a
sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to
such exchange or transfer and a sum sufficient to pay the cost of preparing each new Bond
issued upon such exchange or transfer.

SECTION 2.06. Cancellation of Bonds. Whenever any Outstanding Bond shall be
delivered to the Registrar for cancellation pursuant to this Indenture, upon payment of the
principal amount, or for replacement pursuant to Section 2.06 hereof or for transfer or exchange
pursuant to Sections 2.07 or 2.09 hereof, such Bond shall be canceled by the Registrar.

SECTION 2.07. Temporary Bonds. Pending the preparation of definitive Bonds,
the Council may execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver temporary Bonds.
Temporary Bonds shall be issuable as fully registered Bonds, of any Authorized Denomination,
and substantially in the form of the definitive Bonds but with such omissions, insertions and
variations as may be appropriate for temporary Bonds, all as may be determined by the
Council. Temporary Bonds may be issued without specific terms and may contain such
reference to any provisions of this Indenture as may be appropriate. Every temporary Bond
shall be executed by the Council and authenticated by the Registrar upon the same conditions
and in substantially the same manner, and with like effect, as the definitive Bonds. As
promptly as practicable, the Council shall execute and shall furnish definitive Bonds and
thereupon temporary Bonds may be surrendered in exchange therefor without charge at the
principal corporate trust office of the Registrar, and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver
in exchange for such temporary Bonds a like aggregate principal amount of definitive Bonds.
Until so exchanged, the temporary Bonds shall be entitled to the same benefits under this
Indenture as definitive Bonds.

SECTION 2.08. Nonpresentment of Bonds. In the event any Bond shall not be
presented for payment when the principal thereof becomes due, either at maturity, or at the
date fixed for redemption thereof, or otherwise, or if any interest check shall not be cashed, if
funds sufficient to pay such Bond or interest shall have been made available by the Council to
the Trustee or Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owner thereof, all liability of the Council to

ARTICLE IIT
REDEMPTION OF BONDS

SECTION 3.01. Optional Redemption of the Bonds.
The Series 2011B-1 Bonds maturing on or before October 1, 2020 are not subject to
optional redemption prior to their maturities.

The Series 2011B-2 Bonds maturing on or before October 1, 2020 are not subject to
optional redemption prior to their maturities. The Series 2011B-2 Bonds maturing after October
1, 2021 are subject to redemption at the option of the Council on or after October 1, 2021 as a
whole or in part at any time, in any manner as determined by the Trustee in its discretion taking
into consideration the maturity of the Loan being prepaid by a Borrower whose Loan secures
the Series 2011B-2 Bonds, at the redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Series
2011B-2 Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

SECTION 3.02. Mandatory Redemption of Bonds.

The Series 2011B-2 Bonds maturing on October 1, 2030 are subject to mandatory
redemption, in part, by lot, at redemption prices equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof
plus interest accrued to the redemption date, beginning on October 1, 2020 and on each
October] thereafter, in the following principal amounts in the following years:

Year Principal Amount
2020 $70,000
2021 $70,000
2022 $75,000
2023 $80,000
2024 $85,000
2025 $90,000
2026 $95,000
2027 $100,000
2028 $105,000
2029 $110,000
2030 $115,000

“Maturity, not a redemption.

Each series of Bonds is subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption as a result of
acceleration of any Loan pursuant to a Loan Agreement which secures that particular series of
Bonds at any time, in whole or in part, at a redemption price of the principal amount thereof,
plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium, from all Liquidation Proceeds

the Owner thereof for the payment of such Bond or interest, as the case may be, shall forthwith
cease, terminate and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Trustee
or Paying Agent to hold such funds, uninvested and without liability for interest thereon, for
the benefit of the Owner of such Bond or interest, as the case may be, who shall thereafter be
restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this
Indenture or on, or with respect to, said Bond or interest, as the case may be, provided that any
money deposited with the Trustee or Paying Agent for the payment of the principal of (and
premium, if any) or interest on any Bond and remaining unclaimed for six years after such
principal (and premium, if any) or interest has become due and payable shall be paid to the
Council, and the Owner of such Bond or interest, as the case may be, shall thereafter, as an
unsecured general creditor, look only to the Council for payment thereof, and all liability of the
Trustee or Paying Agent with respect to such trust money shall thereupon cease; provided,
however, that the Trustee, before making any such payment to the Council, shall, at the expense
of the Council, cause to be published once, in a Financial Newspaper or Journal, notice that such
money remains unclaimed and that, after a date specified therein, which shall not be less than
30 days from the date of such publication, any unclaimed balance of such money then
remaining will be paid to the Council.

SECTION 2.09. Form of Bonds. The Bonds to be issued hereunder, and the
certificate of authentication by the Registrar to be endorsed on all such Bonds, shall be
substantially in the form set forth as Exhibit A hereto, with such variations, omissions and
insertions as are permitted by this Indenture or are required to conform the form of Bond to the
other provisions of this Indenture (any portion of such form of Bond may be printed on the back
of the Bonds).

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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received by the Trustee as a result of an acceleration of any Loan or Loans securing that
particular series of Bonds.

SECTION 3.03. Notice of Redemption. In the case of every redemption, the
Registrar, at the direction of the Trustee, shall cause notice of such redemption to be given to the
registered Owner of any series of Bonds designated for redemption in whole or in part, at his
address as the same shall last appear upon the Bond registration books by mailing a copy of the
redemption notice by first-class mail at least thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date. The
failure of the Registrar to give notice to a Bondholder or any defect in such notice shall not
affect the validity of the redemption of any other Bonds. A copy of any such notice shall also be
sent by the Registrar to any person necessary to ensure compliance by the Council with
applicable rules and regulations regarding such notices.

Each notice of redemption shall specify the date fixed for redemption, the redemption
price to be paid, the place or places of payment, that payment will be made upon presentation
and surrender of the Bonds to be redeemed, that interest, if any, accrued to the date fixed for
redemption will be paid as specified in said notice, and that on and after said date interest
thereon will cease to accrue. If less than all the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the
notice of redemption shall specify the numbers of the Bonds or portions thereof, including
CUSIP identification numbers to be redeemed.

The Registrar also shall mail a copy of such notice by registered or certified mail or
overnight delivery service (or by telecopy where permitted) for receipt not less than thirty (30)
days before such redemption date to the following: The Depository Trust Company, 711
Stewart Avenue, Garden City, New York 11530; provided, however, that such mailing shall not
be a condition precedent to such redemption and failure so to mail any such notice shall not
affect the validity of any proceedings for the redemption of Bonds.

In the case of an optional redemption, any notice of redemption may state that (1) it is
conditioned upon the deposit of moneys, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect
the redemption, with the Registrar, Paying Agent or a fiduciary institution acting as escrow
agent no later than the redemption date or (2) the Council retains the right to rescind such
notice on or prior to the scheduled redemption date (in either case, a "Conditional
Redemption"), and such notice and optional redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys are
not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded as described in this section. Any such notice of
Conditional Redemption shall be captioned "Conditional Notice of Redemption.” Any
Conditional Redemption may be rescinded at any time prior to the redemption date if the
Program Administrator delivers a written direction to the Registrar directing the Registrar to
rescind the redemption notice. The Registrar shall give prompt notice of such rescission to the
affected Bondholders. Any Bonds subject to Conditional Redemption where redemption has
been rescinded shall remain Outstanding, and neither the rescission nor the failure by the
Council to make such funds available shall constitute an Event of Default under this Indenture.
The Registrar shall give immediate notice to the securities information repositories and the
affected Bondholders that the redemption did not occur and that the affected Bonds called for
redemption and not so paid remain Outstanding.
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SECTION 3.04. Bonds Due and Payable on Redemption Date; Interest Ceases To
Accrue. On the redemption date, the principal amount of each Bond to be redeemed, together
with the accrued interest thereon to such date, shall become due and payable; and from and
after such date, notice (if required) having been given and moneys available solely for such
redemption being on deposit with the Trustee in accordance with the provisions of this Article
III, then, notwithstanding that any Bonds called for redemption shall not have been
surrendered, no further interest shall accrue on any of such Bonds or portions thereof to be
redeemed. From and after such date of redemption (such notice having been given and moneys
available solely for such redemption being on deposit with the Trustee), the Bonds or portions
thereof to be redeemed shall not be deemed to be Outstanding hereunder, and the Council shall
be under no further liability in respect thereof.

SECTION 3.05. Cancellation. All Bonds which have been redeemed shall be
canceled by the Registrar as provided in Section 2.08 hereof.

SECTION 3.06. Partial Redemption of Bonds. Upon surrender of any Bond in a
denomination greater than $5,000 called for redemption in part only, the Council shall execute
and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver to the registered Owner thereof a new Bond or
Bonds of Authorized Denominations in an aggregate principal amount equal to the
unredeemed portion of the Bond surrendered.

SECTION 3.07. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed. The Bonds shall be redeemed
pursuant to Sections 3.01 and 3.02 only in the principal amount of an Authorized
Denomination. The Bonds or portions of the Bonds to be redeemed shall, except as otherwise
provided in Section 3.02 hereof, be selected by the Registrar by lot or in such other manner as
the Council in its discretion may deem appropriate.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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not, than transferred to the Principal Fund and used to pay the next scheduled principal
payment for the corresponding series of Bonds.

From the proceeds of the Series 2011B-1 Bonds $4,220,260.55 shall be deposited into the
Escrow Deposit Agreement.

SECTION 4.04. Principal Fund. Upon the receipt of Loan Repayments or
Liquidation Proceeds, the Trustee shall deposit in the appropriate Principal Fund all payments
or recoveries of principal of Loans or payments to be applied to the payment of any premium
due upon optional redemption of such series of Bonds.

Amounts in each Principal Fund shall be used as follows: (1) to pay scheduled principal
payments of the corresponding series of Bonds and (2) to pay the principal of and premium, if
any, on the corresponding series of Bonds redeemed pursuant to Section 3.01 or Section 3.02
when required by such Sections. Upon acceleration of maturity of a series of Bonds pursuant to
Section 9.02, all amounts in the corresponding Principal Fund shall be used to pay maturing
principal of and interest on such series of Bonds.

SECTION 4.05. Revenue Fund. Upon the receipt of Loan Repayments and
Liquidation Proceeds or proceeds earmarked for capitalized interest, the Trustee shall deposit in
the corresponding Revenue Fund all moneys remaining after the deposits required by Section
4.04 hereof. All investment earnings on amounts in the Funds and Accounts (except the Rebate
Funds and the Project Loan Funds) shall be deposited in the appropriate Revenue Fund as
received. Any amounts received by the Trustee hereunder in connection with a particular series
of Bonds which are not required to be deposited elsewhere shall also be deposited in the
Revenue Fund corresponding to such series of Bonds.

Amounts in each Revenue Funds shall be used to make the following payments or
transfers in the following order of priority:

[6))] On each Interest Payment Date, to pay interest due on the corresponding
series of Bonds;

) At such times as are necessary, to pay accrued interest due on the
corresponding series of Bonds redeemed pursuant to Sections 3.01 or 3.02 hereof;

®) At such times as are necessary, to pay the fees and expenses of the Trustee,
DTC, the Program Administrator, the Registrar and the Paying Agent (including the cost of
printing additional Bonds of a series) and the fees and expenses of the Council (including costs
of issuing the Bonds if insufficient amounts are on hand in the Cost of Issuance Fund), any
counsel consulted by the Council with respect to any Loan, or of Accountants employed
pursuant to Section 4.12 hereof.

) On each Interest Payment Date of each year, all amounts remaining within

each Revenue Fund, other than fees being collected in installments pursuant to the relevant
Loan Agreement and amounts which will be credited against the relevant Borrower’s next Loan
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ARTICLE IV
REVENUES AND FUNDS

SECTION 4.01. Source of Payment of Bonds. The Bonds and all payments by the
Council hereunder are limited and special obligations of the Council and are payable solely out
of Revenues and certain proceeds of the Bonds as authorized by the Constitution and laws of
the State, including particularly the Act, as and to the extent provided herein. The Bonds and
the Council’s other obligations hereunder are solely and exclusively obligations of the Council
to the extent set forth herein and do not constitute or create an obligation, general or special, or
debt, liability or moral obligation of the State or any political subdivision or any municipal
corporation of the State. The Bonds shall not be or constitute a general obligation of the
Council, the State of Florida or any political subdivision or any municipal corporation thereof or
a lien upon any property owned or situated within the territorial limits of the Council, the State
of Florida or any political subdivision or any municipal corporation thereof except the Trust
Estate, in the manner provided herein and in the Loan Agreement.

SECTION 4.02. Creation of Funds and Accounts. There are hereby established by
the Council the following Funds and Accounts to be held by the Trustee:

(1) Project Loan Fund:
(a)  the Series 2011B-2 Project Loan Fund;

(2) Principal Funds:
(a) the Series 2011B-1 Principal Fund, and
(b) the Series 2011B-2 Principal Fund;

(3) Revenue Funds:
(a) the Series 2011B-1 Revenue Fund, and
(b) the Series 2011B-2 Revenue Fund;

(4) Cost of Issuance Funds:
(a) the Series 2011B-1 Cost of Issuance Fund, and
(b) the Series 2011B-2 Cost of Issuance Fund;

(5) Rebate Funds:
(a) the Series 2011B-1 Rebate Fund, and
(b) the Series 2011B-2 Rebate Fund.

SECTION 4.03. Project Loan Fund; Escrow Deposit. Interest earnings on
investments in the Project Loan Fund shall be held in and credited to the Project Loan Fund.
Upon the occurrence of an event of default under a Loan Agreement and the exercise by the
Trustee of the remedy of acceleration as specified in such Loan Agreement, any moneys in the
Project Loan Fund, if any, shall be transferred by the Trustee to the corresponding Principal
Fund and applied in accordance with the second paragraph of Section 4.04 hereof. Bond
proceeds remaining in a Project Loan Fund after the Completion of the Borrower's Project shall
be retained for a new Project in accordance with the procedures in the Loan Agreement, or if
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Repayments shall be deposited in the Principal Fund for the series of Bonds which corresponds
with the Revenue Fund for such series, as provided in Section 5.04 of the Loan Agreement.

SECTION 4.06. Cost of Issuance Fund. Moneys in each Cost of Issuance Fund
shall be used to pay costs of issuing the corresponding series of Bonds to the extent not paid
from other sources, which costs may include, all printing expenses in connection with this
Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the preliminary and final Official Statements for the Bonds and
the Bonds; the underwriter’s discount for the initial purchase of the Bonds; and legal fees and
expenses of counsel to the Council, bond counsel and fees of the financial advisor to the
Council; fees of the Program Administrator, any accounting expenses incurred in connection
with determining that the Bonds are not arbitrage bonds, the Trustee’s and the Paying Agent
and Registrar’s initial fees and expenses (including attorney’s fees), upon the submission of
requisitions by the Council signed by an officer of the Council stating the amount to be paid, to
whom it is to be paid and the reason for such payment, and that the amount of such requisition
is justly due and owing and has not been the subject of another requisition which was paid and
is a proper expense of issuing such Bonds. Any monies remaining in a Cost of Issuance Fund
on March 1, 2012 shall be transferred to the corresponding Revenue Fund and be credited
toward the Borrower’s obligation to pay Loan interest, taking into consideration the discount at
which such Loan was made as specified in Section 3.01 of each Loan Agreement.

SECTION 4.07. Application of Bond Proceeds. The proceeds of the Series 2011B-
1 Bonds in the sum of $4,274,321.89 shall be deposited with the Trustee (which amount is the
par amount of the Bonds less original issue discount plus premium, and less the underwriters
discount. From this amount $4,220,260.55 shall be deposited in the Escrow Deposit Agreement.
The remaining $54,061.34 shall be deposited into the costs of issuance account.

The proceeds of the Series 2011B-2 Bonds in the sum of $1,456,954.01 shall be deposited
with the Trustee as follows (which amount is the par amount of the Bonds less original issue
discount plus premium, and less the underwriters discount:

(i) In the Series 2011B-2 Cost of Issuance Fund, the total sum of $21,954.01;
(ii) In the Series 2011B-2 Project Loan Fund, the total sum of $1,435,000.

SECTION 4.08. Rebate Fund. In order to insure compliance with the rebate
provisions of Section 148(f) of the Code, the Council shall create the Rebate Funds. Such Funds
shall be held by the Trustee. The Rebate Funds need not be maintained if the Council shall have
received an Opinion of Bond Counsel acceptable to the Council to the effect that failure to
maintain the Rebate Fund shall not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from
gross income for purposes of Federal income taxation. Moneys in the Rebate Funds shall not be
considered moneys held under the Indenture and shall not constitute a part of the Trust Estate
held for the benefit of the Bondholders or the Council. Moneys in the Rebate Funds (including
earnings and deposits therein) shall be held for future payment to the United States
Government as required by the regulations and as set forth in instructions delivered to the
Council upon issuance of the Bonds.

SECTION 4.09. Moneys to be Held in Trust. With the exception of moneys
deposited in the Rebate Funds, all moneys required to be deposited with or paid to the Trustee
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for the account of any Fund or Account established under any provision of this Indenture shall
be held by the Trustee, in trust, and except for moneys deposited with or paid to the Trustee for
the redemption of Bonds, notice of the redemption of which has been duly given, and except as
otherwise provided in Section 2.10 hereof, shall, while held by the Trustee, constitute part of the
Trust Estate and be subject to the security interest created hereby.

SECTION 4.10. Reports from Trustee. Unless otherwise advised in writing, the
Trustee shall furnish monthly to the Council and to the Borrower, upon request, on the
twentieth (20th) day of the month following the month in which the Bonds are delivered, and
on the twentieth (20th) day of each month thereafter, a report on the status of each of the Funds
and Accounts established under this Article IV which are held by the Trustee, showing at least
the balance in each such Fund or Account as of the first day of the preceding month, the total of
deposits to and the total of disbursements from each such Fund or Account, the dates of such
deposits and disbursements, and the balance in each such Fund or Account on the last day of
the preceding month.

SECTION 4.11. Certain Verifications. The Council and the Trustee from time to
time may, but shall have no obligation to, cause a firm of Accountants to supply the Council
and the Trustee with such information as the Council or the Trustee may request in order to
determine in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the Council and the Trustee all matters
relating to (a) the sufficiency of projected cash flow receipts and disbursements on the Loans
and Funds described herein to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; (b) the actuarial
yields on the Loans and on the Bonds as the same may relate to any data or conclusions
necessary to verify that the Bonds are not arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Section 148 of
the Code; and (c) calculations related to rebate liability. Payment for costs and expenses
incurred in connection with supplying the foregoing information shall be paid from moneys in
the respective Revenue Funds pursuant to Section 4.05(3) hereof.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)

25

ARTICLE VI
SERVICING OF LOANS
SECTION 6.01. Loan Servicing. The Trustee shall be responsible for calculating
payments due in respect of the Loans, holding collateral pledged in respect of the Loans, if any,
and enforcing the Loans; provided, however, that the Trustee shall have no duty to take notice

of any default in respect of any Loan (other than a payment default) unless the Trustee shall be
notified of such default in a written instrument.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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ARTICLE V
PROJECT LOANS

SECTION 5.01. Terms and Conditions of Loans. The Council will make the
Loans to the Borrower in order to (i) finance the acquisition, installation and construction of the
Project by the Borrower and (ii) refund or refinance the 1999 Loan of the Borrower, or reimburse
funds previously expended by the Borrower, to acquire, install and construct Projects, all in
accordance with provisions more fully set forth in the Loan Agreement.

SECTION 5.02. Loan Closing Submission. No Loan shall be made by the Council
unless and until the documents required by Section 4.03 of the Loan Agreement are submitted
to the Council.

SECTION 5.03. Disbursement to Borrower from Project Loan Fund. The moneys
in the Project Loan Fund shall be applied in accordance with written requisitions provided to
the Trustee by the Borrower in the form attached to its Loan Agreement. After initial
disbursements for payment of eligible Costs (whether from the Project Loan Fund or other Bond
proceeds), disbursement to or at the direction of the Borrower will be made only if (i) such
Borrower is not then in default under this Indenture or the Loan Agreement or the other Bond
documents, and (ii) only in accordance with such requisitions.

Except for an initial draw on the date the Bonds are issued and the final draw under the
terms of this Indenture, the Borrower shall not make more than two (2) requests for a
construction or project draw per calendar month. Each draw request must be received by the
Trustee at least four (4) days prior to the date the requested draw is to be made. The draw dates
upon which funds may be released pursuant to the written request shall be on the first Business
Day of the month and the second Business Day of the month following the 15% day of the
month.

Each draw request by the Borrower shall constitute an affirmation that the material
warranties and representations contained in this Indenture and the Loan Agreement remain
true and correct and that no breach of the covenants contained in this Indenture or the Loan
Agreement has occurred as of the date of the draw, and the Trustee shall be entitled to
exclusively rely on such representation and shall be fully indemnified by the Borrower from
any liability resulting from such reliance, and shall have no liability to any other party, unless
the Trustee is notified in writing to the contrary prior to the disbursement of the requested
Project Loan Fund draw.

All requisitions received by the Trustee shall be substantially in the form attached to the
Loan Agreement as Exhibit E, as required in this Article as conditions of payment from the
Project Loan Fund, shall be conclusively relied upon by the Trustee as to the matters set forth
therein and shall be retained in the possession of the Trustee, subject at all times to the
inspection by the Council, the Borrower and their agents and representatives thereof.
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ARTICLE VII
INVESTMENT OF MONEYS

Moneys in any of the Funds and Accounts shall be invested by the Trustee, at the
direction of the Council through its Program Administrator, which direction may be in writing
or telephonically, promptly confirmed in writing. The Trustee shall assume that any
investment directed by the Council or any Borrower is lawful.

Moneys in the Funds and Accounts shall be invested at the direction of the Council
through its Program Administrator in Investment Securities with respect to which payments of
principal thereof and interest thereon are scheduled or otherwise payable not later than the
dates on which it is estimated that such moneys will be required by the Trustee for the purposes
specified in this Indenture. Investment Securities acquired pursuant to this Section under a
repurchase agreement with the seller thereof may be deemed to mature on the dates on and in
the amounts (i.e.,, for the repurchase price) which the Trustee may deliver such Investment
Securities to such seller for repurchase under such agreement.

Investment Securities acquired as an investment of moneys in any Fund or Account
shall be credited to such Fund or Account. For the purpose of determining the amount in any
Fund or Account, all Investment Securities credited to any such Fund or Account shall be
valued at market value on the date of determination; provided, however, that repurchase
agreements shall be valued at the aggregate repurchase price of the securities remaining to be
repurchased pursuant to such agreements and investment agreements shall be valued at the
aggregate amount remaining invested therein (in each case exclusive of accrued interest after
the first payment of interest following purchase). With respect to all Funds and Accounts,
valuation by the Program Administrator shall occur annually and immediately upon a
withdrawal from a Reserve Fund.

All interest, profits and other income earned from investment (other than in Loans) of all
moneys in any Fund or Account for a particular series (except the Rebate Funds and the Project
Loan Fund) shall be deposited when received in the Revenue Fund for such series, except that
an amount of interest received with respect to any Investment Security equal to the amount of
accrued interest, if any, paid as part of the purchase price of such Investment Security shall be
credited to the Fund or Account from which such accrued interest was paid. Interest earned on
the Project Loan Funds shall be credited to such Project Loan Funds.

Subject to Section 13.08 hereof and except as provided herein, investments in any and all
Funds and Accounts may be commingled for purposes of making, holding and disposing of
investments, notwithstanding provisions herein for transfer to or holding in particular Funds
and Accounts of amounts received or held by the Trustee hereunder, provided that,
notwithstanding any such commingling, the Trustee shall at all times account for such
investments strictly in accordance with the Funds and Accounts to which they are credited and
otherwise as provided in this Indenture. The Trustee may act as principal or agent in the
acquisition or disposition of Investment Securities. The Trustee may sell, or present for
redemption, any Investment Securities so purchased whenever it shall be necessary in order to
provide moneys to meet any required payment, transfer, withdrawal or disbursement from the
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Fund or Account to which such Investment Security is credited, and the Trustee shall not be
liable or responsible for any loss resulting from any investment made pursuant to this Article
VIL

All amounts representing accrued and capitalized interest, if any, shall be invested at the
written direction of the Council through its Program Administrator only in Government
Obligations maturing at such times, and in such amounts as are necessary to match the interest
payments on the Bonds.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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(i) stating the date when the principal of each such Bond is to be paid,
whether at maturity or on a redemption date (which shall be any redemption date permitted by
this Indenture);

(ii) to call for redemption pursuant to this Indenture any Bonds to be
redeemed prior to maturity pursuant to (i) hereof; and

(iii) if all the Bonds are not to be redeemed within 30 days, to mail, as soon as
practicable, in the manner prescribed by Article III hereof, a notice to the Owners of the Bonds
that the deposit required by (a)(ii) above has been made with the Trustee and that said Bonds
are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this Article and stating the maturity or
redemption date upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal or
redemption price, if applicable, of the Bonds as specified in (i) hereof; and

) if any Bonds are to be redeemed within the next 30 days, until proper notice of
redemption of those Bonds has been given.

Any moneys so deposited with the Trustee as provided in the two foregoing paragraphs
may at the direction of the Council also be invested and reinvested in Governmental
Obligations described in clause (i) of the definition thereof, maturing in the amounts and at the
times as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from all such Governmental Obligations in the
hands of the Trustee pursuant to this Article which is not required for the payment of the Bonds
and interest thereon with respect to which such moneys shall have been so deposited, shall be
paid to the Council as and when realized if not needed to pay any fees or expenses provided for
hereunder.

No deposit under this Article shall be made or accepted hereunder and no use made of
any such deposit unless the Trustee shall have received an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the
effect that such deposit and use would not cause the Bonds to be treated as arbitrage bonds
within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code.

Notwithstanding any provision of any other Article of this Indenture which may be
contrary to the provisions of this Article, all moneys or Governmental Obligations set aside and
held in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Article for the payment of Bonds (including
interest thereon) shall be applied to and used solely for the payment of the particular Bonds
(including interest thereon) with respect to which such moneys or obligations have been so set
aside in trust.

Anything in Article XI hereof to the contrary notwithstanding, if moneys or obligations
have been deposited or set aside with the Trustee pursuant to this Article for the payment of
Bonds and interest thereon when due and such Bonds and interest shall not have in fact been
actually paid in full when due, no amendment to the provisions of this Article shall be made
without the consent of the Owner of each Bond affected thereby.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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ARTICLE VIII
DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE

If the Council shall pay or cause to be paid to the Owner of any Bond secured hereby the
principal of and interest due and payable, and thereafter to become due and payable, upon such
Bond, or any portion of such Bond in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof, such Bond or portion thereof shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security
under this Indenture. If the Council shall pay or cause to be paid to the Owners of all the Bonds
secured hereby the principal of and interest due and payable, and thereafter to become due and
payable thereon, and shall pay or cause to be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the
Council, then, and in that case, the right, title and interest of the Trustee in the related Trust
Estate shall thereupon cease, terminate and become void. In such event, the Trustee shall
assign, transfer and turn over to the Council the Trust Estate and, at the direction of the Council,
cancel any outstanding Loans related to the Bonds; provided that if the Bonds are paid from the
proceeds of refunding bonds, the Loans shall at the direction of the Council not be canceled but
shall be transferred and pledged as security and a source of payment for the refunding bonds.

Notwithstanding the release and discharge of the lien of this Indenture as provided
above, those provisions of this Indenture relating to the maturity of the Bonds, interest
payments and dates thereof, exchange and transfer of Bonds, replacement of mutilated,
destroyed, lost or stolen Bonds, the safekeeping and cancellation of Bonds, nonpresentment of
Bonds, the holding of moneys in trust, and the duties of the Trustee in connection with all of the
foregoing, remain in effect and shall be binding upon the Trustee and the Bondholder.

Any Bond shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning of this Article and for all
purposes of this Indenture when (a) payment of the principal of and premium, if any, on such
Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date is by reason of
maturity or upon redemption as provided herein), either (i) shall have been made or caused to
be made in accordance with the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided for by
irrevocably depositing with the Trustee in trust and irrevocably setting aside exclusively for
such payment (1) moneys sufficient to make such payment and/or (2) Governmental
Obligations maturing as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such time as will
insure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment, and (b) all necessary and
proper fees, compensation and expenses of the Trustee, the Council pertaining to the Bonds
with respect to which such deposit is made shall have been paid or the payment thereof
provided for to the satisfaction of the Trustee. At such times as a Bond shall be deemed to be
paid hereunder, as aforesaid, such Bond shall no longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits
of this Indenture, except for the purposes of any such payment from such moneys or
Governmental Obligations.

Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, no deposit under clause (a)(ii) of the
immediately preceding paragraph shall be deemed a payment of the Bonds as aforesaid (1)
until the Council shall have given the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, irrevocable
instructions:
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ARTICLE IX

DEFAULT PROVISIONS AND REMEDIES OF
TRUSTEE AND BONDHOLDERS

SECTION 9.01. Defaults; Events of Default. If any of the following events occurs
with respect to a series of Bonds, it is hereby defined as and declared to be and to constitute an
"Event of Default" with respect to such series of Bonds:

(a) Default in the payment of the principal of or interest on a series of Bonds after
the same has become due, whether at maturity or upon call for redemption.

(b) Default in the performance or observance of any covenant, agreement or
condition on the part of the Council contained in this Indenture or in the Bonds (other than
defaults mentioned in Section 9.01(a) and (c)) and failure to remedy the same after notice of the
default pursuant to Section 9.10 hereof.

(0 If the Council shall file a petition seeking a composition of indebtedness under
the federal bankruptcy laws, or under any other applicable law or statute of the United States of
America or of the State, or the Council declares any act of bankruptcy, or there is adjudication of
the Council as a bankrupt, or an assignment by the Council for the benefit of its creditors or the
approval by a court of competent jurisdiction of a petition applicable to the Council in any
proceeding for its reorganization instituted under federal bankruptcy laws, or under any other
applicable law or statute of the United States of America or of the State.

SECTION 9.02. Remedies; Rights of Bondholders. Upon the occurrence of an
Event of Default with respect to a series of Bonds, the Trustee shall have the following rights
and remedies:

(a) The Trustee may, and in the case of Event of Default under Section 9.01(c) above
shall, pursue any available remedy at law or in equity or by statute, including the federal
bankruptcy laws or other applicable law or statute of the United States of America or of the
State, to enforce the payment of principal of and interest on such series of Bonds then
Outstanding, including enforcement of any rights of the Council or the Trustee under the
related Loan Agreement, and including the right to mandamus proceedings.

(b) The Trustee may by action or suit in equity require the Council to account as if it
were the trustee of an express trust for the Owners of such series of Bonds and may then take
such action with respect to the related Loan Agreement as the Trustee shall deem necessary or
appropriate and in the best interest of the Bondholders of such series, subject to the terms of the
related Loan Agreement, including the sale of part or all of the related Loan Agreement.

(c) Upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial proceedings to
enforce any rights of the Trustee and of the Bondholders of such series under this Indenture, the
Trustee shall be entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of the
related Trust Estate and of the Revenues, issues, earnings, income, products and profits thereof,
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pending such proceedings, with such powers as the court making such appointment shall
confer.

If an Event of Default relating to a particular series of Bonds shall have occurred or by
the owners of 25% or more in aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds of such series
and indemnified as provided in Section 10.01(k) hereof, the Trustee shall be obligated to
exercise such one or more of the rights and powers conferred by this Section as the Trustee,
being advised by Counsel, shall deem most expedient in the interests of the Bondholders of
such series.

No right or remedy by the terms of this Indenture conferred upon or reserved to the
Trustee (or to the Bondholders) is intended to be exclusive of any other right or remedy, but
each and every such right or remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other
right or remedy given to the Trustee or to the Bondholders hereunder or now or hereafter
existing at law or in equity or by statute. The assertion or employment of any right or remedy
shall not prevent the concurrent or subsequent assertion or employment of any other right or
remedy.

No delay or omission in exercising any right or remedy accruing upon any default or
Event of Default shall impair any such right or remedy or shall be construed to be a waiver of
any such default or Event of Default or acquiescence therein; and every such right or remedy
may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.

No waiver of any default or Event of Default hereunder, whether by the Trustee or by
the Bondholders, shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default or Event of Default or
shall impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon.

SECTION 9.03. Right of Bondholders to Direct P; dings. Anything in this
Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal
amount of the Outstanding Bonds of a series shall have the right, at any time during the
continuance of an Event of Default, by an instrument or instruments in writing executed and
delivered to the Trustee, to direct the time, method and place of conducting all proceedings to
be taken in connection with the enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Indenture, or
for the appointment of a receiver or any other proceedings hereunder; provided that such
direction shall not be otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of law and of this
Indenture.

SECTION 9.04. Appointment of Receivers. Upon the occurrence of an Event of
Default, and upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial proceedings to enforce
any rights of the Trustee and of the Bondholders under this Indenture, the Trustee shall be
entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of the Trust Estate and
of the revenues, issues, earnings, income, products and profits thereof, pending such
proceedings, with such powers as the court making such appointment shall confer.

SECTION 9.05. Application of Moneys. All moneys received by the Trustee
pursuant to any right given or action taken under the provisions of this Article, including by
virtue of action taken under provisions of any Loan Agreement, shall, after payment of the costs
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shall apply such funds, it shall fix the date (which shall be an Interest Payment Date unless the
Trustee shall deem another date more suitable) upon which such application is to be made and
upon such date interest on the amounts of principal and past-due interest to be paid on such
date shall cease to accrue. Defaulted interest on a Bond shall be payable to the person in whose
name such Bond is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment
of defaulted interest established by notice mailed by the Trustee to the registered Owners of
Bonds not more than fifteen (15) days preceding such Special Record Date. Such notice shall be
mailed to the person in whose name the Bonds are registered at the close of business on the fifth
(5th) day preceding the date of mailing. The Trustee shall not be required to make payment of
principal of any Bond to the Owner of such Bond until such Bond shall be presented to the
Trustee for appropriate endorsement or for cancellation if fully paid.

Whenever all principal of and interest on all Bonds have been paid under the provisions
of this Section and all expenses and charges of the Trustee have been paid, any balance
remaining in the Funds and Accounts shall be transferred to the Council as provided in Article
VIII hereof.

SECTION 9.06. Remedies Vested in Trustee. All rights of action (including the
right to file proof of claims) under this Indenture or under any of the Bonds may be enforced by
the Trustee without the possession of any of the Bonds or the production thereof in any trial or
other proceeding related thereto and any trial or other proceeding related thereto and any such
suit or proceeding instituted by the Trustee shall be brought in its name as Trustee without the
necessity of joining as plaintiffs or defendants any Owners of the Bonds, and any recovery of
judgment shall be for the equal and ratable benefit of the Owners of all the Outstanding Bonds.

SECTION 9.07. Rights and Remedies of Bondholders. No Owner of any Bond
shall have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity for the
enforcement of this Indenture or for the execution of any trust hereof or for the appointment of
a receiver or any other remedy hereunder, unless (a) a default has occurred, (b) such default
shall have become an Event of Default and the Owners of not less than 25% in aggregate
principal amount of Outstanding Bonds affected thereby, (c) such Owners of Bonds shall have
offered to the Trustee indemnity as provided in Section 10.01(k) hereof, and (d) the Trustee shall
for 60 days after receipt of such request and indemnification fail or refuse to exercise the rights
and remedies hereinbefore granted, or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own
name; and such request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared in every case at the option
of the Trustee to be conditions precedent to the execution of the powers and trusts of this
Indenture, and to any action or cause of action for the enforcement of this Indenture, or for the
appointment of a receiver or for any other remedy hereunder; it being understood and intended
that no one or more Owners of the Bonds shall have any right in any manner whatsoever to
affect, disturb or prejudice the lien of this Indenture by its, his or their action or to enforce any
right hereunder except in the manner herein provided, and that all proceedings at law or in
equity shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner herein provided and for the equal
and ratable benefit of the Owners of all Outstanding Bonds. However, nothing contained in
this Indenture shall affect or impair the right of any Bondholder to enforce the payment of the
principal of and interest on any Bond at and after the maturity or redemption date of such
principal or interest, or the obligation of the Council to pay the principal of and interest on each
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and expenses of the proceedings resulting in the collection of such moneys and of the fees
(including reasonable Trustee’s fees), expenses, liabilities and advances payable to, incurred or
made by the Trustee (including reasonable fees and disbursements of its counsel), be applied,
along with any other moneys available for such purposes, as follows:

(a) Unless the principal of all the Bonds of a series shall have become due and
payable, all such moneys shall be applied:

FIRST -- To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all amounts payable
pursuant to Section 4.05(1) or Section 4.05(2) and, as to installments of interest, in the
order of the maturity of the installments of such interest and, if the amount available
shall not be sufficient to pay in full any particular installment of interest, then to the
payment ratably, according to the amounts due on such installment, to the persons
entitled thereto, without any discrimination or privilege;

SECOND -- To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid
principal of any of the Bonds of a series which shall have become due at stated maturity
or pursuant to a call for redemption (other than such Bonds called for redemption for
the payment of which moneys are held pursuant to the other provisions of this
Indenture), in the order of their due dates and, if the amount available shall not be
sufficient to pay in full Bonds due on any particular date, then to the payment ratably,
according to the amount of principal due on such date, to the persons entitled thereto
without any discrimination or privilege;

THIRD -- To payment to the persons entitled thereto of all amounts payable
pursuant to Section 4.05(3); and

FOURTH -- To be held as provided in Article IV hereof for the payment to the
persons entitled thereto as the same shall become due of the amounts payable pursuant
to this Indenture (including principal of such Bonds due upon call for redemption) and,
if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full amounts due on any
particular date, payment shall be made ratably according to the priorities set forth in
subparagraphs FIRST, SECOND and THIRD above.

(b) If the principal of all the Bonds of a series shall have become due, all such
moneys shall be applied to the payment of the principal of and interest then due and unpaid
upon the Bonds of a series and amounts payable pursuant to Section 4.05(3), with Bond
principal and interest to be paid first, without preference or priority of principal over interest or
of interest over principal, or of any installment of interest over any other installment of interest,
or of any Bond of a series over any other Bond of a series, ratably, according to the amounts due
respectively for principal and interest, and with the items enumerated in Section 4.05(3) to be
paid second to the Persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege.

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of this Section, such
moneys shall be applied at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee shall determine,
having due regard to the amount of such moneys available for application and the likelihood of
additional moneys becoming available for such application in the future. Whenever the Trustee
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of the Bonds issued hereunder to the respective registered Owners thereof at the time, place,
from the source and in the manner in this Indenture and in the Bonds expressed.

SECTION 9.08. Termination of Proceedings. In case the Trustee or any Owner of
any Bonds shall have proceeded to enforce any right under this Indenture by the appointment
of a receiver or otherwise, and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or abandoned for
any reason, or shall have been determined adversely, then and in every such case the Council,
the Trustee and the Bondholders shall be restored to their former positions and rights
hereunder, respectively, and with regard to the property herein subject to this Indenture, and all
rights, remedies and powers of the Trustee and Owners of Bonds shall continue as if no such
proceedings had been taken.

SECTION 9.09. Waivers of Events of Default. The Trustee may, at its discretion
waive any Event of Default hereunder (other than an Event of Default specified in 9.01(c)
above) and its consequences and may rescind any declaration of maturity of all the Bonds
affected thereby and shall do so upon the written request of the Owners of (a) more than two-
thirds in aggregate principal amount of all Outstanding Bonds in the case of default in the
payment of principal or interest, or (b) more than one-half in aggregate principal amount of all
Outstanding Bonds affected thereby in the case of any other default; provided, however, that
there shall not be waived (i) any default in the payment of the principal of any such
Outstanding Bond at the date of maturity specified therein or (ii) any default in the payment
when due of the interest on any such Outstanding Bond, unless prior to such waiver all arrears
of interest or all arrears of payments of principal when due, as the case may be, with interest on
overdue principal and interest, and all expenses of the Trustee in connection with such default
shall have been paid or provided for, and in case of any such waiver or rescission, or in case any
proceeding taken by the Trustee on account of any such default shall have been discontinued or
abandoned or determined adversely, then, and in every such case, the Council, the Trustee and
the Bondholders shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively,
but no such waiver or rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other default, or impair any
right consequent thereon. No such waiver shall affect the rights of third parties to payment of
amounts provided for hereunder.

SECTION 9.10. Notice of Defaults Under Section 9.01(b); Opportunity of
Council To Cure Such Defaults. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, no default
under Section 9.01(b) hereof shall constitute an Event of Default until actual notice of such
default by registered or certified mail shall be given to the Council by the Trustee or the Owners
of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of all Outstanding Bonds affected thereby
and the Council shall have had 30 days after receipt of such notice to correct the default or cause
the default to be corrected, and shall not have corrected the default or caused the default to be
corrected within the applicable period; provided, however, if the default be such that it cannot
be corrected within the applicable period, it shall not constitute an Event of Default if corrective
action is instituted by the Council within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the
default is corrected.

With regard to any alleged default concerning which notice is given to the Council

under the provisions of this Section, the Council hereby grants the Trustee full authority for the
account of the Council to perform any covenant or obligation alleged in said notice to constitute
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a default, in the name and stead of the Council with full power to do any and all things and acts
to the same extent that the Council could do and perform any such things and acts and with
power of substitution.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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and correct and to have been signed or sent by the proper person or persons. The Trustee shall
not withhold unreasonably its consent, approval or action to any reasonable request of the
Council. Any action taken by the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture upon the request or
authority or consent of any person who at the time of making such request or giving such
authority or consent is the registered Owner of any Bond, shall be conclusive and binding upon
all future Owners of the same Bond and upon Bonds issued in exchange therefor or in place
thereof.

(g) As to the existence or nonexistence of any fact or as to the sufficiency or validity
of any instrument, paper or proceeding, the Trustee shall be entitled in good faith to rely upon a
certificate signed by an authorized officer of the Council or by an authorized officer of the
Program Administrator as sufficient evidence of the facts therein contained and prior to the
occurrence of a default of which the Trustee has knowledge, or is deemed to have notice
pursuant to Section 10.01(e), shall also be at liberty to accept a similar certificate to the effect that
any particular dealing, transaction or action is necessary or expedient, but may at its discretion
secure such further evidence deemed necessary or advisable, but shall in no case be bound to
secure the same. The Trustee may accept a certificate of an authorized officer of the Council
under its seal to the effect that a resolution in the form therein set forth has been adopted by the
Council as conclusive evidence that such resolution has been duly adopted, and is in full force
and effect.

(h) All moneys received by the Trustee hereunder, until used or applied as herein
provided, shall be held in trust for the purposes for which they were received.

) At any and all reasonable times, the Trustee and its duly authorized agents,
attorneys, experts, engineers, accountants and representatives, shall have the right to inspect
any and all of the books, papers and records of the Council pertaining to the Revenues and
receipts under the Loan Agreement and the Bonds, and to take such memoranda from and in
regard thereto as may be desired.

G) The Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surety in respect of the
execution of the said trusts and powers or otherwise in respect of the premises.

(k) Before taking the action referred to in Section 9.02 or 9.07 hereof, the Trustee may
require that satisfactory indemnity be furnished for the reimbursement of all expenses to which
it may be put and to protect it against all liability relating to such action, except liability which is
adjudicated to have resulted from its negligence or willful default.

SECTION 10.02. Fees, Charges and Expenses of Trustee. The Trustee shall be
entitled to payment and reimbursement for reasonable fees for its services rendered hereunder
and all advances, counsel fees (including in connection with any appeal or bankruptcy
proceedings and other expenses reasonably and necessarily made or incurred by the Trustee)
but solely from moneys available therefor pursuant to Section 4.05 hereof or Section 9.05 hereof
and pursuant to the Loan Agreement.

SECTION 10.03. Notice to Bondholders if Default Occurs Under Indenture. If the
Trustee becomes aware of an Event of Default, then the Trustee shall promptly give written
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ARTICLE X
THE TRUSTEE

SECTION 10.01. Acceptance of the Trusts. The Trustee hereby accepts the trusts
imposed upon it by this Indenture, and agrees to perform said trusts, but only upon and subject
to the following express terms and conditions:

(a) The Trustee, prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default and after the curing of
all Events of Default which may have occurred, undertakes to perform such duties and only
such duties as are specifically set forth in this Indenture. In case an Event of Default has
occurred (which has not been cured or waived), the Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and
powers vested in it by this Indenture, and shall use the same degree of care as a prudent man
would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his own affairs.

(b) The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereof and perform any of
its duties by or through attorneys, agents, receivers or employees but shall be answerable for
the conduct of the same in accordance with the standard specified above, and shall be entitled
to advice of counsel concerning all matters of trusts hereof and the duties hereunder, and may
in all cases pay such reasonable compensation to all such attorneys, agents, receivers and
employees as may reasonably be employed in connection with the trusts hereof. The Trustee
may act upon the opinion or advice of any attorneys (who may but need not be the attorney or
attorneys for the Council or a Borrower) approved by the Trustee in the exercise of reasonable
care. The Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss or damage resulting from any action or
non-action in good faith in reliance upon such opinion or advice.

(c) The Trustee shall not be responsible for any recital herein, or in the Bonds, or for
the validity of the execution by the Council of this Indenture or of any supplements hereto or
instruments of further assurance, or for the sufficiency of the security for the Bonds issued
hereunder or intended to be secured hereby.

(d) The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use of any Bonds authenticated or
delivered hereunder. The Trustee may become the Owner of Bonds secured hereby with the
same rights which it would have if not the Trustee.

(e) Unless an officer of the corporate trust department of the Trustee shall have
actual knowledge thereof, the Trustee shall not be required to take notice or be deemed to have
notice of any default hereunder except defaults under Section 9.01(a) hereof unless the Trustee
shall be specifically notified in writing of such default by the Council or a court of law or by any
Owner of Bonds. All notices or other instruments required by this Indenture to be delivered to
the Trustee must, in order to be effective, be delivered at the Designated Office of the Trustee
and, in the absence of such notice so delivered, the Trustee may conclusively assume there is no
default except as aforesaid. The Trustee shall provide copies of any such notices as soon as
practicable to the Council and the Borrower.

(f) The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon any notice, request, consent,
certificate, order, affidavit, letter, telegram or other paper or document believed to be genuine
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notice thereof by first-class mail to the Owners of all Outstanding Bonds affected thereby, as
shown by the bond registration books.

SECTION 10.04. Intervention by Trustee. In any judicial proceeding to which the
Council is a party and which in the opinion of the Trustee and its counsel has a substantial
bearing on the interests of Owners of the Bonds, the Trustee may intervene on behalf of the
Bondholders, and shall do so if requested in writing by the Owners of at least 25% of the
aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding.

SECTION 10.05. Successor Trustee. Any corporation or association into which the
Trustee may be converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may
sell or transfer all or substantially all of the bond administration portion of its corporate trust
business, or any corporation or association resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger,
consolidation or transfer to which it is a party, ipso facto shall be and become, to the extent
permitted by law, successor Trustee hereunder and vested with all of the title to the Trust Estate
and all the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities, privileges and all other matters as was its
predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or any further act, deed or
conveyance on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary
notwithstanding, provided, however, that written notice shall be provided to the Council and
the Bondholders.

Any successor Trustee appointed pursuant to this Section or through consolidation, sale,
or merger shall be a trust company or bank in good standing located in or incorporated under
the laws of the State or the United States, duly authorized to exercise trust powers and subject
to examination by federal or state authority, having a reported capital and surplus of not less
than $50,000,000.

SECTION 10.06. Resignation by Trustee. The Trustee and any successor Trustee
may at any time resign from the trusts hereby created by giving sixty (60) days’” written notice
by registered or certified mail to the Council and by first- class mail to the registered Owner of
each Bond, and such resignation shall take effect upon the appointment of a successor Trustee
as hereinafter provided and the acceptance of such appointment by such successor.

SECTION 10.07. Removal of Trustee. The Council may remove the Trustee at any
time without cause, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing delivered to the
Trustee so removed and the Owners of all Bonds then Outstanding provided, that all amounts
owing to the Trustee shall be paid simultaneous with or prior to such removal

SECTION 10.08. Appointment of Successor Trustee. In case the Trustee
hereunder shall resign or be removed, or be dissolved, or shall be in course of dissolution or
liquidation, or otherwise become incapable of acting hereunder, or in case it shall be taken
under the control of any public officer or officers, or of a receiver appointed by a court, a
successor may be appointed by a resolution of the Council or if the Council shall not have
appointed a successor Trustee, by filing with the Council an instrument or concurrent
instruments in writing signed by Owners of not less than a majority in principal amount of
Bonds outstanding, or by their attorneys in fact, duly authorized. Nevertheless, in case of such
vacancy, may appoint a temporary Trustee to fill such vacancy until a successor to the Trustee
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shall be appointed in the manner above prescribed; and any such temporary Trustee so
appointed by the Council shall immediately and without further act be superseded by any
Trustee so appointed. Notice of the appointment of a successor Trustee shall be given by the
successor Trustee in the same manner as provided by Section 10.06 hereof with respect to the
resignation of a Trustee. Every such Trustee appointed pursuant to the provisions of this
Section shall be a trust company or bank in good standing having a corporate trust office in the
State, having a reported capital and surplus of not less than $75,000,000 and subject to
examination by federal or State authority, if there be such an institution willing, qualified and
able to accept the trust upon reasonable or customary terms.

SECTION 10.09. Concerning Any Successor Trustee. Every successor Trustee
appointed hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its or his predecessor and also
to the Council an instrument in writing accepting such appointment hereunder, and thereupon
such successor, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all
the estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessors; but such
predecessor shall, nevertheless, on the written request of the Council, or of the successor
Trustee, execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such successor Trustee all the estates,
properties, rights, powers and trusts of such predecessor hereunder; and every predecessor
Trustee shall deliver all securities, moneys, documents and other property held by it as the
Trustee hereunder to its or his successor hereunder. Should any instrument in writing from the
Council be required by any successor Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in such
successor the estate, rights, powers and duties hereby vested or intended to be vested in the
predecessor, any and all such instruments in writing shall, on request, be executed,
acknowledged and delivered by the Council. Such successor Trustee shall give notice of such
successors to Fitch and S&P.

SECTION 10.10. Preservation and Inspection of Documents. All documents
received by the Trustee under the provisions of the Indenture shall be retained in its possession
and shall be subject at all reasonable times to the inspection of the Council, at reasonable hours
and under reasonable conditions.

SECTION 10.11. [Reserved]

SECTION 10.12. Paying Agent. The Council hereby appoints the Trustee as
Paying Agent. The Council may, with the approval of the Trustee, appoint additional Paying
Agents for the Bonds. Each Paying Agent shall designate to the Council and the Trustee its
principal office and signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed upon it
hereunder by a written instrument of acceptance delivered to the Council under which such
Paying Agent will agree, particularly:

(a) to hold all sums received by it for the payment of the principal of or interest on
Bonds in trust for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds until such sums shall be paid to such
Owners of the Bonds or otherwise disposed of as herein provided;

(b) to keep such books and records as shall be consistent with prudent industry
practice, to make such books and records available for inspection by the Council and the
Trustee at all reasonable times; and
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ARTICLE XI
SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES

SECTION 11.01. Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of
Bondholders. The Council and the Trustee may, without the consent of or notice to any of the
Bondholders, enter into any indenture or indentures supplemental to this Indenture for any one
or more of the following purposes:

(a) To cure or correct any ambiguity or omission or formal defect in this Indenture;

(b) To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of any of series of
Bondholders any additional benefits, rights, remedies, powers or authorities that may lawfully
be granted to or conferred upon such Bondholders or the Trustee, or to make any change which,
in the judgment of the Trustee, is not to the material prejudice of such Bondholders;

(c) To subject to this Indenture additional revenues, properties or collateral;

(d) To modify, amend or supplement this Indenture or any indenture supplemental
hereto in such manner as to permit the qualification hereof and thereof under the Trust
Indenture Act of 1939 or any similar federal statute hereafter in effect or to permit the
qualification of the Bonds for sale under the securities laws of the United States of America or of
any of the states of the United States of America, and, if they so determine, to add to this
Indenture or any indenture supplemental hereto such other terms, conditions and provisions as
may be permitted by said Trust Indenture Act of 1939 or similar federal statute; or

(e) To change or evidence or give effect to the delivery of an Alternate Surety Bond.

SECTION 11.02. Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Bondholders.
Exclusive of supplemental indentures covered by Section 11.01 hereof and subject to the terms
and provisions contained in this Section, and not otherwise the Owners of not less than two-
thirds in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds affected thereby shall have the
right, from time to time, to consent to and approve the execution by the Council and the Trustee
of such other indenture or indentures supplemental hereto as shall be deemed necessary and
desirable by the Trustee for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or
rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in this Indenture or in
any supplemental indenture; provided, however, that nothing in this Section contained shall
permit, or be construed as permitting (1) without the consent of the Owners of all then
Outstanding Bonds affected thereby, of (a) an extension of the maturity date of the principal of
or the interest on any Bond, or (b) a reduction in the principal amount of any Bond or the rate of
interest thereon, or (c) a privilege or priority of any Bond or Bonds over any other Bond or
Bonds, or (d) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for consent to
such supplemental indenture, or (e) except to the extent necessary to implement Section 4.08(c)
hereof, the creation of any lien hereunder other than a lien ratably securing all of the Bonds at
any time Outstanding hereunder, or (2) any modification of the trusts, powers, rights,
obligations, duties, remedies, immunities and privileges of the Trustee without the written
consent of the Trustee.
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(c) upon the request of the Trustee, to forthwith deliver to the Trustee all sums so
held in trust by the Paying Agent.

SECTION 10.13. Registrar. The Council hereby appoints the Trustee as Registrar
for the Bonds. The Registrar shall designate to the Trustee its principal office and signify its
acceptance of the duties imposed upon it hereunder by a written instrument of acceptance
delivered to the Council and the Trustee under which such Registrar will agree, particularly, to
keep such books and records as shall be consistent with prudent industry practice and to make
such books and records available for inspection by the Council and the Trustee at all reasonable
times.

The Council shall cooperate with the Trustee to cause the necessary arrangements to be
made and to be thereafter continued whereby Bonds, executed by the Council and
authenticated by the Registrar or any authenticating agent, shall be made available for
exchange, registration and registration of transfer at the principal office of the Registrar. The
Council shall cooperate with the Trustee to cause the necessary agreements to be made and
thereafter continued whereby the Registrar shall be furnished such records and other
information at such times as shall be required to enable the Registrar to perform the duties and
obligations imposed upon it hereunder.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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If at any time the Council shall request the Trustee to enter into any such supplemental
indenture for any of the purposes of this Section, the Trustee shall, upon being satisfactorily
indemnified with respect to expenses, cause notice of the proposed execution of such
supplemental indenture to be mailed by registered or certified mail to each Owner of a Bond
affected thereby at the address shown on the registration books. Such notice shall briefly set
forth the nature of the proposed supplemental indenture and shall state that copies thereof are
on file at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee for inspection by all Bondholders. If,
within sixty (60) days, or such longer period as shall be prescribed by the Council, following the
mailing of such notice, the Owners of not less than two-thirds in aggregate principal amount of
the Outstanding Bonds affected thereby at the time of the execution of any such supplemental
indenture shall have consented to and approved the execution thereof as herein provided, no
Owner of any Bond shall have any right to object to any of the terms and provisions contained
therein, or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the propriety of the execution
thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Trustee or the Council from executing the same or from
taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof. Upon the execution of any such
supplemental indenture as in this Section permitted and provided, this Indenture shall be and
be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewith.

SECTION 11.03. Notice to S&P and Fitch. The Trustee shall give notice to S&P
and Fitch of any supplemental indentures or any amendments to the Loan Agreement.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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ARTICLE XII
AMENDMENT OF LOAN AGREEMENT

SECTION 12.01. Amendments, Etc., Not Requiring Consent of Bondholders. The
Council and the Trustee may, without the consent of or notice to the Bondholders, consent to
any amendment, change or modification of the Loan Agreement or any Project described
therein that may be required (a) by the provisions of such Loan Agreement or to conform to the
provisions of this Indenture, (b) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or inconsistency or
formal defect or omission, (c) so as to add additional rights acquired in accordance with the
provisions of such Loan Agreement, (d) in connection with any other change therein which, in
the judgment of the Trustee, is not to the material prejudice of the Trustee or the Owners of the
Bonds, or (e) in connection with the delivery of a Surety Bonds pursuant to Section 4.08(c)
hereof.

SECTION 12.02. Amendments, Etc., Requiring Consent of Bondholders. Except
for amendments, changes or modifications provided for in Section 12.01 hereof, neither the
Council nor the Trustee shall consent to any amendment, change or modification of any Loan
Agreement without the mailing of notice and the written approval or consent of the Owners of
not less than two-thirds in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding
given and procured as in this Section provided. If at any time the Council and a Borrower shall
request the consent of the Trustee to any such proposed amendment, change or modification of
a Loan Agreement, the Trustee shall, upon being satisfactorily indemnified with respect to
expenses, cause notice of such proposed amendment, change or modification to be mailed in the
same manner as provided by Section 11.02 hereof with respect to supplemental indentures.
Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of such proposed amendment, change or
modification and shall state that copies of the instrument embodying the same are on file with
the Trustee for inspection by all Bondholders. Nothing contained in this Section shall permit, or
be construed as permitting, a reduction of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds the Owners
of which are required to consent to any amendment, change or modification of a Loan
Agreement, a reduction in, or a postponement of, the payments under any Loan Agreement or
any changes that affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from the gross income of the
Holders thereof for purposes of Federal income taxation, without the consent of the Owners of
all of the Bonds then Outstanding.

Nothing contained in this Section shall be construed to prevent the Trustee, with the
consent of the Council, from settling a default under any Loan Agreement on such terms as the
Trustee may determine to be in the best interests of the Owners of the Bonds.
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Borrower under the Loan Agreement (and waive the same except for rights expressly granted to
the Council) on behalf of the Bondholders whether or not the Council is in default hereunder.

SECTION 13.05. Possession and Inspection of Loan Agreement. The Trustee shall
retain possession of an executed copy of the Loan Agreement to which it is a party or in which
it has an interest and release them only in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture. The
Council and the Trustee covenant and agree that all books and documents in their possession
relating to the Loan Agreement and to the distribution of proceeds thereof shall at all times be
open to inspection by such accountants or other agencies or persons as the other party.

SECTION 13.06. Provision of Documents to Bondholders. If any Bondholder
shall request of the Council or Trustee a copy of the Indenture or any Loan Agreement, the
Trustee shall, at the expense of the Bondholder, provide such Bondholder with a photocopy or
other copy of any such document requested.

SECTION 13.07. Tax Covenants.

(a) The Council shall not use or permit the use of any proceeds of the Bonds or any
other funds of the Council, and the Trustee shall not knowingly use or permit the use of any
proceeds of the Bonds or any other funds of the Council held by the Trustee, directly or
indirectly, to acquire any securities or obligations, and shall not knowingly use or permit the
use of any amounts received by the Council or Trustee with respect to the Loan Agreement in
any manner, and shall not take or permit to be taken any other action or actions, which would
cause any Bond to be an "arbitrage bond" within the meaning of Section 148, or "federally
guaranteed" within the meaning of the Code. If at any time the Council is of the opinion that
for purposes of this subsection (a) it is necessary to restrict or limit the yield on or change in any
way the investment of any moneys held by the Trustee under this Indenture, the Council shall
s0 instruct the Trustee in writing, and the Trustee shall take such action as may be necessary in
accordance with such instructions.

(b) The Council shall not use or permit the use of any proceeds of Bonds or any
other funds of the Council, and the Trustee shall not knowingly use or permit the use of any
proceeds of the Bonds or any other funds of the Council held by the Trustee, directly or
indirectly, in any manner, and shall not take or permit to be taken any other action or actions,
which would result in any of the Bonds being treated as a "private activity bond," as defined in
Section 141 of the Code.

(c) The Council and the Trustee (if directed by the Council) shall at all times do and
perform all acts and things permitted by law and this Indenture which are necessary or
desirable in order to assure that interest paid on the Bonds will be excluded from gross income
for purposes of Federal income taxation and shall take no action that would result in such
interest not being excluded from Federal gross income.

(d) The Council covenants that it will maintain adequate accounting records, and
rebate investment income from the investment of proceeds of the Bonds to the United States
Treasury within the time allowed and in the manner specified by the Code and regulations and
will otherwise comply with such laws and regulations.
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ARTICLE XIII
GENERAL COVENANTS

SECTION 13.01. Payment of Principal and Interest. The Council covenants that it
will promptly pay the principal of and interest on every Bond issued under this Indenture at the
place, on the dates and in the manner provided herein and in said Bonds according to the true
intent and meaning thereof, provided that the principal and interest are payable by the Council
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in this Indenture, and nothing in the Bonds or this
Indenture shall be considered as assigning or pledging any other funds or assets of the Council
other than such Trust Estate.

SECTION 13.02. Performance of Covenants; the Council. The Council covenants
that it will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations and
provisions contained in this Indenture, in any and every Bond executed, authenticated and
delivered hereunder and in all of its proceedings pertaining hereto. The Council covenants that
it is duly authorized under the Constitution and laws of the State, including particularly the
Act, to issue the Bonds authorized hereby and to execute this Indenture, to execute and deliver
Loan Agreement, to assign the Loan Agreement and collateral documents and amounts payable
thereunder, and to pledge the Revenues and any other property hereby pledged in the manner
and to the extent herein set forth; that all action on its part for the issuance of the Bonds and the
execution and delivery of this Indenture has been duly and effectively taken, and that the Bonds
in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable obligations of the
Council according to the terms thereof and hereof.

SECTION 13.03. Instruments of Further Assurance. The Council agrees that the
Trustee may defend its rights to the payments of the Revenues for the benefit of the Owners of
the Bonds, against the claims and demands of all persons whomsoever. The Council covenants
that it will do, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be done, executed, acknowledged
and delivered, such indentures supplemental hereto and such further acts, instruments and
transfers as the Trustee may reasonably require for the better assuring, transferring, pledging,
assigning and confirming unto the Trustee all and singular the rights assigned hereby and the
amounts and other property pledged hereby to the payment of the principal of and interest on
the Bonds. The Council covenants and agrees that, except as provided herein or in the Loan
Agreement, it will not sell, convey, assign, pledge, encumber or otherwise dispose of any part of
the Revenues or the proceeds of the Bonds or its rights under the Loan Agreement.

SECTION 13.04. Rights Under the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement, the
form of which has been filed with the Trustee and duly executed counterparts of which will be
retained by the Trustee, as required by Section 13.06 hereof, set forth the covenants and
obligations of the Council and the Borrower, including provisions that the Loan Agreement
may not be effectively amended without the concurring written consent of the Trustee, as
provided in Article XII hereof, and reference is hereby made to the Loan Agreement for a
detailed statement of said covenants and obligations of the Borrower under the Loan
Agreement, and the Council agrees that the Trustee in its name or to the extent permitted by
law, in the name of the Council, may enforce all rights of the Council and all obligations of the
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SECTION 13.08. Security Interest.

(a) This Indenture creates a valid and binding assignment of, lien on and security
interest in the Trust Estate in favor of the Trustee as security of payment of the Bonds,
enforceable by the Trustee in accordance with the terms hereof.

(b) The Council has not heretofore made a pledge of, granted a lien on or security
interest in, or made an assignment or sale of such collateral that ranks on a parity with or prior
to the lien, security interest or assignment granted hereby. The Council has not described such
collateral in a Uniform Commercial Code financing statement. The Council shall not hereafter
make or suffer to exist any pledge or assignment of, lien on, or security interest in such
collateral that ranks prior to or on a parity with the assignment, lien, or security interest granted
hereby, or file any financing statement describing any such pledge, assignment, lien or security
interest, except as expressly permitted hereby.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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ARTICLE XIV

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 14.01. C ts, etc., of Bondhold Any consent, request, direction,
approval, objection or other instrument required by this Indenture to be signed and executed by
the Bondholders may be in any number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be
signed or executed by such Bondholders in person or by agent appointed in writing. Proof of
the execution of any such consent, request, direction, approval, objection or other instrument or
of the writing appointing any such agent and of the ownership of Bonds, if made in the
following manner, shall be sufficient for any of the purposes of this Indenture, and shall be
conclusive in favor of the Council, the Trustee and any subsequent Owners of the Bonds with
regard to any action taken by it under such request or other instrument, namely:

(a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such writing may be
proved by the certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take
acknowledgments within such jurisdiction that the person signing such writing acknowledged
before him the execution thereof, or by an affidavit of any witness to such execution.

(b) The fact of ownership of Bonds and the amount or amounts, numbers and other
identification of Bonds, and the date of owning the same shall be proved by the registration
books of the Council maintained by the Registrar pursuant to Section 2.07 hereof.

SECTION 14.02. Limitation of Rights. With the exception of rights herein
expressly conferred or as otherwise provided herein, nothing expressed or mentioned in or to
be implied from this Indenture or the Bonds is intended or shall be construed to give to any
person or company other than the parties hereto and the owners of the Bonds, any legal or
equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect to this Indenture or any covenants,
conditions and provisions herein contained; this Indenture and all of the covenants, conditions
and provisions hereof being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the
parties hereto and the Owners of the Bonds as herein provided.

SECTION 14.03. Severability. If any provision of this Indenture shall be held or
deemed to be or shall, in fact, be illegal, inoperative or unenforceable, the same shall not affect
any other provision or provisions herein contained or render the same invalid, inoperative or
unenforceable to any extent whatever.

SECTION 14.04. Notices. Any notice, request, complaint, demand, communication
or other paper shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered or mailed
by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or sent by telegram or telex, addressed to the
parties as follows:
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Council has caused this Indenture to be executed on its
behalf by its Chairman and the seal of the Council to be hereunto affixed and duly attested by
its Executive Director and the Trustee, to evidence its acceptance of the trusts created
hereunder, has caused this Indenture to be executed in its name by its duly authorized officer,
all as of the day and year first above written.

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL
(SEAL)

By:

Name: Isaac Salver
Title: Chairman

FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES, INC.,
Program Administrator

By:
Name: Michael Sittig
Title: Executive Director

j:\wdox docs\ clients\ 250001 005\ agrmnt\ 00464367.doc
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Council: Florida Municipal Loan Council
c/o Florida League of Cities
301 South Bronough Street, Suite 300
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

Trustee: Deutsche Bank Trust Company & Securities Services
(Municipal Group)
60 Wall Street
Mail Stop 2715
New York, New York 10005

The above parties may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses
to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications shall be sent.

SECTION 14.06. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. In any case
where the date of payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds or the date fixed for
redemption of any Bonds shall be a day which is not a Business Day, then payment of interest
or principal shall be made on the succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect as if
made on the interest payment date or the date of maturity or the date fixed for redemption.

SECTION 14.07. Counterparts. This Indenture may be simultaneously executed in
several counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be an original and

all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

SECTION 14.08. Applicable Provisions of Law. This Indenture shall be governed
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.
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TRUST INDENTURE

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY
AMERICAS, as Trustee

By:
Name:
Title:

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT A

[FORM OF BOND]

No. R- $

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL
REVENUE BOND
SERIES 2011[B-1][B-2]

Maturity Date: Interest Rate: Dated Date: CUsIP:

Registered Owner: ~ Cede & Co.

Principal Amount: DOLLARS

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL, a legal entity duly created and existing
under the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida (the "Council"), for value received,
hereby promises to pay (but only out of the Revenues and other assets pledged therefor as
hereinafter mentioned) to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, on the
Maturity Date identified above (subject to any right of prior redemption hereinafter mentioned),
the Principal Amount identified above, in lawful money of the United States of America; and to
pay interest thereon in like lawful money from 2011, until payment of said Principal
Amount has been made or duly provided for, at the Interest Rate set forth above on ____ 1,
20__, and on each 1and 1 thereafter (an "Interest Payment Date"), unless interest
on this Bond is in default, in which event it shall bear interest from the last date to which
interest has been paid until payment of such Principal Amount shall be discharged as provided
in the Indenture hereinafter mentioned. The principal (or redemption price) hereof is payable
upon presentation hereof at the principal office of Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as
Paying Agent and Registrar (together with any successor thereto, the "Paying Agent" and the
"Registrar"). Interest hereon is payable by check mailed, except as provided in the Indenture, to
the person whose name appears on the bond registration books maintained by the Registrar as
the Registered Owner hereof as of the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month
preceding each Interest Payment Date, at such person’s address as it appears on such
registration books.

This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Council designated as
"Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue [Refunding] Bonds, Series 2011[B-1][B-2]" (the
"Bonds"), issued in the aggregate principal amount of Dollars ($ 000),
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, and other applicable
provisions of law (collectively, the "Act"), and pursuant to a Trust Indenture, dated as of March

If an Event of Default (as defined in the Indenture) shall occur, the principal of all Bonds
may be declared due and payable upon the conditions, in the manner and with the effect
provided in the Indenture. The Indenture provides that in certain events such declaration and
its consequences may be rescinded.

The Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Council and of the Bondholders and
of the Trustee may be modified or amended from time to time and at any time, without consent
of the Bondholders in the manner, to the extent and upon the terms provided in the Indenture.

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Council and are not a lien or charge upon the
funds or property of the Council, except to the extent of the herein mentioned pledge and
assignment. Neither the State of Florida nor the Council shall be obligated to pay the principal
of the Bonds, or the interest thereon, except from Revenues received by the Council, and neither
the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State of Florida or of any political subdivision or
any municipal corporation thereof is pledged to the payment of the principal of, or interest on,
the Bonds.. The Bonds are not a debt of the State of Florida and said State is not liable for the
payment thereof.

It is hereby certified and recited that any and all conditions, things and acts required to
exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this
Bond do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as
required by the Act, as hereinafter defined, and by the Constitution and laws of the State of
Florida, and that the amount of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the Council,
does not exceed any limit prescribed by the Act, or by the Constitution and laws of the State of
Florida, and is not in excess of the amount of Bonds permitted to be issued under the Indenture.

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture, or become valid or
obligatory for any purpose, until the certificate of authentication and registration hereon
endorsed shall have been signed by the Registrar.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL has caused this
Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signature of its
Chairman and its seal to be reproduced hereon by facsimile and attested by the manual or
facsimile signature of its Executive Director all as of the date of the Bonds.

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL
(SEAL)

1, 2011, between the Council and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, (the "Trustee")
(together with any supplements or amendments thereto, the "Indenture"). The Bonds are issued
for the purpose of providing funds to makealoantothe _ (the "Borrower")
to [finance, refinance or reimburse the costs of various capital projects][to refund the Refunded
Bonds], pursuant to a loan agreement between the Council and such Borrower (together with
any supplements or amendments thereto, the "Loan Agreement").

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the
Indenture.

Reference is hereby made to the Indenture (a copy of which is on file at the principal
corporate trust office of the Trustee) and to the Act for a description of the rights and remedies
thereunder (and limitations thereon) of the registered owners of the Bonds, of the nature and
extent of the security, of the rights, duties and immunities of the Trustee and of the rights and
obligations of the Council thereunder, to all the provisions of which Indenture the Registered
Owner of this Bond, by acceptance hereof, assents and agrees.

The Bonds and the interest thereon are payable from Revenues (as defined in the
Indenture) and are secured by a pledge and assignment of said Revenues and of amounts held
in certain funds and accounts established pursuant to the Indenture (including proceeds of the
sale of the Bonds until applied as set forth therein), subject to the provisions of the Indenture
permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in
the Indenture. The Bonds are further secured by an assignment of the right, title and interest of
the Council in the Loan Agreement to the Trustee, to the extent and as more particularly
described in the Indenture.

[insert redemption provisions]

In addition, the Bonds are also subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption (as a
result of acceleration pursuant to the Indenture) at any time, in whole or in part, at a
redemption price of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date,
without premium, from all Liquidation Proceeds (as such terms are defined in the Indenture)
received by the Trustee as a result of an acceleration of any Loan. If Bonds are to be redeemed
in part by extraordinary mandatory redemption, the Bonds to be redeemed will be selected on a
proportionate basis from among all of the maturities of such Bonds which correspond to the
maturities of such Loan and within each maturity by lot.

In the case of every redemption, the Registrar, at the direction of the Trustee, shall cause
notice of such redemption to be given to the Registered Owner of any Bonds designated for
redemption in whole or in part as provided in the Indenture. The failure of the Registrar to give
notice to a Bondholder or any defect in such notice shall not affect the validity of the
redemption of any other Bonds. On the redemption date, the principal amount and premium, if
any, of each Bond to be redeemed, together with the accrued interest thereon to such date, shall
become due and payable; from and after such date of redemption (such notice having been
given and moneys available solely for such redemption being on deposit with the Trustee), the
Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall not be deemed to be outstanding under the
Indenture, and the Council shall be under no further liability in respect thereof.

By:

Chairman
Attest:

Executive Director

VALIDATION CERTIFICATE

This Bond is one of a series of Bonds which were validated and confirmed by judgment
of the Circuit Court for Leon County, Florida, rendered on February 13, 2003.

By:
Chairman



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION AND REGISTRATION

This is one of the Bonds described in the within-mentioned Indenture.
DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS, Series 2011B-1
o as Registrar Series 2011B-2
Date of Authentication:

2011 By:

Authorized Signer

ASSIGNMENT

For value received the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer unto

the within-mentioned registered Bond and hereby irrevocably constitute(s) and appoint(s)
attorney, to transfer the same on the books of the Registrar with full power of substitution in the
premises.

Dated: 2011

Signature guaranteed:

[END OF BOND FORM]
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EXHIBIT B

BORROWER

Village of Pinecrest, Florida
Village of Pinecrest, Florida

B-1
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FORM OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT
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REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2011B-1 (VILLAGE OF PINECREST SERIES)

LOAN AGREEMENT

By and Between

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL

and

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

Dated as of MARCH 1, 2011

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL

AND
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011B-2 (VILLAGE OF PINECREST SERIES)

This Instrument Prepared By:

JoLinda Herring, Esq.
Bryant Miller Olive P.A.

One Biscayne Tower

25, Biscayne Boulevard, Suite 1480
Miami, Florida 33131

and

Grace E. Dunlap, Esq.
Bryant Miller Olive P.A.

One Tampa City Center, Suite 2700
Tampa, Florida 33602
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LOAN AGREEMENT

This Loan Agreement (the "Loan Agreement" or the "Agreement") dated as of March 1,
2011 and entered into between the FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL (the "Council"), a
separate legal entity and public body corporate and politic duly created and existing under the
Constitution and laws of the State of Florida, and the VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA (the
"Borrower"), a duly constituted municipality under the laws of the State of Florida.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of the hereinafter defined Act, the Council desires
to loan to the Borrower the amount necessary to enable the Borrower to finance, refinance or
reimburse the cost of the Projects, as hereinafter defined, and the Borrower desires to borrow
such amount from the Council subject to the terms and conditions of and for the purposes set
forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Council is a separate legal entity and public body corporate and politic
duly created and existing under the laws of the State of Florida organized and existing under
and by virtue of the Interlocal Agreement among initially, the City of DeLand, Florida, the City
of Rockledge, Florida and the City of Stuart, Florida, as amended and supplemented, together
with the additional governmental entities who become members of the Council, in accordance
with Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, as amended (the "Interlocal Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that there is substantial need within the State
for a financing program (the "Program") which will provide funds for qualifying projects (the
"Projects") for the participating Borrowers; and

WHEREAS, the Council is authorized under the Interlocal Act to issue its revenue bonds
to provide funds for such purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that the public interest will best be served and
that the purposes of the Interlocal Act can be more advantageously obtained by the Council’s
issuance of revenue bonds in order to loan funds to the Borrowers to finance or refinance
Projects; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower is authorized under and pursuant to the Act, as amended, to
enter into this Loan Agreement for the purposes set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Council and the Borrower previously entered into that certain Loan
Agreement dated as of April 1, 1999 (the "1999" Loan); and



WHEREAS, the Council and the Borrower have determined that the lending of funds by
the Council to the Borrower pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and that certain Trust
Indenture dated as of March 1, 2011, between the Council and the Trustee (as defined herein)
relating to the Bonds (as hereinafter defined), including any amendments and supplements
thereto (the "Indenture"), will assist in the development and maintenance of the public welfare
of the residents of the State and the areas served by the Borrower, and shall serve a public
purpose by improving the health and living conditions, and providing adequate governmental
services, facilities and programs and will promote the most efficient and economical
development of such services, facilities and programs in the State; and

WHEREAS, neither the Council, the Borrower nor the State or any political subdivision
thereof (other than each Borrower to the extent of their obligations under their respective Loan
Agreements only), shall in any way be obligated to pay the principal of, premium, if any, or
interest on those certain revenue bonds of the Council designated "Florida Municipal Loan
Council Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B-1 (Village of Pinecrest Series)” and "Florida
Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B-2 (Village of Pinecrest Series)"
(collectively, the "Bonds") as the same shall become due, and the issuance of the Bonds shall not
directly, indirectly or contingently obligate the Borrower, the State or any political subdivision
or municipal corporation thereof to levy or pledge any form of ad valorem taxation for their
payment but shall be payable solely from the funds and revenues pledged under and pursuant
to this Agreement and the Indenture.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises hereinafter contained, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Unless the context or use indicates another meaning or intent, the following words and
terms as used in this Loan Agreement shall have the following meanings, and any other
hereinafter defined, shall have the meanings as therein defined.

"1999 Loan" means the loan from the Issuer to the Borrower funded from the proceeds of
the Refunded Bonds secured by the Loan Agreement dated as of April 1, 1999 between the
Issuer and the Borrower.

"Accountant" or "Accountants” means an independent certified public accountant or a
firm of independent certified public accountants.

"Accounts” means the accounts created pursuant to Section 4.02 of the Indenture.

"Business Day" means any day of the year which is not a Saturday or Sunday or a day on
which banking institutions located in New York City or the State are required or authorized to
remain closed or on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed.

"Certificate," "Statement,” "Request," "Requisition” and "Order" of the Council mean,
respectively, a written certificate, statement, request, requisition or order signed in the name of
the Council by its Chairman, Program Administrator or such other person as may be designated
and authorized to sign for the Council. Any such instrument and supporting opinions or
representations, if any, may, but need not, be combined in a single instrument with any other
instrument, opinion or representation, and the two or more so combined shall be read and
construed as a single instrument.

"Closing" means the closing of a Loan pursuant to the Indenture and this Agreement.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations
promulgated, proposed or applicable thereunder.

"Commencement Date" means the date when the term of this Agreement begins and the
obligation of the Borrower to make Loan Repayments accrues.

"Council" means the Florida Municipal Loan Council.
"Cost" means "Cost" as defined in the Act.

"Cost of Issuance Fund" means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section
4.02 of the Indenture.

"Counsel" means an attorney duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of
any state and, without limitation, may include legal counsel for either the Council or the
Borrowers.

"Default" means an event or condition the occurrence of which would, with the lapse of
time or the giving of notice or both, become an Event of Default.

"Escrow Account" shall mean the Escrow Account held for the benefit of the holders of
the Refunded Bonds by the Escrow Agent under the Escrow Deposit Agreement.

"Escrow Agent" shall mean the current trustee for the Refunded Bonds which is a
qualifying bank or trust company and which shall execute the Escrow Deposit Agreement with
the Issuer prior to the issuance of the Bonds.

"Act" means, collectively, to the extent applicable to the Borrower, Chapter 163, Part I,
Florida Statutes, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 125, Part I, as amended, and
all other applicable provisions of law.

"Additional Payments" means payments required by Section 5.03 hereof.

"Arbitrage Regulations” means the income tax regulations promulgated, proposed or
applicable pursuant to Section 148 of the Code as the same may be amended or supplemented
or proposed to be amended or supplemented from time to time.

"Authorized Representative" means, when used pertaining to the Council, the Chairman
of the Council and such other designated members, agents or representatives as may hereafter
be selected by Council resolution; and, when used with reference to a Borrower which is a
municipality, means the person performing the functions of the Mayor or Deputy, Acting or
Vice Mayor thereof or other officer authorized to exercise the powers and performs the duties of
the Mayor; and, when used with reference to a Borrower which is a County means the person
performing the function of the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of County
Commissioners of such Borrower; and, when used with reference to an act or document, also
means any other person authorized by resolution to perform such act or sign such document.

"Basic Payments" means the payments denominated as such in Section 5.01 hereof.
"Board" means the governing body of the Borrower.

"Bond Counsel" means Bryant Miller Olive P.A., Tampa, Florida or any other nationally
recognized bond counsel.

"Bondholder” or "Holder" or "holder of Bonds" or "Owner" or "owner of Bonds"
whenever used herein with respect to a Bond, means the person in whose name such Bond is
registered.

"Bonds" means, collectively, the $4,320,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B-1 (Village of Pinecrest Series) and the $1,505,000 Florida
Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B-2 (Village of Pinecrest Series) issued
pursuant to Article IT of the Indenture.

"Bond Year" means a 12-month period beginning on October 2 and ending on and
including the following October 1, except for the first period which begins on March 2, 2011.

"Borrower" means the governmental unit which is described in the first paragraph and
on the cover page of this Loan Agreement and which is borrowing and using the Loan proceeds
to finance, refinance and/or be reimbursed for, all or a portion of the costs of one or more
Projects.

"Escrow Deposit Agreement" shall mean the Escrow Deposit Agreement which shall be
executed and delivered by and between the Issuer and the Escrow Agent, which agreement
shall be in substantially the form approved by the Escrow Agent.

"Escrow Requirement” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the Escrow
Deposit Agreement.

"Event of Default” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 8.01 of this
Agreement.

"Financial Newspaper" or "Journal" means The Wall Street Journal or The Bond Buyer or
any other newspaper or journal containing financial news, printed in the English language,
customarily published on each Business Day and circulated in New York, New York, and
selected by the Trustee, whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Borrower.

"Fitch" means Fitch Ratings, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Delaware, its successors and assigns and if such corporation shall be dissolved or
liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, "Fitch" shall be
deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the
Council.

"Funds" means the funds created pursuant to Section 4.02 of the Indenture.

"Governmental Obligations” means (i) non-callable direct obligations of the United
States of America ("Treasuries"), (i) evidences of ownership of proportionate interests in future
interest and principal payments on Treasuries held by a bank or trust company as custodian,
under which the owner of the investment is the real party in interest and has the right to
proceed directly and individually against the obligor and the underlying Treasuries are not
available to any person claiming through the custodian or to whom the custodian may be
obligated, (iii) pre-refunded municipal obligations rated "AAA" and "Aaa" by S&P and
Moody’s, respectively, (v) securities eligible for "AAA" defeasance under then existing criteria
of S&P or (vi) any combination of the foregoing.

"Indenture" means the Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2011 between the Council
and the Trustee, including any indentures supplemental thereto, pursuant to which (i) the
Bonds are authorized to be issued and (ii) the Council’s interest in the Trust Estate is pledged as
security for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.

"Interest Payment Date" means April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing October
1,2011.



"Interest Period" means the semi-annual period between Interest Payment Dates.
"Interlocal Act" means Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes.

"Interlocal Agreement" means that certain Interlocal Agreement originally dated as of
December 1, 1998, initially among the City of Stuart, Florida, the City of Rockledge, Florida and
the City of DeLand, Florida, together with the additional governmental entities who become
members of the Council, all as amended and supplemented from time to time.

"Liquidation Proceeds" means amounts received by the Trustee or the Council in
connection with the enforcement of any of the remedies under this Loan Agreement after the
occurrence of an "Event of Default” under this Loan Agreement which has not been waived or
cured.

"Loan" means the Loan made to the Borrower from Bond proceeds to refund the 1999
Loan and to finance and refinance the Project in the amount specified in Section 3.01 herein.

"Loan Agreement" or "Loan Agreements" means this Loan Agreement and any
amendments and supplements hereto.

"Loan Repayment Date" means September 20, 2011, and thereafter each March 20" and
September 20, or if such day is not a Business Day, the next preceding Business Day.

"Loan Repayments" means the payments of principal and interest and other payments
payable by the Borrower pursuant to the provisions of this Loan Agreement, including, without
limitation, Additional Payments.

"Loan Term" means the term provided for in Article IV of this Loan Agreement.

"Moody’s" means Moody’s Investors Service, a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation
shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating
agency, "Moody’s" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating
agency designated by the Council, by notice to the Trustee.

"Non-Ad Valorem Revenues" means all revenues and taxes of the Borrower derived
from any source whatever other than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property, which
are legally available for Loan Repayments.

"Opinion of Bond Counsel" means an opinion by Bond Counsel which is selected by the
Council and acceptable to the Trustee.

"Purchase Price" means the purchase price of one or more items of a Project payable by a
Borrower to the seller of such items.

"Redemption Price” means, with respect to any Bond (or portion thereof), the principal
amount of such Bond (or portion) plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon
redemption pursuant to the provisions of such Bond and the Indenture.

"Revenue Fund" means, collectively, the Series 2011B-1 Revenue Fund and the Series
2011B-2 Revenue Fund created by Section 4.02 of the Indenture.

"Revenues" means all Loan Repayments paid to the Trustee for the account of the
Borrower for deposit in the Principal Fund and Revenue Fund to pay principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds upon redemption, at maturity or upon acceleration of maturity,
or to pay interest on the Bonds when due, and all receipts of the Trustee credited to the
Borrower under the provisions of this Loan Agreement.

"S&P" means Standard & Poor’s, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, its successors and
assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the
functions of a securities rating agency, "S&P" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally
recognized securities rating agency designated by the Council, by notice to the Trustee.

"Special Record Date" means the date established pursuant to Section 9.05 of the
Indenture as a record date for the payment of defaulted interest, if any, on the Bonds.

"State" means the State of Florida.

"Supplemental Indenture" means any indenture hereafter duly authorized and entered
into between the Council and the Trustee, supplementing, modifying or amending the
Indenture, but only if and to the extent that such Supplemental Indenture is specifically
authorized in the Indenture.

"Trust Estate” means the property, rights, Revenues and other assets pledged and
assigned to the Trustee pursuant to the Granting Clauses of the Indenture.

"Trustee” means Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Trustee, or any successor
thereto under the Indenture.
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"Opinion of Counsel" means an opinion in writing of a legal counsel, who may, but need
not be, counsel to the Council, a Borrower or the Trustee.

"Outstanding Bonds" or "Bonds Outstanding” means all Bonds which have been
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee under the Indenture, except:

(a) Bonds canceled after purchase in the open market or because of payment at or
redemption prior to maturity;

(b) Bonds deemed paid under Article IX of the Indenture; and

(c) Bonds in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated under Section 2.06,
2.07 or 2.09 of the Indenture.

"Person" means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a trust or any
other entity or organization including a government or political subdivision or an agency or
instrumentality thereof.

"Principal Fund" means, collectively, the Series 2011B-1 Principal Fund and the Series
2011B-2 Principal Fund created by Section 4.02 of the Indenture.

"Principal Payment Date" means the maturity date or mandatory redemption date of any
Bond.

"Program" means the Council’s program of making Loans under the Act and pursuant
to the Indenture.

"Program Administrator” means the Florida League of Cities, Inc., a non-profit Florida
corporation.

"Project” or "Projects” means the governmental undertaking approved by the governing
body of the Borrower for a public purpose, and in particular shall mean the Borrower's Project
detailed on Exhibit A hereof.

"Project Loan Fund" means the Series 2011B-2 Project Loan Fund established pursuant to
Section 4.02 of the Indenture.

"Proportionate Share” means, with respect to the Borrower, a fraction the numerator of
which is the outstanding principal amount of the Loan of the Borrower made from proceeds of
the Bonds and the denominator of which is the outstanding principal amount of all Loans made
from aggregate proceeds of the Council's Series 2011 Bonds and then outstanding.

ARTICLE I

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS
OF BORROWER AND COUNCIL

SECTION 2.01. Representations, Warranties and Covenants. The Borrower and the
Council represent, warrant and covenant on the date hereof for the benefit of the Trustee, the
Borrower, and Bondholders, as applicable, as follows:

(a) Organization and Authority. The Borrower:

1) is a duly organized and validly existing municipality of the State and is a
duly organized and validly existing Borrower; and

?) has all requisite power and authority to own and operate its properties, to
pledge the Pledged Revenues, and to carry on its activities as now conducted and as
presently proposed to be conducted.

(b) Full Disclosure. There is no fact that the Borrower knows of which has not been
specifically disclosed in writing to the Council that materially and adversely affects or, except
for pending or proposed legislation or regulations that are a matter of general public
information affecting State of Florida municipalities generally, that will materially affect
adversely the properties, activities, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the
Borrower or the ability of the Borrower to perform its obligations under this Agreement.

The financial statements, including balance sheets, and any other written statement
furnished by the Borrower to the Council and to Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
underwriter of the Bonds do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements contained therein or herein not misleading.
There is no fact known to the Borrower which the Borrower has not disclosed to the Council
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as underwriter of the Bonds in writing which
materially affects adversely or is likely to materially affect adversely the financial condition of
the Borrower, or its ability to make the payments under this Agreement when and as the same
become due and payable.

(@] Pending Litigation. To the knowledge of the Borrower there are no proceedings
pending, or to the knowledge of the Borrower threatened, against or affecting the Borrower,
except as specifically described in writing to the Council and to Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as underwriter of the Bonds, in any court or before any governmental authority or
arbitration board or tribunal that, if adversely determined, would materially and adversely
affect the properties, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Borrower, or the
existence or powers or ability of the Borrower to enter into and perform its obligations under
this Agreement.



(d) Borrowing Legal and Authorized. The execution and delivery of this Agreement
and the consummation of the transactions provided for in this Agreement and compliance by
the Borrower with the provisions of this Agreement:

1) are within the powers of the Borrower and have been duly and effectively
authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Borrower; and

) do not and will not (i) conflict with or result in any material breach of any
of the terms, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation
or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance upon any property or assets of the Borrower
pursuant to any indenture, loan agreement or other agreement or instrument (other than this
Agreement) or restriction to which the Borrower is a party or by which the Borrower, its
properties or operations are bound as of the date of this Agreement or (ii) with the giving of
notice or the passage of time or both, constitute a breach or default or so result in the creation or
imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance, which breach, default, lien, charge or
encumbrance (described in (i) or (ii)) could materially and adversely affect the validity or the
enforceability of this Agreement or the Borrower’s ability to perform fully its obligations under
this Agreement; nor does such action result in any violation of the provisions of the Act, or any
laws, ordinances, governmental rules or regulations or court orders to which the Borrower, its
properties or operations may be bound.

(e) No Defaults. No event has occurred and no condition exists that constitutes an
Event of Default, or which, upon the execution and delivery of this Agreement and/or the
passage of time or giving of notice or both, would constitute an Event of Default. The Borrower
is not in violation in any material respect, and has not received notice of any claimed violation
(except such violations as (i) heretofore have been specifically disclosed in writing to, and have
been in writing specifically consented to by the Council and (ii) do not, and shall not, have any
material adverse effect on the transactions herein contemplated and the compliance by the
Borrower with the terms hereof), of any terms of any agreement or other instrument to which it
is a party or by which it, its properties or operations may be bound, which may materially
adversely affect the ability of the Borrower to perform hereunder.

(f) Governmental Consent. The Borrower has obtained, or expects to obtain when
required, all permits, approvals and findings of non-reviewability required as of the date hereof
by any governmental body or officer for the financing of the Project or refinancing of the 1999
Loan and, prior to the Loan, the Borrower will obtain all other such permits, approvals and
findings as may be necessary for the foregoing and for such Loan and the proper application
thereof; and any such action, financing, refinancing or reimbursement contemplated in this
Loan Agreement is consistent with, and does not violate or conflict with, the terms of any such
agency or other governmental consent, order or other action which is applicable thereto. No
further consent, approval or authorization of, or filing, registration or qualification with, any

[6))] The Borrower has heretofore entered into and has presently outstanding and
unpaid the 1999 Loan.

?2) The Borrower deems it necessary, desirable and in the best financial interest of
the Borrower that the 1999 Loan be refunded in order to effectuate interest cost savings and a
reduction in the debt service applicable to bonded indebtedness. Simultaneously with the
issuance of the Bonds, a sufficient portion of the proceeds of the Series 2011B-1 Bonds and other
funds available will be paid by the Borrower to the Escrow Agent for deposit by the Escrow
Agent into the Escrow Account established pursuant to the Escrow Deposit Agreement, to
effectuate the refunding and defeasance of the 1999 Loan by providing for the payment of the
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 1999 Loan as provided in the Escrow Deposit
Agreement.

®) The refunding of the 1999 Loan in the manner herein provided is hereby
authorized.

SECTION 2.02. Covenants of Borrower. The Borrower makes the following covenants
and representations as of the date first above written and such covenants shall continue in full
force and effect during the Loan Term:

(a) Security for Loan Repayment. Subject to the provisions of Section 2.02(k) hereof,
the Borrower covenants and agrees to appropriate in its annual budget, by amendment, if
required, and to pay when due under this Loan Agreement as promptly as money becomes
available directly to the Trustee for deposit directly into the appropriate Fund or Account
created in the Indenture, amounts of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of the Borrower sufficient to
satisfy the Loan Repayment as required under this Loan Agreement. Such covenant is subject
in all respects to the payment of obligations secured by a pledge of such Non-Ad Valorem
Revenues heretofore or hereafter entered into. Such covenant and agreement on the part of the
Borrower to budget and appropriate such amounts of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues shall be
cumulative, and shall continue until such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues or other legally available
funds in amounts sufficient to make all required Loan Repayments, including delinquent Loan
Repayments, shall have been budgeted, appropriated and actually paid to the Trustee for
deposit into the appropriate Fund or Account. The Borrower further acknowledges and agrees
that the Indenture shall be deemed to be entered into for the benefit of the Holders of any of the
Bonds and that the obligations of the Borrower to include the amount of any deficiency in Loan
Repayments in each of its annual budgets and to pay such deficiencies from Non-Ad Valorem
Revenues may be enforced in a court of competent jurisdiction in accordance with the remedies
set forth herein and in the Indenture. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any provision of this
Loan Agreement to the contrary, the Borrower does not covenant to maintain any services or
programs now maintained by the Borrower which generate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues or to
maintain the charges it presently collects for any such services or programs.
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governmental authority is required on the part of the Borrower as a condition to the execution
and delivery of this Loan Agreement, or to amounts becoming outstanding hereunder.

(8) Compliance with Law. The Borrower is in compliance with all laws, ordinances,
governmental rules and regulations to which it is subject, and which are material to its
properties, operations, finances or status as a municipal corporation or subdivision of the State.

(h) Use of Proceeds.

1 The Borrower will apply the proceeds of the Loan funded by the Series
2011B-2 Bonds from the Council solely for the financing of the Project as set forth in Exhibit A
hereto.

) The Borrower will cause $4,220,260.55 from the proceeds of the Series
2011B-1 Bonds to be deposited into the Escrow Deposit Agreement.

3) Borrower understands that the actual Loan proceeds received by it are
less than the sum of the face amount of the Loan Agreement plus the reoffering premium in an
amount equal to a discount as described in Section 3.01 hereof. Borrower will accordingly be
responsible for repaying, through the Basic Payments portion of its Loan Repayments, the the
Bonds issued to fund its Loan including the portion issued to fund the underwriting discount,
original issue discount and other fees and costs of issuing the Bonds.

(4) The Borrower covenants that it will make no use of the proceeds of the
Bonds which are in its control at any time during the term of the Bonds which would cause such
Bonds to be "Arbitrage Bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code.

(5) The Borrower, by the Trustee’s acceptance of the Indenture, covenants
that the Borrower shall neither take any action nor fail to take any action or to the extent that it
may do so, permit any other party to take any action which, if either taken or not taken, would
adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for Federal income tax purposes of interest on
the Bonds.

(i) Project. All items constituting the Project are permitted to be financed and
refinanced with the proceeds of the Bonds and the Loan pursuant to the Act.

G) Compliance with Interlocal Act and Interlocal Agreement. All agreements and
transactions provided for herein or contemplated hereby are in full compliance with the terms
of the Interlocal Agreement and the Interlocal Act.

(k) Additional Funding. It is hereby ascertained, determined and declared as
follows:
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During such time as the Loan is outstanding hereunder, the Borrower agrees that, as
soon as practicable upon the issuance of debt by the Borrower which is secured by its Non-Ad
Valorem Revenues, it shall deliver to the Council a certificate setting forth the calculations of the
financial ratios provided below and certifying that it is in compliance with the following: (i)
Non-Ad Valorem Revenues (average of actual receipts over the prior two years) must cover
projected maximum annual debt service on debt secured by and/or payable solely from such
Non-Ad Valorem Revenues by at least 1.5x; and (ii) projected maximum annual debt service
requirements for all debt secured by and/or payable solely from such Non-Ad Valorem
Revenues will not exceed 20% of Governmental Fund Revenues (defined as general fund,
special fund, debt service fund and capital projects funds), exclusive of (i) ad valorem revenues
restricted to payment of debt service on any debt and (ii) any debt proceeds, and based on the
Borrower’s audited financial statements (average of actual receipts of the prior two years). For
the purposes of these covenants maximum annual debt service means the lesser of the actual
maximum annual debt service on all debt or 15% of the original par amount of the debt, in each
case, secured by Borrower Non-Ad Valorem Revenues.

(b) Delivery of Information. Borrower shall deliver to the Council as soon as
available and in any event within 270 days after the end of each Fiscal Year an audited
statement of its financial position as of the end of such Fiscal Year and the related statements of
revenues and expenses, fund balances and changes in fund balances for such Fiscal Year, all
reported by an independent certified public accountant, whose report shall state that such
financial statements present fairly Borrower’s financial position as of the end of such Fiscal Year
and the results of operations and changes in financial position for such Fiscal Year.

(c) [Reserved].
(d) [Reserved].

(e) Further Assurance. The Borrower shall execute and deliver to the Trustee all
such documents and instruments and do all such other acts and things as may be reasonably
necessary to enable the Trustee to exercise and enforce its rights under this Loan Agreement
and to realize thereon, and record and file and re-record and re-file all such documents and
instruments, at such time or times, in such manner and at such place or places, all as may be
reasonably necessary or required by the Trustee to validate, preserve and protect the position of
the Trustee under this Loan Agreement.

(f) Keeping of Records and Books of Account. The Borrower shall keep or cause to
be kept proper records and books of account, in which correct and complete entries will be
made in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied (except
for changes concurred in by the Borrower’s independent auditors) reflecting all of its financial
transactions.



(8) Payment of Taxes, Etc. The Borrower shall pay all legally contracted obligations
when due and shall pay all taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies imposed
upon it or upon its income or profits, or upon any properties belonging to it, prior to the date on
which penalties attach thereto, and all lawful claims, which, if unpaid, might become a lien or
charge upon any of its properties, provided that it shall not be required to pay any such tax,
assessment, charge, levy or claim which is being contested in good faith and by appropriate
proceedings, which shall operate to stay the enforcement thereof.

(h) Compliance with Laws, Etc. Subject to an annual appropriation of legally
available funds, the Borrower shall comply with the requirements of all applicable laws, the
terms of all grants, rules, regulations and lawful orders of any governmental authority, non-
compliance with which would, singularly or in the aggregate, materially adversely affect its
business, properties, earnings, prospects or credit, unless the same shall be contested by it in
good faith and by appropriate proceedings which shall operate to stay the enforcement thereof.

@) Tax-exempt Status of Bonds. The Council and the Borrower understand that it is
the intention hereof that the interest on the Bonds not be included within the gross income of
the holders thereof for federal income tax purposes. In furtherance thereof, the Borrower and
the Council each agree that they will take all action within their control which is necessary in
order for the interest on the Bonds or this Loan to remain excluded from gross income for
federal income taxation purposes and shall refrain from taking any action which results in such
interest becoming included in gross income.

The Borrower and the Council further covenant that, to the extent they have control over
the proceeds of the Bonds, they will not take any action or fail to take any action with respect to
the investment of the proceeds of any Bonds, with respect to the payments derived from the
Bonds or hereunder or with respect to the issuance of other Council obligations, which action or
failure to act may cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of such term as
used in Section 148 of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder. In furtherance of
the covenant contained in the preceding sentence, the Borrower and the Council agree to
comply with the Tax Certificate as to Arbitrage and the provisions of Section 141 through 150 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including the letter of instruction attached as
an Exhibit to the Tax Certificate, delivered by Bryant Miller Olive P.A. to the Borrower and the
Council simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds, as such letter may be amended from
time to time, as a source of guidelines for achieving compliance with the Code.

G) Information Reports. The Borrower covenants to provide the Council with all
material and information it possesses or has the ability to possess necessary to enable the
Council to file all reports required under Section 149(e) of the Code to assure that interest paid
by the Council on the Bonds shall, for purposes of the federal income tax, be excluded from
gross income.

of any noncompliance and the remedial action taken or proposed to be taken to cure such
noncompliance.

(k) Limited Obligations. ~ Anything in this Loan Agreement to the contrary
notwithstanding, it is understood and agreed that all obligations of the Borrower hereunder
shall be payable only from Non-Ad Valorem Revenues budgeted and appropriated as provided
for hereunder and nothing herein shall be deemed to pledge ad valorem taxation revenues or to
permit or constitute a mortgage or lien upon any assets or property owned by the Borrower and
no Bondholder or any other person, including the Council and the Trustee, may compel the levy
of ad valorem taxes on real or personal property within the boundaries of the Borrower. The
obligations hereunder do not constitute an indebtedness of the Borrower within the meaning of
any constitutional, statutory or charter provision or limitation, and neither the Trustee, the
Council, or the Bondholders or any other person shall have the right to compel the exercise of
the ad valorem taxing power of the Borrower or taxation of any real or personal property
therein for the payment by the Borrower of its obligations hereunder. Except to the extent
expressly set forth in this Loan Agreement, this Loan Agreement and the obligations of the
Borrower hereunder shall not be construed as a limitation on the ability of the Borrower to
pledge or covenant to pledge said Non-Ad Valorem Revenues or any revenues or taxes of the
Borrower for other legally permissible purposes. Notwithstanding any provisions of this
Agreement, the Indenture or the Bonds to the contrary, the Borrower shall never be obligated to
maintain or continue any of the activities of the Borrower which generate user service charges,
regulatory fees or any Non-Ad Valorem Revenues or the rates for such services or regulatory
fees. Neither this Loan Agreement nor the obligations of the Borrower hereunder shall be
construed as a pledge of or a lien on all or any legally available Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of
the Borrower, but shall be payable solely as provided in Section 2.02(a) hereof and is subject in
all respects to the provisions of Section 166.241, Florida Statutes, and is subject, further, to the
payment of services and programs which are for essential public purposes affecting the health,
welfare and safety of the inhabitants of the Borrower. It is the intent of the parties hereto and
they do hereby covenant and agree, that the liability of the Borrower hereunder is a several
liability of the Borrower expressly limited to the Loan Repayments and the Borrower shall have
no joint liability with any other Borrower or the Council for any of their respective liabilities.

The Council and the Borrower understand that the amounts available to be budgeted
and appropriated to make Loan Payments hereunder is subject to the obligation of the Borrower
to provide essential services; however, such obligation is cumulative and would carry over from
Fiscal Year to Fiscal Year.

(1)) Reporting Requirements. (i) The Borrower will file or cause to be filed with the
Council any official statement issued by, or on behalf of, the Borrower in connection with the
incurrence of any additional indebtedness by the Borrower secured by Non-Ad Valorem
Revenues. Such official statements shall be filed within sixty (60) days after the publication
thereof.

(ii) The Borrower agrees to provide not later than December 31 of each year,
a certificate of its Chief Financial Officer stating that to the best of its knowledge the Borrower is
in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Loan Agreement, or, specifying the nature
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ARTICLE IIT
THE LOAN

SECTION 3.01. The Loan. The Council hereby agrees to loan to the Borrower and the
Borrower hereby agrees to borrow from the Council the sum of $5,825,000 which after
deducting an original issue discount of $86,472.45 and adding the premium of $34,374.60 results
in $5,772,902.15 in loan proceeds. The amount loaned from the Series 2011B-1 Bonds is
$4,301,956.90 and from the Series 2011B-2 Bonds is $1,470,945.25. This amount includes an
amount equal to $117,641.60 which reflects the cost of the initial issuance of the Bonds subject to
the terms and conditions contained in this Loan Agreement which shall be deducted and paid
out for costs of issuance and the underwriter's discount. The amounts advanced net of the cost
of the initial issuance are to be used by the Borrower for the purpose of refunding the Refunded
Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Loan Agreement and the Escrow Deposit
Agreement, and for the purpose of financing the Project through a deposit in the amount of
$1,435,000 which is placed into the Project Fund.

SECTION 3.02. Evidence of Loan. The Borrower’s obligation hereunder to repay
amounts advanced pursuant to Section 3.01, together with interest thereon, and other payments
required under this Loan Agreement, shall be evidenced by this Loan Agreement.

SECTION 3.03. Loan For Purpose of Refunding. The Borrower acknowledges that the
Council, pursuant to the Borrower's request and instruction, is depositing $4,220,260.55 from
the proceeds of the Loan as set forth and as directed by the terms of the Escrow Deposit
Agreement dated as of March 1, 2011 by and between the Council and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, as escrow agent, in order to refund and defease a portion of the Borrower's
loan evidenced by a loan agreement dated April 1, 1999 between the Borrower and the Council.
The Borrower covenants that it will direct no other use of the Bond proceeds, agrees to the
disbursement of that portion of the Loan proceeds in such manner, and further acknowledges
that the escrow is to be held irrevocably by the escrow agent for such purpose.



ARTICLE IV
LOAN TERM AND LOAN CLOSING REQUIREMENTS

SECTION 4.01. Commencement of Loan Term. The Borrower’s obligations under this
Loan Agreement shall commence on the date hereof unless otherwise provided in this Loan
Agreement.

SECTION 4.02. Termination of Loan Term. The Borrower’s obligations under this
Loan Agreement shall terminate after payment in full of all amounts due under this Loan
Agreement and all amounts not theretofore paid shall be due and payable at the times and in
the amounts set forth in Exhibit D attached hereto; provided, however, that all covenants and
all obligations provided hereunder specified to so survive (including the obligation of the
Borrower to pay its share of the rebate obligations of the Council owed on the Bonds and agreed
to by the Borrower pursuant to Section 5.03(b)(7) hereof) shall survive the termination of this
Loan Agreement and the payment in full of principal and interest hereunder. Upon termination
of the Loan Term as provided above, the Council and the Trustee shall deliver, or cause to be
delivered, to the Borrower an acknowledgment thereof.

SECTION 4.03. Loan Closing Submissions. Concurrently with the execution and
delivery of this Loan Agreement, the Borrower is providing to the Trustee the following
documents each dated the date of such execution and delivery unless otherwise provided
below:

(a) Certified resolutions of the Borrower substantially in the form of Exhibit B
attached hereto;

(b) An opinion of the Borrower’s Counsel in the form of Exhibit C attached hereto to
the effect that the Loan Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Borrower and
opining to such other matters as may be reasonably required by Bond Counsel, underwriter’s
counsel and acceptable to Borrower’s Counsel;

(c) A certificate of the officials of the Borrower who sign this Loan Agreement to the
effect that the representations and warranties of the Borrower are true and correct;

(d) This executed Loan Agreement;
(e) An executed Escrow Deposit Agreement;

[63)] An opinion (addressed to the Council, the Trustee and the Borrower) of Bond
Counsel to the effect that such financing, refinancing or reimbursement with Loan proceeds is
permitted under the Act, the Indenture and the resolution authorizing this Loan Agreement and
will not cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for purposes of federal

ARTICLE V
LOAN REPAYMENTS

SECTION 5.01. Payment of Basic Payments. Borrower shall pay to the order of the
Council all Loan Repayments in lawful money of the United States of America to the Trustee.
No such Loan Repayment shall be in an amount such that interest on the Loan is in excess of the
maximum rate allowed by the laws of the State of Florida or of the United States of America.
The Loan shall be repaid in Basic Payments, consisting of:

(a) principal in the amounts and on the dates set forth in Exhibit D; plus

(b) interest calculated at the rates, in the amounts and on the dates set forth in
Exhibit D;

On or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month immediately preceding each Interest
Payment Date, the Trustee shall give Borrower notice in writing of the total amount of the next
Basic Payment due. The Basic Payments shall be due on each March 20th and September 20th,
or if such day is not a Business Day, the next preceding Business Day (a "Loan Repayment
Date"), commencing September 20, 2011, and extending through September 20, 2030, unless the
due date of the Basic Payments is accelerated pursuant to the terms of Section 8.03 hereof.

SECTION 5.02. [Reserved].

SECTION 5.03. Payment of Additional Payments. In addition to Basic Payments,
Borrower agrees to pay on demand of the Council or the Trustee, the following Additional
Payments:

(a) (i) Borrower’s Proportionate Share of: the fees of the Program Administrator;
and (ii) costs and fees related to the Series 2011B-1 Bonds and Series 2011B-2 Bonds: the annual
fees of the Trustee; annual fees of the Registrar and Paying Agent; the annual fees or expenses
of the Council, if any, including the fees of any provider of arbitrage rebate calculations; the fees
of the rating agencies (to the extent not previously paid from the Cost of Issuance Fund).

(b) All reasonable fees and expenses of the Council or Trustee relating to this Loan
Agreement, including, but not limited to:

1) the cost of reproducing this Loan Agreement;

2) the reasonable fees and disbursements of Counsel utilized by the Council
and the Trustee in connection with the Loan, this Loan Agreement and the enforcement thereof;

20

income taxation or adversely affect the validity, due authorization for or legality of the Bonds;
and

(8) Such other certificates, documents, opinions and information as the Council, the
Trustee or Bond Counsel may require, such requirement to be evidenced (in the case of parties
other than the Trustee) by written notice of such party to the Trustee of such requirement.

All opinions and certificates shall be dated the date of the Closing.
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3) reasonable extraordinary fees of the Trustee following an Event of
Default hereunder;

4) all other reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of the Trustee and the
Council in connection with the Loan, this Loan Agreement and the enforcement thereof;

(5) all taxes (including any recording and filing fees) in connection with the
execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the pledge and assignment of the Council’s
right, title and interest in and to the Loan and the Loan Agreement, pursuant to the Indenture
(and with the exceptions noted therein), and all expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees,
relating to any amendments, waivers, consents or collection or enforcement proceedings
pursuant to the provisions hereof;

(6) the Borrower’s share of any amounts owed to the United States of
America as rebate obligations on the Bonds related to the Borrower’s Loan, which obligation
shall survive the termination of this Loan Agreement.

) fees and costs of maintaining a rating on the Loan.
SECTION 5.04. Interest Earnings or Investment Losses and Excess Payments.

(a) On each Interest Payment Date the Trustee shall credit against Borrower’s
obligation to pay its Loan Repayments, Borrower’s share of any interest earnings which were
received during the prior Interest Period by the Trustee on the Funds and Accounts (except the
Project Loan Fund) held under the Indenture, or shall increase the Borrower’s obligation to pay
its Loan Repayment, by Borrower’s share of any investment losses which were incurred during
the prior Interest Period on the Funds and Accounts (except the Project Loan Fund) held under
the Indenture.

(b) The credits provided for in (a) shall not be given to the extent the Borrower is in
default in payment of its Loan Repayments. If past-due Loan Repayments are later collected
from such defaulting Borrower, the amount of the missed credit shall, to the extent of the
amount collected, be credited in proportion to the amount of credit missed, to the now non-
defaulting Borrower from the past-due Loan Repayments.

(©) The credits may be accumulated. If the credit allowable for an Interest Period is
more than required on the next ensuing Interest Payment Date to satisfy the current Loan
Repayment, it may be used on the following Interest Payment Date.

SECTION 5.05. Obligations of Borrower Unconditional. Subject in all respects to the
provisions of this Loan Agreement, including but not limited to Section 2.02(a) hereof, the
obligations of Borrower to make the Loan Repayments required hereunder and to perform and
observe the other agreements on its part contained herein, shall be absolute and unconditional,
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and shall not be abated, rebated, set-off, reduced, abrogated, terminated, waived, diminished,
postponed or otherwise modified in any manner or to any extent whatsoever, while any Bonds
remain outstanding or any Loan Repayments remain unpaid, regardless of any contingency, act
of God, event or cause whatsoever. This Loan Agreement shall be deemed and construed to be
a "net contract,” and Borrower shall pay absolutely net the Loan Repayments and all other
payments required hereunder, regardless of any rights of set-off, recoupment, abatement or
counterclaim that Borrower might otherwise have against the Council, the Trustee, or any other
party or parties.

SECTION 5.06. Refunding Bonds. In the event the Bonds are refunded, all references
in this Loan Agreement to Bonds shall be deemed to refer to the refunding bonds or, in the case
of a crossover refunding, to the Bonds and the refunding bonds (but Borrower shall never be
responsible for any debt service on or fees relating to crossover refunding bonds which are
covered by earnings on the escrow fund established from the proceeds of such bonds). The
Council agrees not to issue bonds or other debt obligations to refund the portion of the Bonds
allocable to this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Authorized Representative
of the Borrower.

SECTION 5.07. Prepayment. The Loan may be prepaid in whole or in part by the
Borrower on the dates and in the amounts on which the Bonds are subject to optional
redemption and notice provisions pursuant to Section 3.01 of the Indenture. The Borrower shall
provide the Council sixty (60) days notice of any prepayment of its Loan and shall deposit the
funds necessary pursuant to the direction of the Council.
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ARTICLE VII
ASSIGNMENT AND PAYMENT BY THIRD PARTIES

SECTION 7.01. Assignment by Council. The Borrower expressly acknowledges that
this Loan Agreement and the obligations of the Borrower to make payments hereunder (with
the exception of certain of the Council rights to indemnification, fees, notices and expenses),
have been pledged and assigned to the Trustee as security for the Bonds under the Indenture,
and that the Trustee shall be entitled to act hereunder and thereunder in the place and stead of
the Council whether or not the Bonds are in default.

SECTION 7.02. Assignment by Borrower. This Loan Agreement may not be assigned

by the Borrower for any reason without the express prior written consent of the Council and the
Trustee.
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ARTICLE VI
DEFEASANCE

This Loan Agreement shall continue to be obligatory and binding upon the Borrower in
the performance of the obligations imposed by this Loan Agreement and the repayment of all
sums due by the Borrower under this Loan Agreement shall continue to be secured by this Loan
Agreement as provided herein until all of the indebtedness and all of the payments required to
be made by the Borrower shall be fully paid to the Council or the Trustee. Provided, however,
if, at any time, the Borrower shall have paid, or shall have made provision for payment of, the
principal amount of the Loan, interest thereon and redemption premiums, if any, with respect
to the Bonds and shall have paid all amounts due pursuant to Section 5.03 hereof, then, and in
that event, the covenant regarding the pledge of and the lien on the revenues pledged, if any, to
the Council for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds shall be no longer in effect and all future
obligations of the Borrower under this Loan Agreement shall cease. For purposes of the
preceding sentence, deposit of sufficient cash and/or Governmental Obligations in irrevocable
trust with a banking institution or trust company, for the sole benefit of the Council, the
principal, interest and prepayment premiums, if any, received will be sufficient (as reflected in
an accountants verification report provided to the Trustee by the Borrower) to make timely
payment of the principal, interest and prepayment premiums, if any, on the Outstanding Loan,
shall be considered "provision for payment." The prepayment premium, if any, shall be
calculated based on the prepayment date selected by the Borrower in accordance with Section
5.07 hereof.

If the Borrower determines to prepay all or a portion of the Loan pursuant to Section
5.07 hereof, upon the required timely notice by the Borrower the Council shall redeem a like
amount of Bonds which corresponds in terms of amount and scheduled maturity date to such
Loan prepayment pursuant to Section 3.01 of the Indenture.

If the Borrower shall make advance payments to the Council in an amount sufficient to
retire the Loan of the Borrower, including redemption premium and accrued interest to the next
succeeding redemption date of the Bonds, all future obligations of the Borrower under this Loan
Agreement shall cease, including the obligations under Section 5.03 hereof, except as provided
in Section 4.02 hereof. However, prior to making such payments, the Borrower shall give at
least 60 days’ irrevocable notice by mail, with receipt confirmed, to the Council.
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ARTICLE VIII
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

SECTION 8.01. Events of Default Defined. The following shall be "Events of Default"
under this Loan Agreement and the terms "Event of Default" and "Default" shall mean (except
where the context clearly indicates otherwise), whenever they are used in this Loan Agreement,
any one or more of the following events:

(a) Failure by the Borrower to timely pay any Loan Repayment, when due, so long
as the Bonds are outstanding;

(b) Failure by the Borrower to timely pay any other payment required to be paid
hereunder on the date on which it is due and payable, provided the Borrower has prior written
notice of any such payments being due;

(c) Failure by the Borrower to observe and perform any covenant, condition or
agreement other than a failure under (a), on its part to be observed or performed under this
Loan Agreement, for a period of thirty (30) days after notice of the failure, unless the Council
and the Trustee shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to its expiration;
provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice can be wholly cured within a period of
time not materially detrimental to the rights of the Council or the Trustee, but cannot be cured
within the applicable 30-day period, the Council and the Trustee will not unreasonably
withhold their consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by the
Borrower within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected;

(d) Any warranty, representation or other statement by the Borrower or by an officer
or agent of the Borrower contained in this Loan Agreement or in any instrument furnished in
compliance with or in reference to this Loan Agreement, is false or misleading in any material
respect when made;

(e) A petition is filed against the Borrower under any bankruptcy, reorganization,
arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any
jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect, and is not dismissed within 60 days of such
filing;

) The Borrower files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy or seeking relief under any
provision of any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt,
dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect, or consents
to the filing of any petition against it under such law;

(g) The Borrower admits insolvency or bankruptcy or its inability to pay its debts as
they become due or is generally not paying its debts as such debts become due, or becomes
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insolvent or bankrupt or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a custodian
(including without limitation a receiver, liquidator or trustee) of the Borrower or any of its
property is appointed by court order or takes possession thereof and such order remains in
effect or such possession continues for more than 60 days;

(h) Default under any agreement to which the Borrower is a party evidencing,
securing or otherwise respecting any indebtedness of the Borrower outstanding in the amount
of $100,000 or more if, as a result thereof, such indebtedness may be declared immediately due
and payable or other remedies may be exercised with respect thereto;

) Any material provision of this Loan Agreement shall at any time for any reason
cease to be valid and binding on the Borrower, or shall be declared to be null and void, or the
validity or enforceability of this Loan Agreement shall be contested by the Borrower or any
governmental agency or authority, or if the Borrower shall deny any further liability or
obligation under this Loan Agreement; or

@) Final judgment for the payment of money in the amount of $250,000 or more is
rendered against the Borrower, the payment of which would materially adversely affect the
Borrower’s ability to meet its obligations hereunder (it being agreed that, if insurance or
adequate reserves are available to make such payment, such judgment would not materially
affect the Borrower’s ability to meet its obligations hereunder) and at any time after 90 days
from the entry thereof, unless otherwise provided in the final judgment, (i) such judgment shall
not have been discharged, or (ii) the Borrower shall not have taken and be diligently
prosecuting an appeal therefrom or from the order, decree or process upon which or pursuant
to which such judgment shall have been granted or entered, and have caused the execution of
or levy under such judgment, order, decree or process of the enforcement thereof to have been
stayed pending determination of such appeal, provided that such execution and levy would
materially adversely affect the Borrower’s ability to meet its obligations hereunder; or (iii) the
Borrower is not obligated with respect to such judgment pursuant to the provisions of Chapter
768, Florida Statutes or other applicable law.

SECTION 8.02. Notice of Default. The Borrower agrees to give the Trustee and the
Council prompt written notice if any petition, assignment, appointment or possession referred
to in Section 8.01(e), 8.01(f) and 8.01(g) is filed by or against the Borrower or of the occurrence of
any other event or condition which constitutes a Default or an Event of Default, or with the
passage of time or the giving of notice would constitute an Event of Default, immediately upon
becoming aware of the existence thereof.

SECTION 8.03. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default referred to in
Section 8.01 hereof shall have happened and be continuing, the Council or the Trustee shall, in
addition to any other remedies herein or by law provided, have the right, at its or their option
without any further demand or notice, to take such steps and exercise such remedies as
provided in Section 9.02 of the Indenture, and, without limitation, one or more of the following:
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ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 9.01. Notices. All notices, certificates or other communication hereunder
shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when hand delivered or mailed by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the parties at the following addresses:

Council: Florida Municipal Loan Council
c/o Florida League of Cities
301 South Bronough Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

Trustee: Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas
Trust & Securities Services (Municipal Group)
60 Wall Street, 27th Floor
New York, New York 10005

For purposes other than presentation of Bonds for transfer, exchange or payment:

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas
Trust & Securities Services (Municipal Group)
60 Wall Street, 27th Floor

New York, New York 10005

Borrower: Village of Pinecrest, Florida
12645 S. Dixie Hwy.
Pinecrest, FL 33156
Attention: Finance Director

Any of the above parties may, by notice in writing given to the others, designate any
further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications
shall be sent.

SECTION 9.02. Binding Effect. This Loan Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and
shall be binding upon the Council and the Borrower and their respective successors and
assigns.

SECTION 9.03. Severability. In the event any provision of the Loan Agreement shall

be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not
invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.
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(a) Declare all Loan Repayments, in an amount equal to 100% of the principal
amount thereof plus all accrued interest thereon to the date on which such Loan Repayments
shall be used to redeem Bonds pursuant to Section 3.02 of the Indenture and all other amounts
due hereunder, to be due and payable within 180 days, and upon notice to the Borrower the
same shall become due and payable by the Borrower within 180 days without further notice or
demand.

(b) Take whatever other action at law or in equity which may appear necessary or
desirable to collect amounts then due and thereafter to become due hereunder or to enforce any
other of its or their rights hereunder.

SECTION 8.04. [Reserved].

SECTION 8.05. No Remedy Exclusive; Waiver, Notice. No remedy herein conferred
upon or reserved to the Council or the Trustee is intended to be exclusive and every such
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this
Loan Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to
exercise any right, remedy or power shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such
right, remedy or power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed
expedient. In order to entitle the Council or the Trustee to exercise any remedy reserved to it in
this Article VIII, it shall not be necessary to give any notice other than such notice as may be
required in this Article VIIL

SECTION 8.06. Application of Moneys. Any moneys collected by the Council or the
Trustee pursuant to Section 8.03 hereof shall be applied (a) first, to pay any attorney’s fees or
other expenses owed by the Borrower pursuant to Section 5.03(b)(3) and (4) hereof, (b) second,
to pay interest due on the Loan, (c) third, to pay principal due on the Loan, (d) fourth, to pay
any other amounts due hereunder, and (e) fifth, to pay interest and principal on the Loan and
other amounts payable hereunder but which are not due, as they become due (in the same
order, as to amounts which come due simultaneously, as in (a) through (d) in this Section 8.06).

27

SECTION 9.04. Amendments, Changes and Modifications. This Loan Agreement may
be amended by the Council and the Borrower as provided in the Indenture.

SECTION 9.05. Execution in Counterparts. This Loan Agreement may be
simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which, when so executed and
delivered, shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

SECTION 9.06. Applicable Law. This Loan Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.

SECTION 9.07. Benefit of Bondholders; Compliance with Indenture. This Loan
Agreement is executed in part to induce the purchase by others of the Bonds. Accordingly, all
covenants, agreements and representations on the part of the Borrower and the Council, as set
forth in this Loan Agreement, are hereby declared to be for the benefit of the holders from time
to time of the Bonds. The Borrower covenants and agrees to do all things within its power in
order to comply with and to enable the Council to comply with all requirements and to fulfill
and to enable the Council to fulfill all covenants of the Indenture. The Borrower also
acknowledges that the Council has delegated certain of its duties under the Indenture to its
Program Administrator, including the direction to make investments in accordance with Article
VII thereof, including but not limited to the investment of the Borrower’s Project Loan Fund.

SECTION 9.08. Consents and Approvals. Whenever the written consent or approval of
the Council shall be required under the provisions of this Loan Agreement, such consent or
approval may be given by an Authorized Representative of the Council or such other additional
persons provided by law or by rules, regulations or resolutions of the Council.

SECTION 9.09. Immunity of Officers, Employees and Members of Council and
Borrower. No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or premium or interest
hereunder or for any claim based thereon or upon any representation, obligation, covenant or
agreement in this Loan Agreement against any past, present or future official officer, member,
counsel, employee, director or agent, as such, of the Council or the Borrower, either directly or
through the Council or the Borrower, or respectively, any successor public or private
corporation thereto under any rule of law or equity, statute or constitution or by the
enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise, and all such liability of any such
officers, members, counsels, employees, directors or agents as such is hereby expressly waived
and released as a condition of and consideration for the execution of this Loan Agreement.

SECTION 9.10. Captions. The captions or headings in this Loan Agreement are for
convenience only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions of
sections of this Loan Agreement.

SECTION 9.11. No Pecuniary Liability of Council. No provision, covenant or

agreement contained in this Loan Agreement, or any obligation herein imposed upon the
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Council, or the breach thereof, shall constitute an indebtedness or liability of the State or any
political subdivision or municipal corporation of the State or any public corporation or
governmental agency existing under the laws thereof other than the Council. In making the
agreements, provisions and covenants set forth in this Loan Agreement, the Council has not
obligated itself except with respect to the application of the revenues, income and all other
property as derived herefrom, as hereinabove provided.

SECTION 9.12. Payments Due on Holidays. With the exception of Basic Payments, if
the date for making any payment or the last date for performance of any act or the exercise of
any right, as provided in this Loan Agreement, shall be other than on a Business Day, such
payments may be made or act performed or right exercised on the next succeeding Business
Day with the same force and effect as if done on the nominal date provided in this Loan
Agreement.

SECTION 9.13. Calculations. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year
of twelve 30-day months.

SECTION 9.14. Time of Payment. Any Loan Repayment or other payment hereunder
which is received by the Trustee or Council after 2:00 p.m. (New York time) on any day shall be
deemed received on the following Business Day.
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LOAN AGREEMENT

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
(SEAL)

By:

Name: Cindy Lerner

Title: Mayor
ATTESTED BY:
By:
Name: Guido Inguanzo, Jr., CMC
Title: Village Clerk
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Florida Municipal Loan Council has caused this Loan
Agreement to be executed in its corporate name with its corporate seal hereunto affixed and
attested by its duly authorized officers and the Village of Pinecrest, Florida, has caused this
Loan Agreement to be executed in its corporate name with its corporate seal hereunto affixed
and attached by its duly authorized officers. All of the above occurred as of the date first above
written.

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL

(SEAL)
By:
Name: Isaac Salver
Title: Chairman

ATTEST:

By:

Name: Michael Sitting
Title: Executive Director
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EXHIBIT A

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

USE OF LOAN PROCEEDS
TOTAL AMOUNT
PROJECT TO BE FINANCED
Improvements and restorations to the $1,435,000
municipal park known as "Pinecrest
Gardens Park"
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EXHIBIT B

CERTIFIED RESOLUTIONS OF THE BORROWER

See Document No.

Borrower and the Florida League of Cities, Inc., and a Bond Purchase Contract dated February
23, 2011 (the "Bond Purchase Contract") between the Florida Municipal Loan Council, Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, and the City of Hialeah, Florida and the Village of Pinecrest,
Florida (jointly, the "Borrowers"). Based on such review, and such other considerations of law
and fact as we believe to be relevant, we are of the opinion that:

(a) The Borrower is a municipality duly organized and validly existing under the
Constitution and laws of the State of Florida and under the provisions of the Constitution and
laws of the State of Florida. The Borrower has the legal right and all requisite power and
authority to enter into the Loan Agreement, to adopt the Resolution and to consummate the
transactions contemplated thereby and otherwise to carry on its activities and own its property.

(b) The Borrower has duly authorized, executed and delivered the Resolution, the
Loan Agreement, the Bond Purchase Contract and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and
such instruments are legal and binding obligations of the Borrower enforceable against the
Borrower in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that the enforceability hereof may be
subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws affecting
creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter enacted and that their enforcement may be subject to the
exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity, and to the
sovereign police powers of the State of Florida and the constitutional powers of the United
States of America.

(c) The execution and delivery of the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, the Bond Purchase Contract and the Loan Agreement, the consummation of the
transactions contemplated thereby, the purchase or construction of the Project or the
reimbursement for costs of the acquisition or construction thereof or the refinancing of the
indebtedness to be financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the loan and the fulfillment of or
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement, the Bond Purchase Contract
and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement does not and will not conflict with or result in a
material breach of or default under any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any agreement,
contract or other instrument, or law, ordinance, regulation, or judicial or other governmental
order, to which the Borrower is now a party or it or its properties is otherwise subject or bound,
and the Borrower is not otherwise in violation of any of the foregoing in a manner material to
the transactions contemplated by the Loan Agreement.

(d) There is no litigation or legal or governmental action, proceeding, inquiry or
investigation pending or, to the best of our knowledge, threatened by governmental authorities
or to which the Borrower is a party or of which any property of the Borrower is subject, which
has not been described in the Official Statement or otherwise disclosed in writing to the Council
and which, if determined adversely to the Borrower, would individually or in the aggregate
materially and adversely affect the validity or the enforceability of the Loan Agreement, the
Bond Purchase Contract or the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.
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EXHIBIT C

OPINION OF BORROWER’S COUNSEL

[Letterhead of Counsel to Borrower]

March __, 2011

Florida Municipal Loan Council
c/o Florida League of Cities, Inc.
301 Bronough Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas
Trust & Securities Services (Municipal Group)
60 Wall Street, 27th Floor

New York, New York 10005

Bryant Miller Olive P.A.

One Tampa City Center

201 North Franklin Street, Suite 2700
Tampa, Florida 33602

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
2363 Gulf-to-Bay Boulevard

Mail Code: WS7517

Clearwater, Florida 33765

Ladies/Gentlemen:

We are counsel to the Village of Pinecrest, Florida (the "Borrower"), and have been
requested by the Borrower to give this opinion in connection with the loan by the Florida
Municipal Loan Council (the "Council") to the Borrower of funds to finance park improvements
and related restorations to PineCrest Gardens and refinance the outstanding loan evidenced by
the Loan Agreement between the Borrower and the Council dated as of April 1, 1999 or
reimburse the Borrower for all or a portion of the cost thereof ("1999 Loan") as defined in, and as
described in Exhibit A of, the Loan Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2011 (the "Loan
Agreement"), between the Council and the Borrower.

In this connection, we have reviewed such records, certificates and other documents as
we have considered necessary or appropriate for the purposes of this opinion, including
applicable laws, and resolutions adopted by the Village Council of the Borrower, the Loan
Agreement, Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2011 (the "Indenture”) between the Council
and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee (the "Trustee"), Resolution No. 2010-58
adopted by the Borrower on September 21, 2010 and Resolution No. 2010-59 adopted by the
Borrower on September 21, 2010 (collectively, the "Resolution”), a Continuing Disclosure
Agreement dated as of March 2, 2011 (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement") between the

(e) Any indebtedness being refinanced, directly or indirectly, with the proceeds of
the Loan was initially incurred by the Borrower, and the proceeds of such indebtedness have
been fully expended.

We are attorneys admitted to practice law only in the State of Florida and express no
opinion as to the laws of any other state and further express no opinion as to (i) the status of
interest on the Bonds under either Federal laws or the laws of the State of Florida, or (ii)

economic or financial matters described in the Official Statement relating to the Borrower.

Very truly yours,
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EXHIBIT D

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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EXHIBIT E TO LOAN AGREEMENT

FORM OF REQUISITION CERTIFICATE

TO: DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS, AS TRUSTEE
FROM: VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA (THE "BORROWER")
SUBJECT: LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF THE 15" DAY OF MARCH 1, 2011

This represents Requisition Certificate No. ___ in the total amount of $ for
payment of those Costs of the Project detailed in the schedule attached.

The undersigned does certify that:

1. All of the expenditures for which monies are requested hereby represent proper
Costs of the Project, have not been included in a previous Requisition Certificate and have been
properly recorded on the Borrower’s books as currently due and owing.

2. The monies requested thereby are not greater than those necessary to meet
obligations due and payable or to reimburse the Borrower for funds actually advanced for Costs
of the Project. The monies requested do not include retention or other monies not yet due or
earned under construction contracts.

3. This requisition is in compliance with Section 5.03 of the Indenture.

4. After payment of monies hereby requested, to the knowledge of the
undersigned, there will remain available to the Borrower sufficient funds to complete the

Project substantially in accordance with the plans.

5. The Borrower is not in default under the Loan Agreement and nothing has
occurred that would prevent the performance of its obligations under the Loan Agreement.

Executed this day of 2011.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

By:
Name:
Title:

[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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APPENDIX E
FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

March __, 2011

Florida Municipal Loan Council

Tallahassee, Florida

RE:  $5,825,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2011B-1 and Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B-2 (Village of Pinecrest Series)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as bond counsel in connection with the issuance by the Florida Municipal
Loan Council (the "Council") of its $4,320,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B-1 (Village of Pinecrest Series) (the "Series 2010B-1 Bonds") and
the $1,505,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B-2 (Village of
Pinecrest Series) (the "Series 2011B-2 Bonds" and together with the Series 2011B-1 Bonds,
collectively referred to herein as the "Bonds"), pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State
of Florida, including Chapter 166, Part II and Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, as amended,
a Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2011, between the Council and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, as Trustee (the "Indenture"), and Resolution No0.98-1 adopted by the
Council on December 17, 1998, as amended and supplemented, Resolution No. 2010-03 adopted
March 25, 2010 and Resolution No. 2010-05 adopted September 23, 2010 (collectively, the
"Resolution"). In such capacity, we have examined such law and certified proceedings,
certifications, and other documents as we have deemed necessary to render this opinion. Any
capitalized undefined terms used herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Indenture.

The proceeds of the Bonds will be loaned to the Village of Pinecrest, Florida (the
"Borrower") for the purpose of refunding certain loans made to the Borrower by the Council
which provided proceeds for the purpose of financing, refinancing or reimbursing the cost of
qualified projects of such Borrower, to finance certain additional capital improvements in and
for the Borrower, and to pay certain costs of issuing the Bonds pursuant to Loan Agreements
between the Council and such Borrower to be executed simultaneously with the issuance of the
Bonds.



As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon representations of
the Council contained in the Indenture and of the Borrower contained in the Loan Agreements
and in the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials and others furnished
to us, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. We have not
undertaken an independent audit, examination, investigation or inspection of such matters and
have relied solely on the facts, estimates and circumstances described in such proceedings and
certifications. ~We have assumed the genuineness of signatures on all documents and
instruments, the authenticity of documents submitted as originals and the conformity to
originals of documents submitted as copies.

In rendering this opinion, we have examined and relied upon the opinion of even date
herewith of Kraig A. Conn, Esquire, Counsel to the Council, as to the due creation and valid
existence of the Council, the due adoption of the Resolution, the due execution and delivery of
the Bonds and the compliance by the Council with all conditions contained in the resolutions of
the Council precedent to the issuance of the Bonds. Finally, we have assumed the proper
authorization, execution and delivery of the Loan Agreements by the Borrower and the validity
of such Loan Agreements and in rendering this opinion are not passing upon such matters.

The Bonds do not constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of the Council or the
Borrower within the meaning of any constitutional, statutory or other limitation of indebtedness
and the holders thereof shall never have the right to compel the exercise of any ad valorem
taxing power of the Council or the Borrower or taxation in any form of any real or personal
property for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds.

The opinions set forth below are expressly limited to, and we opine only with respect to,
the laws of the State of Florida and the federal income tax laws of the United States of America.

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion that under existing law:

1. The Resolution constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Council
enforceable against the Council in accordance with its terms.

2. The Indenture has been duly executed by the Council and, assuming due
authorization, execution and delivery by the Trustee, constitutes a valid and binding obligation
of the Council enforceable upon the Council in accordance with its terms.

3. The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Council
and are valid and special obligations of the Council enforceable in accordance with their terms,

payable solely from the sources provided therefor in the Indenture.

4, The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), establishes certain
requirements which must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Bonds in order
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that interest on the Bonds be and remain excluded from gross income for purposes of federal
income taxation. Non-compliance may cause interest on the Bonds to be included in federal
gross income retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds, regardless of the date on which
such non-compliance occurs or is ascertained. The Council has covenanted in the Indenture
and the Borrower has covenanted in their Loan Agreements to comply with such requirements
in order to maintain the exclusion from federal gross income of the interest on the Bonds.

Subject to compliance by the Council and the Borrower with the aforementioned
covenants, (a) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income of the owners thereof for
purposes of federal income taxation and (b) interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax
preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and
corporations; however, with respect to corporations (as defined for federal income tax
purposes), such interest is taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings for the
purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on such corporations. We express
no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.

For purposes of this opinion, we have not been engaged or undertaken to review and,
therefore, express no opinion herein regarding the accuracy, completeness or adequacy of the
Official Statement or any other offering material relating to the Bonds. This opinion should not
be construed as offering material, an offering circular, prospectus or official statement and is not
intended in any way to be a disclosure statement used in connection with the sale or delivery of
the Bonds. Furthermore, we are not passing on the accuracy or sufficiency of any CUSIP
numbers appearing on the Bonds. In addition, we have not been engaged to and, therefore,
express no opinion as to compliance by the Council or the underwriter with any federal or state
statute, regulation or ruling with respect to the sale and distribution of the Bonds or regarding
the perfection or priority of the lien on the revenues pledged and created by the Indenture.
Further, we express no opinion regarding federal income tax consequences arising with respect
to the Bonds other than as expressly set forth herein.

Our opinions expressed herein are predicated upon present law, facts and
circumstances, and we assume no affirmative obligation to update the opinions expressed
herein if such laws, facts or circumstances change after the date hereof.

Very truly yours,

BRYANT MILLER OLIVE P.A.
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APPENDIX F

FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE VILLAGE OF PINECREST
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Village of Pineerest, Florida

Munasement's Discussion and Analysis and the Requived Supplementary laformation on pages
310 10 und pages 37 1o 39, respeetively, ate #0t a requirsd part of the basic financia] statements,
Bug are supplementary information required by secounting principles penerally accepied in (he
United States of America. We have applied cerlain licaned procedures, which comsisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the metheds of measurement and presentation of
the required supplementary information. Hewever, we did not audit the information and express
no opinion on it

Our audit was conducied for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statcments that
cotlectively comprise the Viliage's basic financizl statements. The fntroductory section, combining
and individual fund siatements and scheduies and swmtistical tables as lisied in the table of contents
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 2 required part of te basic financial
statemems of the Village, The combiming and individual fund staiements and schedules have been
subjected 1o the auditing procedures applied in the 2udit of the basic fnancix} siatements, and, in
our opinien, aré fairty siated, in «b muaterial respeets, in relation 1o Uie bagie fmancial stnements
faken 25 a whole. The information shown in the mmrodeciony and statistical scetions listed m the
1able of contenis have not been subjzcied to the auditipg procedures applied in the sudit of the
hasic financial statements and, avcordingly, we express no opinion on thetn.
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REPCORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest. Flonda

We Ruve awdited the accor g financizl staements of the govermnental activities, the
business-lvpe act <, cach major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Vil of Pinects Florida {ithe “Village™) as of and lor the Mscal year ended Sepiemhar 30,
2009, which colivetively comprise the Village's basic financial statemients as listed in the table of
contents. ‘These financial stalanents are te responsibility of the Village's management. Our
respansibifity S to express opizions on Mese Mnancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our andit in accordance -
United Stanes of America and the standards appl

ith auditing standards penerally sceepted i the
able to Moancial audits coatained i Governmeut

uditing S Issuedl by the Coraptrolier General of the United Staes. Those srandards
Tequire 1 n and perform the awdit (0 obtain reazonable assurance about whether the
financid swtements are free of material misstatemncol. An audit includes examinig, o0 3 st
bagis, cnee supporting the wmounts and disclosures in e firancial statements, An it aiso

inclades assessing the accouniing principles wsed and the significant estimales made hy
ag well as evaluating the overall financial slutement preseatation, We believe ha

cur audit provides a reasonsble basis & our opinions.

In our opinian, e basie financial sislements referred 10 above pr
respeets, the respeclive fmancial poesition of the povernmental aotivities, the InEgs- e
wilies. each major fund and e aperegate romaining fund information of the ve, as of
emiber 30, 2009, amt the respeetive changes in financtal position snd cash flows, where
Ble. thereof for ahe year then ended 6 conlonmity with secounting principles geaerally

m fairly,

we have alwo isseed our reporl deted
crral conlrad aver fisancial reponing
ons of laws, Wik, cordeacis, wd
[REHTRE nts and alher mat The purpose of ehat reporl i W deseribe the scope of wir
Iusting of fnternal cantral over fnancial reporting and compliaocs und the results af it lest
and not 1 provide an opinien an the intereal control over financial reporting ot o complizoce,
Fhat report is an integral parl of an audit performed in sceordanee wich Guverrment Auditing
rds and imporGnt for assessing ihe results of our sudil )

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Sepreanber 30, 2009

As management of the Village of Pincerest, Florida, we offer the Village of Pinecrest,
Florida's financial statcinents this narvative overview and analysis of lhe financial acrivities of the
Village of Pinecrest for the fiscal year ended Scptember 30, 2009, We encourage readers lo
coasider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of ransmittal.

Financizl Higblights

+ The assets of the Village of Pinecrest caceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $ 123,276,576 {(ner assets). Of this amount, $ 7,313,680 (unassigned net
assets} may be used to meet (he government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

* The povernmental total met assers increased by $ 630,813, This increase was largely a
result of the receipt of eapital grants.

« As of the close of the current fisca) year, the Village of Pinecrests governtmental funds
reported combined ending {und balances of $ 12,714,859, en increase of 53,430,424 o
comparison with Lhe prior year. Approximately 62.2% of this towl amount, $ 7,910,329 is
available for spending at the government's discretion (upassigned fund batance).

» At the end of the corrent fscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$ 7,910,329 o1 53.9% of total General Fund expendinres.

+ The Village of Pinecrest tmal bonded debt decreased by $ 815,000 (6.2%) dwing the
current fiscal year.

Overvicw of the Finanvial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intcnded (0 serve as an introduction to the Village of
Pincerest hasic financial statcments. The Village of Pincorest basic financial stalcinents comprise
(lree components: 1} government-wvide financial statememts, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to (he finaueial statements. This report also conmins other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financjal stalements themselves.

Gover ide Anancial The povernment-widc finaneial siatcments are
designed 1o provide readers with a hroad overview of the Village of Pinecrest’s finances, in a
mamner simnilar to & private-sector business,

The statement of net assels presents information on all of the Village of Pinecrest's assels
and liabilities with the diffcrenee between the (wo reported as net assets.  (ver time, increases or
deercases in net assels may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Village of Pinecrest is mmproving or deteriorating,

The statement of activities presenty information showing how the government's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assels are reporied as soon as the
underlying event giving risc to the change cccurs, regardkiss of the timing of velated cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in his statement for some that will only result in cash
flowrs jp the future fiscal periods (2.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of (he government-wide financial stalements of the Village of Pineercst aze principally
supported by taxes and imergovernmental revenues (governmental activities). The govermmental
aclivities of the Village of Pmeerest inchude general government, police, public works (including
highways), parks, and planning and building. 1Bc government-widé financial statements repert an
only the Village of Pinecrest.

o



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2009

Fond financiaj statements, A fund is a grovping of relaicd accounls that is used to
mainiain conirol over tesources (hut have been segregared for specific activities or objectives. The
Village of Pinecrest, like other state and lecal governments, uses fund accounting w ensure and
demenstrate comphance with [inancerelated legal requirements. All of the funds of the Viilage of
Pinecrest are povernmental and propriciary fnds.

Governmental funds, Goverpmental funds are used (o ascount for sssentially he same
functions reported as governmental activities in the governmcnl-wide financial Statemems.
Haowever, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on osar-term inflows and outflows of speadable resources, as well as on halances
of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of povernmental funds is parrower than that of the government-wide
financial staements, it is useful (o compare the information presented for governmentat funds wich
similar information presented for povernmental activities in the government-wide financial
stalements. By dmnﬁ, so, readers may better understaml the long-term ‘.mpax:l of lhe government’s
near term financing decisions. Botlb the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental
fund statement of revemees, expendinires, and changes 1o fund balances provide recanciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Village of Pineerest maintaing nine individual governmeatal funds. Information is
presemted separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and i the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes jn fumd balances for the geoeral, capiral Irwccls
six special revenie funds and a debl service fund. Quly the General, Transportation and Capital
Projects Funds are considered 10 be major funds. Data from the other funds are combined oo a
single, apgrepated presemtation.  [ndividual data for these sonmajor governmental [ends are
previded in the form of cambining statements elsewherc in this report.

_ The Yillage of Pinccrest adopis ap anmal appropriated budget for its General Fund as well
as its other governmenlal funds. A budgetary comgd.n:on statemment has been provided for the
General Fund 1w demonstrate compliance with this bu

Proprietary fund. The Village of Pineerest maintatms onme type of proprietary fund, an
enterprise fund, Taterprise funds are used to report (he same functions resemmfas business-ype
activilies in (be governmeni-wide financial staemenis. The Village of Pm{:crcst uses an chterprise
fund 10 account for ils stormwaier activities.

Propriewry funds provide the same tvpe of information as the government-wide fnancial
statements, only in more detusll. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for tha Stormwater Tand which is considered a major fund of the Villape of Pinecrest,

Notes to the linancial siofemenls, The noles provide addional information that is
essential o a full understanding of the data provided in the povernment-wide and fund fnancial
slatements,

The gombining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
funds are presented immediately following the footnotes,

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted eatlier, net assels may serve uver Gme as a useful indicator of a ‘uinvem.ment's
rabilitics by

financial pesition, [n the case of e Village of Pinecrest, assets exceeded
123,276,576 at 1he cluse of the most recent fiscal year.

GE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
EMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Sepember 30, 2009
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reflects its investment 4! . SAtY;
relared debt wsed © acquire those assets ar is sull 0ulswndmg The v |lla e of Pinecrest us
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future spending. Although the Village of Pineceest’s investment in its capitul assets is reported net
of refured debt, it shonld be noted thay the resources neaded to tepay this debt must be provided
from) other sources. since (e capital assers themselves cannot be used 1o fiquidaie these liabitities.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYS[S
September 30, 2009

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

14,000.000

12,000,330
000,000 -

2,020,000

£,000.000 -

A0

2,000.000 j \: —

Charges Oper. Cap. Taxes inergow. Otrar
Geants Grants

For the most pare, decreases in expenses reflected the decline in the demand for services,
particulacly in the amrea of huilding, planning and zoning ("BPZ*) due 1o declines in the
sonstruction industry. The Village of Pinecrest’s Park and Recreation Department developed
additional recreational facilities In the Commurily Comter.  Ad valorem taxes were held even. bu
there was a voe-time Inerease in the commenication services ax as a result of a redisoibuiion of
junds and recapore of funds 10 Pinecrest due ™ a Sware of Florida aedit of accoumns by
Jueisdiction.

Financial Anzlysis of the Govenmnent’s Funds

The Village of Pinecrest wsed fund accouniing 1o ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance related requirsmenis.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Village of Phiecrest’s governmental funds i o
provide information on near term inflows, outflows, and halaoces of spendable resources. Such
rnfermation is useful in asscssing the ¥ liia"e ol Pinecrest’s financing RQUIrEmET In patticutar.
upasigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of & EOWErImENt's net Tesaurces available
fur spending at the end of the fiscal year,

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Vill
+GAAP hasis) reponed combined endivg fund balances of $ 12,714 859 an increase of § 3.430.424
in compurison with the prior year, 84,435, Approximate 62,24 of his total amount -
5 7.910.329 comstitutes unassizned fund balance, which is available for spemding at the
nrment’s discretion. The remaiader of fund halance indicates that i€ i not avsilable for new
spending because i1 has alieady been committed 10 liguidale contract and purchase arclers of the
prior pericd 1§ 29,900), restrizied for special revenne funds (5 4,167,34%), or assigned for capital
octs 5 607,282).

e of Pineerest’s overemental funds
3

The Geneval Fund is the chicf operating fund of the Village of Pinecrest. At the ead of the
current fiscal vear. weassigned fund balance of the General Fund w 5 7.510,329, As a measure
of the General Fued’s liquidity, it may be uscful 1© compare hoth pnassigned fund belecs
roraf fund balance 1o total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund halance represents 47 8% of toal
Gunersl Fond expenditures inclading mangiers, while tota) fund balatce represents 48% ol that
SUTIE JITHNE.




VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT™S DISCUSSION ARND ANALYSIS
Seprember 30, 2009

+ The fund balance of the Villape of Pinecrest’s General Fund increased by S 379656
Guring the currem fiscal year.  The primary reason for the increase wos o g
retmbursement from the Counwy which represents reimbursement frogg the Caplial Prajests
Fund which covers three (3) fscal vears and was pavuble in full at the end of the o
neriod. This resulted ik a iranster for § 3,582,000 from the Capial Projects Fund (o the
General Pund.

+ Charges for serviees i the Gengral Fund also expevienced an increase of § 447 304 ip par
hecattse the Commenity Center was open for its frest Tull year of vperation.

+ Licenses and permits decrcased h} 3 476.032 due ta the drap off in the housing industry
and he corresponding reduction in buildive permit fees.

o Tramsfers incieased 3 3,582 000 &5 # result of abe Library Constuction Grant heing
recetved in full a1 the end of the three-year constraction period.

The Debt Service Fund bas no fund balance. The government transfers the exact amount
needed for both principal and fnerest payments each year. This year $ 815.000 was vansferred
into the fund for principal paymemts, an increase of $33,000  This year § 690,873 was
rangferred into the fund for inierest payments, a decrease of $ 30.297,

The largest budget 10 scwal vartance in the General Fund was Jeenses and permirs
% 508,784}, due to less permit fees [n response W te decling in the housing industry. dition,

inderest rates to & rate of 0.3 - exulted i $ 197,866 less in imterest eann The
corumutications tax increased by ¥ 208.956 due o 1 one-ime adjusiment as die Stae of Florkla
ites made adjustowenls for past yaars when this reveniee was anderpaicl. The Police Depariment

also had several wnfilled positions and due o a urnover 10 personutel over the past 1wo years, Gew
pnhcc officers started at the bottem of the salary scale.  In total. she Police Deparoment was
738,004 uader budge

Proprictary Fund. The Swmmwater Fund accounts for revenues collecred for e
maintenance of the stormwaer collection function in ihe Village., The canals and und
pipes are mainined by rhe Village aod fhece are operational cests assecisted wich (7
waler. This year the umrestricled 11 asscls grew from 5 1,817,256 10 $ 1,962,996 a 5 14
in: . The increust reflects the Fact that funds are hudgeted for caplial Improvemests
depreciated over many years.

General Fuued Budget Highlights

During the vear, budgetary revenues were more than budgeasy expendinures and iransters
wul Inereasing the Fund balance hy & 3,796,396

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Cd])}tal assets. The Vilk
activities as of Seplember 30, 2004, amounts 0 5 H? 88’ 518 {ner nl acey Jmulalnl de
investment i copial  agsers  includes land, buildi mprovements,
cirucrure —rpads and  sidewalis.  infrastruciure,  stormwater s
roeress,  The toial fncrease n the Village of Pingeresdt’s invesmment in capita
e fiscal vear waes 1 peroenr,

assets for i

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2009

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

» The unemployment rale for Miami-Dade County/Fort Lauderdale is currently 10.9%,
which is an increase from a rate of 6.6% a year ago. Tne Village of Pinecrest residents
will have a lower uncmploymoent rate than is reported for the cownty,

« [offationary rends in the region compare favorably w nutiona] indices.

During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance increased o § 7,910,329, The
Villuge of Finecrest has appropriated $ 1,048,360 of this amount for spending [n the 2010 fiscal
vear budget.

Requests for Information

This flnancial ceport is designed 1o provide a peneral overview of the Village of Pinecrest’s
finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional fApancial information should be addressed to the Department of Finance, 12643
Pinecrest Parkway, Pinecrest, Florida 33156-393].

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Sepremaber 30, 2009

Major caplial asset evenrs during the cusrent fiscal year included the following:

. Completion of the Community Center/Library.,

. Construction af Flagler Grove Park.

Govenoueidal Acivilies

Renovations and improvements at Pinecrest Gurdens.

Taw) Trinwry Governmen

Geaeral pavemmant 5 I s
Public sa ey 455,07
Building, pleaning and
Zoiing 24,570
FParks 12,388 301
Fublic works TETL4.450
Stusmumler -
You! £ urEmse

6,441,651
01,742

38,796
21 286 546
82,503,200

121,462 435

s

Bustiess- Type Activicies
Fi7 2058

3 B k1]

- 452,07

4,390,493

3 449

4,655 865

3 4655865 & izba73,001

2068

3 G.e4L.0651
501,742

51231630

Additional information on the Village of Pinecrest’s capital asscts ¢an be found in Note 2C.

Losg-term debt, At the end of the fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest had 1mal bonded
deht outstanding of $ 13,245,000, The fotal debt is backed by the full faith and ercdit of the
Village for which the Village is liable in the unlikely cvent of default.

Village of Pinecrest’s Outstunding Debt

Generat Cbligation Bonds

Goveremental Activities
2009

General Oblipation Bonds

2008

§  13,145.000 § 14,060,000

The Village of Pinecrest decreased its total debt by 3 815,080 {5.8%) during 1he current
fiscal year. There are threc Jssues outstanding; Greer Park (formerly known as Pinecrest Park),
$ 4,930,000 which matures in FY2019, Pincerest Gardens (formerly known as the Parrot Jungle),
$ 5,795,000 which matures in ¥¥2022 and the Library/Community Center, § 2,520,020 which

matures in FY2024,

The last Village of Pinecrest issue $ 3,075,000 wes made in comjunction with the Florida
Municipal Loun Council § 15,585,000 on Tuly 1, 2004. These bonds carried the following bond

ratings:
. Moody's Invester Service - Azz
- Standard & Poors - AAA
. Firch - AAA,
Additiousi information on the Village of Pinecrest’s long wrm debt can be found in Note
2E.
g
VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Sepiember 30, 2009
Business
Governmental -Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Current asscts:
Cash and cash equivalens $ 13,135,050 S 1,961,224 3 15,116,274
Receivables, net 897,539 119,720 1,017,659
Towal current assets 14,052,989 2,080,944 16,133,933
Non-current assets:
Capilal assets, not depreciated:
Land 17,437,190 - 17,437,190
Capital assets, nct of accumuolated
depreciation:
Buildings 17,230,299 - 17,230,299
Improvements 4,454,828 ~ 4,454, 828
Equiprent 732,025 - 732,029
[nfrastrucrore 78.028,172 4,590,493 82,618,603
Unamortized bond issue costs 138,067 - 138,067
Towl non-current assels 118,020,585 4,590,453 122,611,078
Towal assels 132,073,574 6,671,437 138,745.011

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
{eomtinued)

September 30, 2009

Business
Governmental -Type
Aciivities Activities Toul
LIABILITIES ARD NET ASSETS:
LIABILITIES:
Current:
Accounls peyable and other acerued
liabilities 1,084,862 6,006 1,090,868
Accrued imerest payable 156,402 - 156,402
Revenues collected jo advance - 111,942 1942
Compunsated absences, due in one year 268,810 - 208,810
Bonds payable, due in one year 245.000 845,000
Total current Jialilities 2,355.0™ 117,548 2,473,022
Noon-Current:
Unearped revenues 253,268 253,268
OPEB Hability 124,000 124,000
Compensated absences, due in more
than vne year 47,437 - 47,437
Bonds payable, due in more thar one year 12,570,708 12,570,708
Total non-carrent lizhiiities 12,995 413 12,995,413
Toral liabilities 15,350,487 117,948 15,468,435
NET ASSETS:
Investments in capital assets, net of
relared debt 104,604,877 4,590,493 109,195,370
Restricled fund balance 4,167 348 - 4,167,348
Unresiricled fund balanes 7,950,462 1,962,996 9,913,858

Tartal net arsets S 116,723,087 s 6,553,482

S 123.276.576

The accompanying notes 10 basic financial stalcments are an integral part of these statemenis,

1z
ozl 2 P © oz 3 o
3| BE % 28 % 58 & g
= 2 5 w g’ Ll oo = o el
s 23 Hg - &
EEZ 2§ £ 2 = R I |
FEE 4 | = =0 A ¥ = =
£
o
:
- - - -
2| 2 _ ] o o =
2| 35 2 2| g g . g =
[ [ I < | & 4 =
324 z4 3 2| o 8 3
£3Y %7 ® g &
L]
3
H
o
v w - “
e | s o | o | oo o«
_ 2. g 2 i B - |
3 eI Y5 -
t23 8 | B 213 §1 8§
- o)
a
= !
P - -
S
= 2
z s | mal o s | o - d o
xSy §| BE Elg g q g
dE3R 55 EY 2 T £ g g
5 =g Fal @ | o o P
—~ =
ERsE] &
ZEg 5
ZZ3% v W « -
LSz E
ar]
S o o e 2 ool & e
= 3 - g o= £3 3 P8 0§ =
2 P R I s v FDC . e
g FE R g 3 -0
= E s I, I s
-
d
> o wr “w Lsl
&
3
K
§ 3
3 E
2 . )
s 5 = g,8 »n =
E g 2 293858 2
' 3258 3
ER y 2gEy 2
¥s 5 O g E gafsgl g
i 2 2 8 43553y &
I wa 2 oz B FERE
5B a = £ 3% Lok
BE g e 3 : S
5iE & 2 g4
EER] k] R R
nd= i
2

“The accompanying naies 1o basic financial stalements arc an ntegral patt of these statements.

14

dexd September 30, 2009

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
Fiscal Year T

FUND

FHTeoqH § == &
SHIESS 5 58 =
sed ¥ Tl 8 o =
= - deg] o o & g
I = SEF B =|E B
[~ = ST B =
; oE o = X
=
5 23
a
2
Z e = s
g Bl B 2
5 gl 2 =2
& o ! )
= a8 2
Z
=
=
=
z b T
=) -
& ' &
2 =
= &
= 2z
-
o % =
g 2 -4 %
e g8 8 oo A
22 — & o o
28 @ =
S8E &3 & En
YED o - e g
]

5
5

f
Conuibutions
B DR, 736
98,736
94,736

3
3

owag ezl gl = =)

2EAR 2l 8l 8 2
a ERSR-1 S B | g El
4 ) | A 2
2 ol -
H HEEE [ -1 5
3 ERE al &l & .
& = 3 o

- -
g
! E
e e R .
p e e gl s
I R I I G
B diszesglg =2 gz
SHIXRLY 8 F| . 5
g EeSed | g Zl 8
2
« -

overnsmestal act

z

S

g
P

“Total printary
government

PC activiiics:

goverapicnt

safewy
ul Tecseatinn

worky

“Total business-type oct

Funelions/Progragis

7,483,478

Ad valorem taxes

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERKMENTAL

FUNDS, PAGE 14

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statemend of net assels are different becavse:

Capital assets vsed in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds.

Governmental capiltal assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Other assels used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reparted n
(he: goveremental fimds:

Deferred charge on debl issuance costs, net
of accumulated amortization

Cerain abilities are not due and payable in the cursent
peried and thercfore are net reporled in the funds:

OPEB liability

Accroed interest payable
Compensated absences
Governmental bonds payable

NET ASSETS OF GOVERKMENTAL ACTIVITIES,
PAGE 12

13

SREZECEE B = 8§
SREEREFRE S 2 B g
inin il
-
T A I
f ' oA Bl R B %
- ol o =] =
e I
3| &Y
4
- 5
SELZAIBRG I R g bq
GETarERy 3 8 B Al 2
== - o Z £ 5
i
L
g
g
E
5
=
=
8
2
g -
5 8
£ =
3 g
: z
=]
£ 28 8
% = f §° 3 E
k! 235Dy
E 245 £
22 3 5 ¥ 8 E
48E3 38 F & &
E - 5 5 &
25 2 Z g
3
El
Z
=
H 12,714,859
$ 195,619,041
(77,736,523 117,882,518
138,067
(124,000)
(156,402)
(316.247)
{13.415,708) (14,012,357
§ 116,723,087

The accompanying 1otes to basic fnancial stiements arc an integral part of these statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALLANCES RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES
GOVERNMENTAL [FUNDS EXPENDITURES, AND CITANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009 FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended Scpicmber 30, 2009
Cupital Otber Total
General Tracspartation Projects Governmentzl  Goveromenial NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL
o Tund Fund Fond —Dads | Fnds GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Page 16) § 343042
Tases $ §217M943 8 931016 % - 3 - 5 13011483 fuita, a -
Lictmses and permaits 126216 ” i . L2216 Amounts reporled for governmental activities are different bocause:
g’;‘;;i‘:"}?{“:‘r’\":lm :‘g éég . 5=3’3‘2_88 212']_“ ?';gg'gg; Gavernmenta) funds ceport capital outlays as expenditures
Fines and forfeinzes '2061561 R N 10,815 ‘2”:6..,6 However, in th¢ statement cfacl_lvmc_s, the cost of
Interest 29,834 2,374 5,002 3,570 43,780 those agsets is allocated over Ucir cstimated us:.:fu_l
Miscetlaneons 326,442 - 120,759 - 447,201 lives and reported as depreeiatinn cxpense.  This is
the amount by which capilal ontlays exceeded
Total revemues 16,782,718 $34,3% 6.967,049 226,573 24,510,730 depreciation in the current period.
Exspendirires: The details of Lhe difference are as follows:
Current:
Geoeral government 2,812,996 - 3,004,952 - 3,907,948 Capital Outlay 3 2,027,126
Public safery 6,785,106 - - 123,545 5,508,652 ceiati 55
Building, planning apd zoning 1,473,663 - - - 1,475,663 DeprL::;?léz;um ital assets & (?g’%ggg
Packs and recreation 2,899,629 - 1,185,885 - 4,085,514 posal af cap g R TLAL S
Tblic works 563,955 931,701 - - 1,595,656 Net adjustment (3,579,917}
Debt service:
;,;,lmi;:]m . . R £15,000 B15.000 The issuance of Jong-term debt (¢.g., bonds, master
Tnretest - - - 490,873 £00,873 Icases) provides cerrent financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repaymeni of the
Total expenditares 14,638,349 535,701 4.280,837 1,620,419 21,430,306 principal of long-term debt consumes the current
E deficier financial resources of govermnenta) funds. Neither
";:css( ctency} rransaction, bowever, has any ¢ffeet on net assets.
of revenues
over expendifuns _ 244369 2,689 2,686,212 (1,402,846) 2:430,024 The derils of the differcnce are as follows:
Other financing seureos (usesl: Issuance premoum 13,101
Transfers in 3,582,000 - 420,000 1,505,673 5,507,873 Issnance costs (10,348)
Transfers oat 11.899,673) 26,000 13,582,000, - £5,307,873) Principal payments 815,000
Capilal lease 30,085
Totat owber [omcing Accrued interest 6,461
soucces (Wses) 1,652,127 (26,000) _(3,162.000) 1,505,873 - Net adjustment — 554,299
Net change to : ——
b e smess @y enmm man a0 Some expecse rparied In th satcment of v
Fund balaizes, beginging 4,113,733 3,909,674 1,083,070 177,958 ©.284 435 and, therefore, arc nol reparted as expenditurcs
m goveremental funds.
Fund balanzes, coding §_ 7940229 53886363 5 GOT2R) 5 20585 & [2.714,838 A ) )
_ The details of the differcnce is as fallows:
Other post-cmployment benefits {63,000}
{ompensated absences {10,993}
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES (Page 13) % 630,813

The accompanying poles to basic financial stawements are an imegral part of these stalements. The accompanying noles (o basic finuncial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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YILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRICTARY FUND PROPRIETARY FUND
Septerber 30, 2009 For the Year Ended September, 30, 2009
Stormwater Stormwater
Fund . Fomd
ASSETS:
Curreint assets: OPERATING REVENUES:
Cagly and cash equivalents § 0 1,961,224 Uhilicy fees g 374,680
Reczivables 119,720
Total operating revenues 374,680
Taoral current assets 2,080,944
Non-current assets: . OPERATING EXPENSES:
Capital assets, net 4,550,483 Cost of sales 209,151
Depreciation 102,422
Tota] non-CUTTENE 255¢1S 4,590,493
Toral nperating expenses 311,573
Total assets 6,671,437
I Operating income 63,107
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Current liabilities: NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Accounts payahle 6,006 Interest earnings 19,261
Revenucs collected in advance 111,942
Total operating revenue 19,261
Total liabilitics 117,948
Change in eet assets 82,368
Net assers:
Iovested in capital assets 4,590,493
Unresiricted 1,962,996 NET ASSETS, beginning 6,471,121
Total net assets b 6,553,439
e NET ASSETS, ending 5 6,553,489
The accompanying nofes 1o basic financial statements are an intepral part of these statenents, The accompanying noles 10 basic financial staterments arc an iniegral part of thesc staterents,
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Slormwater
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Recefpts from customers and users $ 364,937
Paymicnrs fo supplicrs {203,145)
Cash fiows provided by operating activitics 161,792
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquistion of capial assets (39.050)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 19,261
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 142,003
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 1,819,221
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 1,961,224
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH FPROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITICS:
Operating income 5 63,107
Deprectation 102,422
Change in operating assels and Jiabilisies:
(Increase) decrease o accounts reccivable (9,961
Increase (deercasc) in accounts payable X
Increase (decveasce) in revenues colleeied in advance 718
Total adjusiments (3,737)
Net cash provided hy operating activitics s 161,792

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended September, 30, 2009

The accompanying notes o basic finencial statemeuts are an integral part of these statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

C.

Measurement focus, busis of acconnling, snd linancial statement preseniation

The govermment-wide financial statements are repored using be ecomomic resources
measurement focus and Ihe accrvel basis of accounting as is used for the proprietary fond
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when eayned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property 1axes are
recognized as reveaues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized a5 revenue as soom as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider bave
been met.

Goveromental fupd financial stalements are reported ustng the current finencial resources
measurement focus and the meodified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
a5 500N as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are comsidered 1o be available
when they afe collectible within the current period or scon epough thereafier to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Village copsiders revenues in he
availabie if they are colleeted within 30 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expeoditures generally are recorded when a Liability s incurred, as wnder accrual
accounting. awever, debt sorvice expenditures, as well as expenditures related 1o
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property wxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all eonsidered te be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period.  All otber revenue iems are coosidersd to he
measurzble and available only when cash is received hy the Village.

The Village of Pincerest repons the following major goveromental funds:

. The General Fund is the Village's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
Mnancial resources of the genersl government, except those required to be
aceounied oy in another fund.

. The Transportation Fund receives grants from the State of Florida and from Miaml-
Trade County 10 he nsed to account for and report esources restricted or committed
16 improvement of the Village of Pincerest roadway system.  The primary sources
of reverue are interpovernrnental grants for a portion of the gasoline sales tax and a
Migmi-Dade County share of a 1/2 cent sales tax 1o be used for non-public
transporiation.

. The Capital Projects Fund receives wansfers fom the Geperal Fund as well as
granls and accounts for purchases of land and improvements to the parks and
buildings in the communiry .

The Village repons ils only proprictary fund as a major fund:

. The Stormwater Fund (an cnterprise fund) sccounts for the stormwater control
activities of the communiry. TFunds are received from business and residential users
and used o mainain the stormwater collection system.

Private secter standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989 generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
staiements (o the extent that those standards do not ¢onflict with or contradiet guidance of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Goveraments also have the option of
following subsequent privac scctor puidance for Lheiv besipess-ivpe activities and
enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation, The Village of Pineerest has elected not o
follow subsequenl privare sector guidance.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES

AL

Reparting entity

The Village of Pinecrest was incorporated on March 12, 1996 pursvant to Ordinance 95-
207 adopred by the Miami Dade Board of County Commissioners on November 12, 1995,
The Village of Pinectest vccupies a Jand area of eight (8) square miles and serves a
population of 19,491, The Village of Pinccrest operates under & Council-Manager form of
government and provides the following services: public safety (pelice}, public works,
building, plapning and zoning, code enforcement, stormwater management, and parks and
recreation. The basic finuncial staements of the Village of Pinecrest have been prepurcd in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the acvepted standard setting body for establishing governments? and financial reporting
principles

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Govermnent Accouating
Stamulards, which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the {inancial reporting
entity. The defiition of (he [mancial reporting entity is based upon the concept that
elected offigials are zccountable to their comstiments for (eir actions. Ome of Lhe
objectives of finaacial reporiing is to pravide users of (inancial statements with a basis for
assessing the accounrability of Lhe elected officials. The financial reporting entity consists
of the Village of Pinecrest, organizations for which the Village of Pinecrest is financially
accountable, and other orgunizations for which the namre and significapce of their
relativuship with the Village of Pinecrest are such that exclusion would cavse the reporting
entity’s financials staements to be misleading or neomplete.  The Villsge of Pinecrest is
financially accouruable for a compopent unit if it appoints @ voling majority of (he
organization’s governing board anu it is able to impose 315 will on thar organization or here
is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefiis ta, or impaose
specific financial burdeas on the Village of Pinecrest. Based wpon the application of these
criteria, Lhere were no Organizations that met the criteria deseribed above.

Governmeni-wide and fund financial stalements

The government-wide financial statements (i. e, the siatements of pct asscts and Lhe
statement of changes in ot assets) report information an all of the nonfiduciary activities of
the Village of Pinecrest. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements.  Goverumental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revemues, are reporied separawly from busieess-lype activities which
rely to 2 sigmificant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonsirates the degree to which the direct expenses of 2 given
funelion or scgment are offset by program revemuvs. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revemues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) granes and
contributions that are restricted w meeting (he operational or capital requiremens of 2
panticular functive or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial starements are provided for governmental funds and the proprietary fend.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual emerprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund francial statements
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NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continzed)

As a peneral enle the elfect of interfund activity has been eflminated from the government-
wide Hnancial statements.

Amounts reporied as program revenues include 1) charpes to custamters ar applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants aml centributions, and 3
capital grants and conrribntions. General revenues include a]l taxes.

Propriewary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generaily result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with 1 proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.
The principal vperating revenues of the Stormrwater Fund are charges 10 busmess and
residential customers for stormwater system maimenance. Operating expenses 1¢part on
the ¢osts (@ maintain the starmwater system, the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses and depréciation ot capital assets. All Teverues and expenses not meeting this
de[inition are reported as non-operating revenues aud expenses.

Assets, labilities and net assels or equity.
1. Depaosits and investments.

Cash apd cash equivaleats, which are cash and shor-term invesiments with
maturities of three months or less, include cask on haod, a reporchase agreement
and invesiumensts with the Srate Board of Adminfstration lavestment Pool.
Investments are reported at fair valve.

2 Capital asscis

Capital assets, which include property, lard, equipment, and infrastructure assels
(e. g., roads, bridges, sidewaiks and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business type activities columns in the government-wide fipancial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $ 10,000 (amount not rounded) and 2n estimated useful
life in excess of three years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value o the date of donation.

The costs or aormal maintenance and repzirs that do not udd to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets Jives are not capitalized. Maier outlays for capiial
agsers and jmprovements are capitalized 23 projects are canstracted.

Capital assets of the Village sre deprecialed using the straight line method over the
Tullowing estimated useful lives:

o Buildings - 40 years
Improvements - 15 years
Equipment
= Cars - 5 years
»  Trucks - 10 yeurs
= Equipment - 5 years
“  Computer equipment, meludug software - 3 years
¢ Infrasiructure:
= Roads - 25 years
= Stormwrater sysiem - 50 years

oo
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimied)
3. Cempensated absences

Village employees are granted vaeation and sick leave in varying amounts hased on
lengrh of service and Lhe depantment 1hat the employee services.

The Village’s sick leave policy is to permit employees to accumulate carned but
unosed sick pay bemefiis. Such leave s accrued and reporied as a fund liabilicy
when it is probable that the Village will compensate the employee in the following
Fscal vear. Unused sick pay is not paid st termination.

The Village's vacation policy s that earned vacation must he taken within one year
of (he employee's annjversary. Carryover is limited to two hundred and forty (240)
hours, Unused vacation pay, if any, is paid with the employee’s recmination or
retirgment.  Those amounts cstimated to be liquidated with expendable availabie
financial Tesources from the General Fund are reported as expenditures and a fund
ligbility of the General Fund.

4. Long term obligations

in the governmeni-wide financial staternents, long-term debt and othcr leng-term
obligations zre reported as liabilities in the applicable governmenal acijvities or
husiness-type activitics.  Boud premiums and discoonts, as well as Isseance costs,
are deferred and amortized over the life of the honds using (he effective imerest
method. Bonds payable are reponied gross of (he applicable bond premivm or
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized aver
the term of the refated debt.

£

Tn the fond financial stalements, goveenmentel fund rypes recognize bond premiums
and discounts, as well as hond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face
amount of debt issued is reported as anpther financing source. Premiums reccived
on debi igsuances are reported as olber financing scurces while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as otber Noancfug uses.  Jssuance cost, whether or not
withkeld trom the actual debr proceeds received are reported ay debt service
expendimres.

5. Troperty Laxes

Property taxes for the currenl year were ussessed and collesied by Miami-Dade
County and subscquently remitted 1o the Village. Property taxes ave assessed as of
January ¥ cach year and are first billed {levied) and due the following November 1.
Under Tlotida Jaw, the assessment of all properties and the colleetion of alt couary,
municipal, school board aod special diseriet property taxes are consolidated [n the
offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The laws for
the Srate regnlasing tax assessments are also designed (o assure a consisient property
valuation method statewide.  State stalules permlt municipalities 10 levy propercy
taxcs at 4 rate of up to 10 mills (§ 10 per EI,OUO of assessed raxable valuation).
The millage rute assessment by the Village for he year ended Seprember 30, 2009
was 1.9809 mills.

The tax levy of the Village 15 established by the Village Council prior to October 1
of cach year, and the County Property Appraiser incorporates lhe millage into the
tax levy, which includes Miumi-Dade County, Miami-Dade County School Beard
and special txing districts.
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- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {centinued)

The LGID has adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirement for a 2a7-like
fund. The Villape of Ploecrest’s investment in the LGIF is reporicd at amortized cost.
The fair value of the position in the pool is equal to the value of the pool shares.

The Fund B Is reporied ar fair value, detcrmined by the fair value per share of the pool’s
underlying portfolio.

The Village of Pinecrest had the fellowing invesrments s of September 30, 2009

Fair
Investment Mamrities Value
LGIP Weighted average
days to manyity
is 33 days 5 13,422,007
Fund B ‘Weighied average
life is 9.36 years 8 197,360
Repurchase agreement Overnight sweep account S 1,494 482

which invests i obligations
of the U.5. government
whose maturities change
on & daily basis

Credit Risk

The Village of Pinecrest bas an investment policy that emphasis the safety of principal
while maintaining adequate liquidity t6 meet its nceds. Investments are limited to the
highest ratings by two of the nationally recognized statistical cating organizations (NRSRO}
- (Standard and Poors and Moody’s lovesiment Services). The LGIP is rated AAAm by
Standard and Poors and Fund B 15 not rated by any natienally recagnized stalistical rating
ageney,

Concentration Credit Risk
GASH Statement 40) requircs disclosure when the perecnt is 5% or more in any one issuer.

Exteroal iovestment pools and obligations of the U8, governnent are exempt from
concentration risk disclosures.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICARKT ACCOUNTING FGLICIES (continued}

All property is reassessed according 1o its fair market value as of January 1 of cach
car, Rach assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the State
epartmem of Hevenue for review to determine if the rolls meet all of the

appropriate requlrements of State Statures.

ATl real and wangible personal property taxes arc duc and payable on November 1,
cach year or a8 soon a8 practicable thereafier as the assessmemnt toll is certified by
the County Property Appraiser. Miami-Dade County mails to cach property owner
on he assessment roll a notice of the mxes duc and Miami-Dade County also
colleets the taxes for the Village. Taxes may be paid upon receipt of such notice
from Miami-Dade County, with discounts at the rate of four percent (4%} if paid in
the month of November, three percent (3%) if paid in the month of Decernber, nwo
percent {2%} if paid in the menth of January and ove perceat (1%) if paid in the
month of February., Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount,
and ali uppaid taxes on rea) and tangible personal property become delinquent and
liens are placed on April | of the year following the year in which raxes were
assessed. Procedurcs for the coliection of delinguent taxes by Miami-Dade County
are provided for in the laws of Florida. There were no material delinquent property
taxes at Scptember 30, 2005

6. Lse of cstimates

The prepatation of financial statements in conformiry with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States roquires mauagement to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts repored in the fnancial satements and
accompativing notes.  Although (heses estimates are based on management’s
knowledge of current events and actions it may undertake in the furure, they may
uhimately differ from actal results,

. - DETAILED NCTES ON ALL FUNDS

Depasils and investments.
Deposits

In addition to insurapce provided by the Federal Depository msurance Cerporation, all
deposits are held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the Seate of
Florida to hokl public fuuds, Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for
Public Deposits Act, the State Treasurer requircs all Florida qualificd public depositories to
deposit with the Treasurer or banking mstitution cligible collateral. In the event of a
faillure of a qualificd public depository, the remaining public depositories would be
responsible for covering any resulting losses.

Investments

The Village of Pinecrest invests surplos funds i an ¢xermal investnent pool, the Local
Governmuent Surplus Funds Trust Fund {the “Stale Pool™). The State Pool i3 adminjstered
by Lhe Hlorida Stawe Board of Administration (“SBA™), who provides regulatory oversight,
Tn the priot year, the SBA reported that the State Pocl was cxposed to potential risks due 1o
indirect expasure in the sub-prime mortgege financial market. Conscquently, the SBA
placed some restrictions on how participants could access porlions of their surplus funds
and ultimately restrucmred the State Pool into two separate pools (“LGIP” and “Fund B™).
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- DETAILED XOTES ON ALL FUNDS {contimed)

Receivables

Reeeivables as of fiscal year cnd for the Village's individual major and nonmajor fuads, in
the apgregatc, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as
follows:

Otker
MarrMajor
Gowernmental
General Trsmpmwmtion Funds Stormyraier Toul
] inge s - - 3 - H 198,629
109.625 100,736 Ehe) - 253,137
183,603 163,604
266,562 . - - L4 562
Cias 5:.003 - - i0.720 210,724
Grass receivables 749,427 1736 76 119,720 1,017,659
Legs: sliguanze for
doubtful accousts
Teal
Teacivables 3 40437 5 00 S AT F 1197120 8 =017.659

In December 2067, the Village execuied a note receivable under a lease purchase
agreement with Miami-Dude County School Board for Jand io be used as a parking lot.
Under the terms of (ht agreement, the Village is w receive aonugl rentals, including
interest of approximately $ 91600, payable 10 monthly mstaliments of approximately
57,600, including interest at 3.95% beginning in January, 2002 and through December
2011. The balance of the nofe reecivable at Seplember 30, 2005 of § 198,629 is included
in deferred tevenucs,

TFurure misimum lease payments reflecting principal payments op the mote to he
teceived arc as follows:

Yeur Ending

Seprember 30,
2010 ¥ 85,348
2011 #8,779
2012 24,504
Total b 158,629
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NOTE 2. - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

Tonal deferred revenues as of September 30, 2009:

Palmerto High School property lease
Occupational taxes collected in advance

Torzl deferred revenaes

C. Capital assets

$ 158,629
54,639
$ 253,268

Capital asset activity for the year chded September, 2009 was as follows:

Beginaing Adjustmeats Ending
EBalanue _Inoreages  _Tramsfecs _Decreases  _ Balamor
Goveromenlal Activiies:
Capital asscts. net being
depreciated:
Land 5 17,437.190 H - H - § 17,437,190
Constrieion in progress 425551 - (429.551) -
Total capital assels,
=01 heing rated 17,856,741 - (429,551} - 17.437.150
Capital assets, belng
depretiad:
Buildiogs 17,528,733 674375 #4728,551 - 18,432,661
Impravemeols 5,338,956 416,228 - - 5,755,224
Equipment 2,488,220 159,857 (55,762) 2,592,355
Ifeastructure 150,424 985 776665 - 151.201,651
Total capital assets,
being deprecisted 175 780 936 2027126 429551 (55, 762) 78, 181851
Less accurulated
depreciation for:
Buildings (087,481} {411,881) - {1.402.362)
Tmprovemems (9EC, BEE) {319,330y - £1,300,396)
Equipment (1,613,384} {291,880} {44,987y (1.860.286)
Infrasirucive -

68,603,311), (4,569.968]

A73.479)

Total accwnulated

- 144 98T (77.736.523

426 551 {10.775) 100,415,328

depreciaton (72,185 242) 5.596. 2681
Total capital aseets,
Deing deprecisted, net 103,595 694, {3,568 147}
Goveromenal
aetivities capital
assels, nel § 121462435 5 (3.360.140

- §__ (10775 5 _1i7.282.518
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NOTE 2. - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

D, Traosfers

The compaosition of imerfund operating wransfers as

Interfund translees:

of Seplember 30, 2009, is as follows:

Transfers out Transfers in Agmount Transfer Purpose
General Fund Debt Service § 1479873 Provide deht service funds
General Fund Capital Fund 420,000 Provide capital project funds
Capital Project General Fund 3,582,000 Relurn funds - library grant
Transpertation
Fund Debt Service 26,000 Provide debr service funds

Total General Fund $ 5,507,873

E. Long term deht

Flerida Municipal Loan Revenne Bonds, Series 1999, Series 2002 and Series 2004, The
Village of Pinecrest has issued three hond issues. The first issue was for 3 8,153,000 for
the development of Pinecrest Park, the Village Hall and olher capital improvement
projects. The second issue was for 37,740,000 for the purchase and development of Parrot
Jungle which is kuown as Pinecrest Gardens. The (hird issue is for the construction costs
of the Library/Commuoity Cenfer ai Pinecrest Gardens, § 3,075,000, The bonds have an
outstanding batance of § 13,245,000, aod are due in varying installments through July 1,
2024 and bear interest rates from 3.2% to 5.5% with interest paid semiannually. The
principal and interest on these honds are payable from a pledge of non-ad valorem

revenues, as defined.

Year ending Interest

September 30 Principal and fees Total
2010 § 845000 % 665,873 $ 1,510,873
2m1 885,000 630,059 1,515,059
2012 925,000 591,274 1516274
2013 965,000 547,719 1,512,719
2014 1,010,000 500,329 1,510,329

2015-2019 5,885,000 1,651,737 7,330,737

2020-2024 2,730,000 343,059 3,073,059
Totals $ 13,245,000 § 4,930,050 $ _18.175.050
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KOTE 2. - BETAILED NOTES ON ALJ. FUNDS (costinued)

Repinning

Fading
Balance Increascs Deureases Balance
Business-Type Aclivities:
Capital assels, being
decpeeciated:
Infrastncmre 5 _1.762.743 g 39,059 13 - 3 _7,801.793
Tolal cupita) assets,
being depreciated 7,762,743 39.050 - 7.8M.79
1ess accurrmlated
depreciatior. for:
Tnfragirucrure (3,108.87% 1102 .427) - (3.211.300]
‘Towa) accumlated
depreciatica (3,108, 878] 102,422 - 3,211,300
Tolal capital assets,
being depreciaed, oet 4,653,865 (63372 - 4,500,493
Business-(yne
activities capleal
syse1s, net 5 _4,633.865 $ (63.372) 3 - S _ 4,590,493

Depraciation expense was charged to fiunction/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Goveramental activities:

(General govermment $ 139,370
Public safery 197,747
Public works 4,635,470
Building, planning and zoning 14,226
Parks and recreaion 589,249

Total depreciation expensc,
governmental activitics § 5,596,268

Busginess type activities:

Stormwater § 102,422

Taoral depreciation ¢xpense
busincss iype activities $ 102,422
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NOTE 2. - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued

Changes in Jong-term debt of goveramental activities during the year are sumumarized as

follows:
Balanze Ralance Due
Soptensor 30, September 30, Within
2008 Additions Roinetivns 2009 Oot Year
Honds payable § 14,060,000 S - 5 2BH00 513245000 S 845,000
Unamertized premium 183,809 - 13,191 170,708 -
Capitat leases 30,085 - 30,085 - -
Compensated absences 305,054 316,247 305,254 316,247 268,810
Taals § 14.579,143 % 316247 0§ L1634l 5 13TMLGES 3 1,113,810

G.

Compensated absences are paid from the General Fund in the fonn of vacation pay.

Accounts Puyuble and Other Accrued Liabilitics:
Accounts payable and other accrued [abilities as of fiscal year end for the Village's
individual major and noamajor funds, in the aggrepate are as follows:
Otz
Capital Wanerjar
Geperal Trarcnaranon Prujects Guverroenal
Furd o [ Fuud Stommwier Teut
Payables;
Payroll 5 32EdE 5 - 5 - 5 5 - £ H2p62
Ve 259,781 b ] 3i4,885 T3.631 6,006 67,002
11.203 - - i - 11203
Toal payable 3 A7), el 5 2,700 < 314,885 H 73,631 & £.006 3 L000.868
Other Post-Employment Beacfits (OPEBs)

1. Deseription

In Juce 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accovnting and Finuncial Reporting
by Cmployers for Poswemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASE No. 45
requires employer goveraments to account for and report the annual cost of other
postemployment benefils in the same manner #s they de for pensions. The Village
recognizes the cost of posiemployment healtheare in the year when (he employec
services are received, reports the accumulated liability from prior years, and
pravides mformatinn nseful in assessing potential demands on the Village's future
cash flows. Recognition of the liability accemuiaied from prior years will be
phased in aver 15 years, commencing with Lhe 2008 liability,
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NOTE 2. - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continaed

NOTE 2. - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
As of Scprember 30, 2009, fund halances are composed of (he following:
Copd Nowusjor Tow
General Transporarion Projeats Gov=mnmea Governmenal
Fund Furd Pt Funts Fugk
Restricied Foeds 1 . L LD E R ) - 3 380,985 5 4,187,248
Coguried Funds 26,500 - - i 2900
Assigred Fonde - - 607,282 - £07,282
Umssigoed Frds 7510.329 - - - T2
Tolal fund balaszes & TS0EN S JEB6ME S wnm s 65 S 127485
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both resmicted and unrestricted
fund balance i3 ayailahln, the ¥illage considers restricted funds to have been spent first,
When an expenditure is incurred for which commilted, assigned, or unassigned fund
balances are availabie, the Village considers amounts to have been spent first out of
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless
Village Council has provided otherwise In its commitment or assignment actions,
NOTE 3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A Risk Management
The Villape is exposed w various risks of loss related w torts, theft of or damage o and
destruction of asscts, crrors and omissions, injuries to employees, and namral disasters for
which the Village carries insurance through the Florida League of Cities.  There were no
significant reductions in insurance coverage from the coverage in the prior year. There
were no sefted claims that have exceeded imswrance coverage tor each of the past three
years,
L. Litigation
The Yillage is a defendant in various lawsuits incidental to its operations.  Allthough the
outcome of Lhes¢ lawsuils is ot presently determinable, it is the apinion of the Village's
management and legat counscl that resolution of these matters will ot have a materia]
adverse ¢ffect on the financial condition of the Village.
C. Cocfingent Liabilities
Amounts received or receivable from prantor agencies are subject to aundit and adjustuent
by grantor egenci Any disallowed claims, including amounts alrcady collected, may
constitute a liabilicy of the applicable funds. In (he opinion of mabagement, furre
disallowances of grant expendimires, if apy, would not have a material adverse effect on the
Village's firancial condition,
D. Ieterlocal Agrecment

Under Florida State law, the Village of Pincerest is required to offer a cominuation
of health insurance coverage to retirees ar the same premium that is charged by the
insurance carrier with respeet 1o active employees. Currently, the Viilape does not
have any retiress who are receiving post-employment henefits and the Village bas
not yet formulated a policy regarding the amewmi that must he paid by futurc
retitees far post-cmployment benefits.  Therefore, for purposes of the acmarial
valuation, Ruture rerirees were assumed to contribute an amount equal to tlic acmal
premiums for health insurance that arc charged by the carrier and the semary
assumed that there will be no other post-employment benefits provided. Based on
this assumption, there is an inptied substdy in the healthcare insurance premivm for
retirecs because the premivn charged for retirees will be the same as the premjum
charged for active employecs, who are younger than retirees om averape. The
sctuary assumed thar montily retiree healtbcare premiums at age 65 for single
coverage would be $ 200 higher on average for the HMO plan, $ 325 higher on
average for the PPO plan or $ 123 kigher on average for the high-deductible plan if
the subsidy were not in place. Therefore, the actuary treated either § 200, § 325,
or § 125 per month as the implied subsidy at age 65 Jor purposes of GASE 45 for
the MO, PPO, and high-deductible plans, respeetively.

2. Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB ohligation

The Village's anmual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense} is
calculated hased on the aunual vequired conmibution of the employer (ARC). The
Village has engaged an acwary to calowlate the ARC and related information per the
provisions of GASE Statcment 45. The ARC represents a level of funding chat, if
paid on an ongoing basis, 15 projected 10 cover nonmal cost cach year and to
amortize any unfunded acuarial liabilities (or fundfug cxeess) over a period pot 1o
exceed 15 vears.

The following table shows the components of the Village's aonual OPEB vest for
tlie year, he amount actally contributed to the plan, and the Village's net OPEB
obligation at Seprember 30, 2009:

Amval required contribution $ 66,000
Interest on net OPER gbligation 3,000
Adjusement to annual required contribution (6,000
Annual OPEB cost 63,000
Contributions made -

Increase in net OPER obligation 63,000
Net OPEB obligation, October 1, 2008 61,000

Wet OPED obligation, Septemhey 30, 2000 § 124,000

a2
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On June 17, 1997 the Village entered into an interlocal agreement with Miami-Dade
Councy to pass thru the Village's share of the franchise fee on electriciry collecred by
Florids Pawer and Light. Under this agreement, the County remited $ 1,317,317 (o the
Viliage for the fiscul year ended September 30, 2009, This agreement will be in effect as
long as the Ordinance estblishing the colleetion of these fees is in place.
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NOTE 2. - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (contitued)

3. Schedule of Funding Progress

1} @ ]
TIAAL
Actuarial Unturdes as % of
Acmuarial Actuarial Azcried Anl Funded Coagred
Vuluatice Value of Liability (UAKL) Ge Covered Tayrsll
Ta Assets (A4L) @ ) = (2 Payral: G+ )
Apil L2ME S - 0§ mag § IO 50%  § 81300 (3l
4. Acmarial Methods and Assumptions
Yaluation date April 1, 2008

Acmuarial cost method
Amortization method

Projected umit eredit

15-year open period;
payment

5.00% per anoum
{meludes inflavion at
3.00% per anoum}

Investment reurn

Healtheare ¢ost wend rate(s):
Insyrance Premiums
Select rates 10.00% for 2008 graded to
6.00% for 2016
Thtimate rate 5.5% per anoum
Fund Balances - Goveramental Funds

As of Scptember 30, 2009, fund balances of the governmental funds arc classificd as
follows:

Non-spendable - amounts that cunnot be speni cither because they are in non-
spendable form or because they are legally or contractually reguired w0 be
maintained iniace.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent omnly for specific purposes because of
constitational pravisions, chaner requi s ar enabling iegisiation or because of
constraints that are externally hnposed by credilors, grantors, contributors, or the
laws or repulations of other governments.

Commitred - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a
Jormal action of Village Cowncil. Commitments may be established, modificd, or
reselnded onty rough ordinances or resolutions approved by Village Council

Assigned - wmounts that do not meet the criteria w be clussified as restricied or
commitied but thar are intended to be used or specific purposes.  Under the
Village's adopted policy, ooly Village Council may essign amounts for specific
PUrposes.

Unassigned - ali other spendable amounts.
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NOTE 3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continucd)

(On July 17, 2003 the Village entered into another interlocal agreement with Miami-Dade
County. Under this agrecment, the County remined § 567,259 to the Village for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2009 for the purpose of providing Wransportation services within
the Village, This agreement shall remain in effect as long as the Couary receives net
proceeds from the % cent County Transit Sysiem Surlax as authorized by Miami-Dade
Coumy Ordinance Na. 02-116 pursuznt to the zuthority of Section 212.055(1) Florida.
Statntes 2002.

On December 5, 2007, the Village entered into anather interlocal agreement with Miami-
Dade County. Under this agreement, Water and Fire Project/GOB Project Number 17.11-
71200, (Countywide Water and Sewer Enhancements) 9-70593, the Counry remited $
1,494,751 to the Village for the fiscal year ended Scprember 30, 2009,

On lune 8, 2006, the Village entered imto another interlacal agreement with Miami-Dade
County. Under this agreement, Original Eatrance to Parrot Jungle GOB Project mumber
274-70544, the County remimed $ 114,580 to the Village for the fiscal yesr ended
September 30, 2008,

Pepsion Plans
Defined Contribution Plun

The Village of Pinccrest 401¢2) Money Purchase Plan is a defincd conwribution plan
estblished by the Village to provide hencfits at retirement for its emplayees. All full time
cmployees must he a member of the plan.  Plan members are required (o contribute 7% of
basc carmings for the plan year. The Village is required to comtribute 13% of base
carnings for esch pamicipant for the plan year.  Plan provisions and contribution
requirements are established and may be amended by the Village Council.

The Plan's asseis are administered by ICMA Retitement Corporation. The Village docs
pot exercise any control over the plam asscts. Village contributions to the plan were
$ 572,839, There arc current year forfeitures of $ 40,016, of which $2 will be used i
licu of Village contributions in fiscal 2009, Employee contributions were 8 295,184 for the
year ended September 30, 2009,

Defined Benefit Plan

The Village participates in the Florida Retirement System (FRS), a siatewide cost-shazing
nultiplc-cmployer public employee retirement system (PERS), available to governmental
uniis within the statc and administered by the State of Florida Division of Retirement,
Deparunent of Administration. The swern police personnel are cligible o panicipate in the
FRS. All rales, henefits and amendinents are established by the Statc of Florida through its
legislative body. TRS members with six years of service are cntiled 1o a retirement
henefit. Such benefits, payable monthly for life, are based on the percentage shown below,
1mes the number of years of credited service, times (he average of dic member’s five
highest years of carnings.

Special Risk Class - Police:

Retircinent based upon 25 years of special risk service 3.00% per year.
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NOTE 3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Normal retirement age for sworn police personnel is:

+ Age 55 und vested,
+ Have at least 25 years of special risk creditable service;
+ Combined 25 vears of special risk credilable service and military service and are age 52

or;
* Have at Teast 30 yeurs of any creditable service.

[f a member is vesied but has not yet reached normel retirement age, early retirement can
Be 1aken. The amount of the benefit will be redoced by 5.00% for gach year the retirement
date precedes normal reticement age.

Comributions to the FRS are marfe by the Village as a percentage of covered payroll. The
required contribution rate in effect at year-end was 20.92% for the special risk class. No
employee contributions are required. At Seplember 30, 2009, e Vitlage had 47 sworn
police personnel panicipating 1o the FRS.

The contribution requirements of covered payroll and actval contributions made for fiscal
year 2009 and the 2 preceding years were as follows:

2009 2008% 2007+
Coniribution requirements 3 530,787 NiA N/A
Contributions macle {100%} 3 530,787 N/A N/A
Toral covered payroll § 2537223 NiA A
Percent of contributions 1o
total covered payroll 20.92% NIA Nia

* The RES plan started In the Village of Pinscrest in January 2009, po prier year
information is neither relevant nor presented.

The FRS issues an annual report including the disclosures above, a slatement of financial
condition, historical and statistical information and an acmarial repor.. A copy can be
oblained from the State of Florida, Depariment of Muaoagemeni Services, Division of
Retitement, 2639 North Monroe Street, Building C, Tallzhassee, Florida 32399, or online
at www, myits com.

Construction Commitments

A construction commitment is defined as the difference between the contract price of a
project and the amount paid on that conuact through the fiscal year ended Septernber 30,
2009, OQuisianding construction commitments at Sepiember 30, 200% are approximately
§29,900 for projects which include the development of various pak rendvations and
improvements. These projects are all fully funded.

Subsequent Event

Nome
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